UNIVERSITATEA DIN ORADEA

ANALELE UNIVERSITĂȚII DIN ORADEA



Seria GEOGRAFIE

TOM XXX Nr. 2/2020 (December)



ANALELE UNIVERSITĂȚII DIN ORADEA

Seria GEOGRAFIE

TOM XXX Nr. 2/2020 (December)







ANALELE UNIVERSITĂȚII DIN ORADEA, SERIA GEOGRAFIE ANNALS OF UNIVERSITY OF ORADEA, GEOGRAPHY SERIE ORADEA UNIVERSITY PRESS

Editor-in-Chief:

Alexandru ILIEŞ, University of Oradea, Romania, e-mail: ilies@uoradea.ro

Associate Editors:

Nicolae JOSAN, University of Oradea, Romania, e-mail: njosan@uoradea.ro

Assistant Editors:

Grigore Vasile HERMAN, University of Oradea, Romania, e-mail: grigoreherman@yahoo.com Ribana LINC, University of Oradea, Romania, e-mail: ribanalinc@yahoo.com

Reviewers (Scientific Board):

Liviu APOSTOL, "Al. I. Cuza" University of Iasi, Romania, e-mail: apostolliv@yahoo.com Dan BÅLTEANU, member of Romanian Academy, Institut of Geography of Bucharest, Romania, e-mail: geoinst@rnc.ro Sandu BOENGIU, University of Craiova, Romania, e-mail: sboengiu@central.ucv.ro. Milan BUFON, "Primorska" University of Koper, Slovenia, e-mail: milan.bufon@upr.si Huhua CAO, University of Ottawa, Canada, e-mail: caohuhua@uottawa.ca Jean-Paul CARRIERE, University of Tours, France, e-mail: jean-pierre.luminet@lam.fr Doriano CASTALDINI, University of Modena and Reggio Emilia, Italy, e-mail: doriano.castaldini@unimore.it Pompei COCEAN, "Babes-Bolyai" University of Cluj-Napoca, Romania, e-mail: pompei@geografie.ubbcluj.ro Laura COMĂNESCU, University of Bucharest, Romania, e-mail: lauracomanescu@yahoo.com Olivier DEHOORNE, University of Antilles and Guyanne, France, e-mail: dehoorneo@gmail.com Vasile EFROS, "Stefan cel Mare" University of Suceava, Romania, e-mail: efros@atlas.usv.ro. Allessandro GALLO, "Ca' Foscari" University of Venice, Italy, e-mail: alekos@tin.it Lisa Butler HARRINGTON, Kansas State University, USA, e-mail: lbutlerh@ksu.edu Ioan IANOS, University of Bucharest, Romania, e-mail: ianos50@yahoo.com Corneliu IAŢU, "Al. I. Cuza" University of Iași, Romania, e-mail: corneliu_iatu@yahoo.fr Dorina Camelia ILIEŞ, University of Oradea, Romania, e-mail: iliesdorina@yahoo.com Ioan Aurel IRIMUŞ, "Babes-Bolyai" University of Cluj-Napoca, Romania, e-mail: irimus@geografie.ubbcluj.ro Vladimir KOLOSSOV, Russian Academy of Science of Moscow, Russia, e-mail: vladimirkolossov@gmail.com Gabor KOZMA, University of Debrecen, Hungary, e-mail: kozma.gabor@science.unideb.hu Denis MARTOUZET, Francois Rabelais University, Tours, France, e-mail: denis.martouzet@univ-tours.fr Ionel MUNTELE, "Al. I. Cuza" University of Iași, Romania, e-mail: imuntele@yahoo.fr Martin OLARU, West University of Timisoara, Romania, e-mail: martinolaru@yahoo.com Tadeusz PALMOWSKI, University of Gdansk, Poland, e-mail: tadeusz.palmowski@ug.edu.pl Elisa PASTORIZA, Universidad Nacional de Mardel Plata, Argentina, e-mail: elisapastoriza@gmail.com Daniel PEPTENATU, University of Bucharest, Romania, e-mail: peptenatu@yahoo.fr Dănuț PETREA, "Babeş-Bolyai" University of Cluj Napoca, Romania, e-mail: dpetrea@geografie.ubbcluj.ro Nicolae POPA, West University of Timișoara, Romania, e-mail: npopa1961@yahoo.com Maria RĂDOANE, "Ștefan cel Mare" University of Suceava, Romania, e-mail: radoane@usv.ro Maria Luisa RODRIGUEZ, University of Lisboa, Portugal, e-mail: rodrigues.mluisa@gmail.com Stephane ROSIERE, University of Reims Champagne-Ardene, France, e-mail: stephane.rosiere@univ-reims.fr Valeriu SAINSUS, Academy of Economic Science of Chişinău, Republic of Moldova, e-mail: sainsusvaleriu@gmail.com Marcu STAŞAC, University of Oradea, Romania, e-mail: stasac@uoradea.ro Karoly TEPERICS, University of Debrecen, Hungary, e-mail: teperics.karoly@science.unideb.hu Dallen J. TIMOTHY, Arizona State University, United States of America, e-mail: dtimothy@asu.edu Laurent TOUCHART, Université d'Orléans, France, e-mail: laurent.touchart@univ-orleans.fr George-Bogdan TOFAN, "Vasile Goldiş" Western University of Arad (Romania), e-mail: bogdan.tofan@uvvg.ro Alexandru UNGUREANU, "Al. I. Cuza" University of Iaşi, Romania, e-mail: aungur@uaic.ro Petru URDEA, West University of Timișoara, Romania, e-mail: urdea@cbg.uvt.ro Luca ZARRILLI, University of Pescara - Chieti, Italy, e-mail: lucazarrilli@iol.it Cristoph WAACK, Regional Geography of Institut of Leipzig, Germany, e-mail: christoph.waack@uni-leipzig.de Jan WENDT, University of Gdansk, Poland, e-mail: jwendt@univ.gda.pl

Foreign Language Supervisor:

Corina TĂTAR, University of Oradea, Romania, e-mail: corina_criste_78@yahoo.com

Secretary On-line Version:

Ștefan BAIAS, University of Oradea, Romania, e-mail: sbaias@uoradea.ro

ISSN 1221-1273, E-ISSN 2065-3409

The Journal is issued under aegis and with financial support of:



University of Oradea, Romania Department of Geography, Tourism and Territorial Planning Territorial Studies and Analysis Centre 1 University St., 410087, Oradea, Romania



PUBLICATION REQUIREMENTS OF ARTICLES IN THE ANALELE UNIVERSITĂȚII DIN ORADEA, SERIA GEOGRAFIE

The Editorial Board goes through each article, which in then submitted to two referees' judgment. Names of referees are confidential to the Editorial Board. Authors may be asked to make revisions to their manuscript. If substantial revision is required manuscripts may be re-reviewed before a decision to accept/publish is made. Final acceptance of manuscripts for publication is at the discretion of the Editors.

Authors alone are responsible for the opinions expressed in their papers.

The Analele Universității din Oradea, Seria Geografie

is indexed in:

Erih Plus

Doaj Directory of Open Acces Journals

Ebsco

Index Copernicus

Ulrichsweb Global Serials Directory

Genamics

Scipio

WorldCat

Crossref

Review accredited by CNCSIS, Code 669 "B+" Category

Google Scholar



Analele Universității din Oradea, Seria Geografie

Price of journal:	
Individual	8€
Institutional	12€
Annual subscription	15€

Address of the Editorial Office:

University of Oradea Department of Geography, Tourism and Territorial Planning Territorial Studies and Analysis Centre 1 Universității St., 410087, Oradea, Romania Phone : +40 259 408 475 *e-mail: auog.uoradea@yahoo.com*

On line version:

http://istgeorelint.uoradea.ro/Reviste/Anale/anale.htm

CONTENTS

THE INFLUENCE OF THE ETHNIC AND CONFESSIONAL PARTICULARITIES ON THE INFANT MORTALITY AT THE LOCAL LEVEL (IAȘI COUNTY) Simona Andreea URSACHE (DUMITRIU), Ionel MUNTELE (DOL 10 30892/ange 302101 \$45)	22
EFFECTS OF URBAN WASTE ON HEAVY METALS CONCENTRATION IN CARICA PAPAYA LINN AND SOIL IN ENEKA DUMPSITE, PORT HARCOURT, RIVERS STATE, NIGERIA Olatunde Sunday ELUDOYIN, Mohammed Abdullah GAFAR (DOI 10.30892/auog.302102-840)	31
MULTI-CRITERIA METHOD (WLC) AND GIS MODELING TO ANALYZE SOIL EROSION VULNERABILITY IN CONSTANTINE CITY (ALGERIA) Filali ABDELWAHHAB, Guellouh SAMI, Habibi YAHYAOUI, Bouhata RABAH (DOI 10.30892/auog.302103-811)	41
TRAVEL AND TOURISM INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENT - THE CASE OF KOSOVO Idriz KOVAÇI, Alberta TAHIRI, Fari BUSHI (DOI 10.30892/auog.302104-844) 1	.47
GEOMATICS CONTRIBUTION TO ROAD NETWORK CHARACTERIZATION CASE STUDY: BATNA	
Merdassi ABDELMOUMENE, Kalla MAHDI (DOI 10.30892/auog.302105-817) 1	.57
ANALYZING THE TOURIST BEHAVIOR OF THE INTERNATIONAL STUDENTS IN WARSAW Petrică NIȚOAIA, Gabriel CAMARĂ (DOI 10.30892/auog.302106-842)	67
FLOOD RISK TYPOLOGY SEVERITY AND MANAGEMENT	
Guellouh SAMI, Filali ABDELWAHHAB, Habibi YAHYAOUI, Kalla MOUHAMED ISSAM (DOI 10.30892/auog.302107-827)	.76
THE TOURIST AND TECHNICAL INFRASTRUCTURE SURVEY WITHIN THE ORADEA RURAL LEISURE METROPOLITAN BELT	
Marcu STAȘAC, Marius I. STUPARIU, Corina Florina TĂTAR, Ribana LINC, Liviu BUCUR, Iulian DINCĂ, Stelian NISTOR (DOI 10.30892/auog.302108-857)	.82
CLUJ-NAPOCA - PREMISES OF A POTENTIALLY OVERCROWDED TOURIST DESTINATION	
Alexandra BUZA, Olga POSTEUCA (DOI 10.30892/auog.302109-851) 1	.94

Analele Universității din Oradea, Seria Geografie ISSN 1221-1273, E-ISSN 2065-3409

THE INFLUENCE OF THE ETHNIC AND CONFESSIONAL PARTICULARITIES ON THE INFANT MORTALITY AT THE LOCAL LEVEL (IAȘI COUNTY)

Simona Andreea URSACHE (DUMITRIU)*

"Alexandru Ioan Cuza" University of Iași, Faculty of Geography and Geology, Department of Geography, Iași, Romania, e-mail: simona 93u@yahoo.com

Ionel MUNTELE

""Alexandru Ioan Cuza" University of Iași, Faculty of Geography and Geology, Department of Geography, Iași, Romania, e-mail: <u>imuntele@yahoo.fr</u>

Citation: Ursache, S.A., & Muntele, I. (2020). The Influence of the Ethnic and Confessional Particularities on the Infant Mortality at the Local Level (Iaşi County). *Analele Universității din Oradea, Seria Geografie*, 30(2), 122-130. <u>https://doi.org/10.30892/auog.302101-845</u>

Abstract: The world is today a healthier and safer place than ever, and children have the chance to become responsible adults and to enjoy their lives. Romania has made unquestionable progress, especially in the last two decades, with infant mortality rates increasingly approaching the European average. However, our country still occupies leading places across the European continent on child deaths, with children remaining in our society, the most vulnerable social category. Strong territorial and social disparities mark this positive development. In our study we intend to identify the particularities (ethnic and confessional) that influence, in some cases, child mortality in Iaşi county (four types of communes with distinct ethnic and confessional). Whereas a clearing-up is taking place in Iaşi county between vulnerable socio-economic communities and those with higher levels of development. The results of the study show a stronger correlation between the ethnic factor and the level of infant mortality as opposed to the confessional factor, closely linked to the incidence of educational, economic or demographic factors.

Key words: infant mortality, ethnic component, confessional component, living standard

* * * * * *

INTRODUCTION

Child mortality is one of the most important demographic indicators, expressed in terms of the number of child deaths in the first year of life, and is calculated by reporting deaths under one year of age in 1000 live births in the same year (Reidpath, 2003; Rotariu, 2009). Roland Pressat believes that the infant deaths can be divided into in two categories: endogenous deaths (usually

heritable, congenital malformations or traumatism caused by birth) and exogenous deaths (caused by external risks: infectious, respiratory, food, accident) (Pressat, 1974; Trebici, 1975). In the literature, intense knowledge of infant mortality by age subgroups is very important, especially in the first week of life (0-6 days - early morality), in the first month (0-29 days - neonatal mortality) or up to 11 months (1-11 months post-neonatal mortality) (Dumitrache, 2004).

Both at global and local level this indicator surfing social and economic trends in society, the level of development, the standard of living or the efficiency of the health system. There are high levels of child mortality worldwide in sub-Saharan Africa, but overall progress is being made in reducing child deaths also in Latin American, North Africa or Asia (Onambele et al., 2019; Storeygard et al., 2008).

At European level, the decline in infant mortality which being in the first decades of the nineteenth century, in special in mercantilistic state, economically developed, with a well-organized bureaucracy (state controlled Protestant Church) (Corsini and Viazzo, 1993).



Figure 1. Comparative evolution of infant mortality in Romania and Europe Data source: Bardet and Dupâquier, 1999; World Population Data Sheet, 1995-2019 series, Population Reference Bureau, Washington

Differences between European countries have been steadily decreasing over the 20th century, not only in terms of recent infant mortality but also in terms of decline in fertility or the modicing of matrimonial property (Bardet and Dupaquier, 1999). In this context, Romania, despite the delay caused by the lower level of economic and social development, does not ignore it, and is part of the same general trends at continental level (figure 1). If by 2000 the difference between Romania's average values and the European average values was still considerable, during the last two decades there has been a significant closeness of convergence at continental level with the above mentioned authors.

In present, higher values are noted by the former communist countries (Eastern Europe), but also the Balkan countries that suffered as a result of the military conflicts (Albania, Macedonia, Serbia). The Nordic countries are considered to be the benchmark for health policies with very low values of the indicator analyzed. Within the European Union, the leading place is occupied by our country, even though there has been a constant decrease in child mortality rates in recent years.

At national level infant mortality in 1990 was 26.9‰ and by 2007 it had fallen to 12‰ (Kurkó, 2010), in the context of the transition period, the main drivers being the accessibility of abortion, contraception and family planning, which morning the risk of the unwanted child. However, the North-East region is the region with the highest level of fertility in Romania (Jemna, 2015). The regional city with complex functions, Iași, (after the 1992 census, it ranks third in the urban hierarchy- after Bucharest and Constanta; in 2002 - the second metropolis of the country) is

characterized by the highest birth values of all regions of the country, with remarkable natalist behavioris (Istrate, 2008).

Infant mortality is on of the most widely used indicators to assess population health status and at national scale registred an important descendant trend (Burlea, 2012). According to some researchers, child mortality depends on many risk factors: social status and age of mother, gestational age, etc (Waldhoer et al., 2008).

Gabriela Alexandrescu, Executive President Save The Children Romania, believes that the child mortality rate is a good criterion to see the enormous distance between Romania and the more developed countries in the European Union.

METODOLOGY

The research was based on the data provided by the national Institute of Statistics and the report of 2011, which were further elaborated and corroborated by field surveys. We also used subjective methods in the form of interviews (with mayors, secretaries or social workers). The whole scientific approach was accompanied by statistical analyzes, the most important being the analysis in main components which indicated to us the factors that directly influence infant mortality.

In our research, we have tried to capture a possible influence of ethnic and confessional particularities in the dynamics of the analyzed indicator.

Following the analysis of infant mortality (2001-2017) at national level (in order to highlight trends in child mortality dynamics at Iaşi county level), we selected at a local level four communes with distinctive characteristics: Lungani, the municipality with the highest share of the roma community in the county, Ruginoasa, a commune with a high degree of accessibility and an interstitional position between the cities of Targu Frumos and Pascani, Mircesti, with a large share of the Catholic community and the Periurban Common Miroslava, who has experienced one of the most spectacular developments at national level in recent years (figure 2).



Figure 2. Study area: Iași county

The Presentation of Hypotheses:

H1: Even if our country has seen a significant decrease in child mortality in recent years, at local level there are high child mortality rates, which influence the dynamics of the indicator analyzed at county level.

H2: A number of factors directly influence the dynamics of child mortality in Iaşi county, which is why the decline in values is related to both the increase in living standards and access to quality medical services, as well as health, education and integration policies that reduce these disparities.

RESULTS

During the period analyzed, the Iași county was noticed at national level by a significant decrease in child mortality, reaching low values in the period 2013-2017, similar to the Cluj or Timisoara counties. The lowest values are recorded in the Iași municipality, recognized at national level as a university and medical center with a reputation, with differences between urban and rural areas remaining significant. In this context we considered it necessary to carry out field analysis at local level to confirm or rule out the assumption that infant mortality is higher where the proportion of the Roma population or population with a certain confessional membership has high or even very high infant mortality values (figure 3).



Figure 3. The dynamics of infant mortality in Iași county in 2001-2017 Data source: National Institute of Statistics 2001-2017, Bucharest

Lungani, the poorest commune in EU, it is one of the communes with the most infant deaths and implicitly a very high infant mortality value compared to the other communes in the county. At the same time, it is the commune with the most significant share of the Roma population, this aspect directly influencing the analyzed indicator. The birth rate decreases from 26.99‰ in the period 2001-2006 to 21.84‰ in 2013-2017, even though the birth rate remains very high compared to the county average or to the other compared municipalities. Following the field investigation conducted at the town hall and following the discussions with the chief secretary, with the personnel from the social assistance and the registry, it is noted that most of the infant deaths are among the Roma population, the main causes of death being pneumonia interstitial and bronchopneumonia, very serious respiratory disorders, encephalopathies and accidents caused by aspiration of gastric contents (one case of ingestion of faces by slipping into the septic tank). This commune is a typical example of correlating the values of infant mortality with the ethnic component, in the case of the Roma minority, the most frequent being the problem of the high illiteracy rate, the lack of a stable job, a very low standard of living and an endemic poverty, the phenomenon of the unwanted child or the inadequate care of the baby due to too much responsibility pressing on the shoulders of large families or even leaving the babies in the care of younger siblings frequently causing accidents or even deaths (figure 4). There are also a significant number of social workers in this commune. The rate of illiteracy is declining strongly influenced by the fact that many families live only on the allowance of children, an income they receive only if the children attend a school. From the point of view of proximity the commune is about 45 km from the city of Iaşi, an urban center with the best health system and the highest maternity in Moldova and about 15 km from Târgu-Frumos, an urban center that provides medical services. We can therefore say that the Roma minority influences this indicator, and the development of special States dedicated to them seems the only solution. Even if the integration of the Roma population was raised before the accession to the European Community, the process is long-standing and difficult, with ethnic discrimination still present in European Romania, most likely favored by the lack of involvement of the Roma.



Figure 4. Infant mortality in the analyzed communes, between 2001-2017 Data source: National Institute of Statistics 2001-2017, Bucharest

Investing in their education, ensuring adequate technical-public infrastructure (access to the water network, sewerage, gas), creating jobs, accessing medical services and information (many of the roma women presenting to the doctor even on labor day because the addressability to the doctor is directly influenced by the income), it should be a priority for the local authorities. From a confessional point of view, we chose to compare with Lungani commune, Mircești communes with a Romanian population, homogeneous and predominantly Catholic and Ruginoasa commune, with an exclusively Romanian population and of orthodox religion.



Figure 5. Evolution of the share of the employed population (%) in 2001-2017 Data source: National Institute of Statistics 2001-2017, Bucharest

With a peripheral position, on the border with Neamţ county, on the right bank of Siret, about 75 km from Iaşi, Mirceşti commune registered one of the lowest values of infant mortality in the county, from 2001 to 2006, 17.6‰, a value that drops to 6.3‰ in the period 2013-2017. A worrying decrease is also recorded in the case of the share of employees that almost halves during the reference period (5.77% in 2001-2006, an increase in 2007-2012 - 7.74%, 3.62% in 2013-2017) (figure 5). Following the field investigation we found that in the case of the Catholic population, the migration of the active population is the main problem, the mayor of the commune declaring that about 30% of the commune's population is abroad.

According to him, the Catholic population was much more receptive than the Romanian population, after 1990 because the young people, helped by relatives or by the Catholic communities from other countries, left with job security that allowed them to later support their families left in the country. This aspect can be observed most easily for example by the material condition of the population of the 100% Catholic village of Iugani, in comparison with Mircești, in which the orthodox population is predominant. This aspect can be observed during the Siret valley, where the Catholic population is the majority. Recall that the number of social workers increased from about 40 in the period 2001-2006 to 100 in 2013-2017 and the main causes of infant deaths are congenital malformations or pneumonia. An essential aspect is the fact that over time the communal medical services have been greatly modernized, with 3 medical offices in Mirești, a working point of the Medical Foundation Speranța Barticești, Emergency Center and Permanence Center (operating in the interval 15 : 00-8: 00).

Even if the Catholic communities are conservative, prohibiting abortion or contraception, the migration of the fertile population is reflected in the low birthrate and the low infant mortality rate.

Ruginoasa Commune, with a predominantly Romanian, Orthodox population, is also noted for low birth rates, with much higher values of infant mortality (30.3‰ in 2001-2006, 18.3‰ in 2007-2012 and 8.6‰ in 2013-2017) than in Mircești commune. The standard of living is low, the share of employees decreasing from 5.62% in 2001-2006 to 3.10% in 2013-2017.

Following the field investigation we found out that in the Ruginoasa the employees are predominantly employees of the companies Delpfi Diesel Systems, one of the most important in the county of Iaşi, provider of advanced propulsion solutions for the car manufacturers, Avicola, a company specialized in poultry farming based in Târgu-Frumos or Lear Corporation based in Leţcani, factory of car seats, these also ensuring transportation from the free home (the shuttle thus represents the only chance to a better paid job, the interstitial position between the cities of Easter and Târgu-Frumos facilitating this appearance). However, migration of the young population remains a problem. Juvenile delinquency is also a problem reported by local authorities, which is becoming increasingly worrying. The number of social workers in the period 2001-2006 was around 170, decreasing in the period 2013-2017 to 120, but at present the number is increasing. From the point of view of accessibility to the medical services, the commune is privileged by the location in the proximity of two urban centers quite devolved from this point of view, 12 km from Paşcani, 15 km from Târgu-Frumos and about 60 from the city of Iaşi. In the commune work four doctors.

Miroslava commune is a peri-urban commune in Iași County, and since 2004 it is also part of the metropolitan area. It is one of the most successful joint ventures in Romania, after joining the European Union, with impressive development. In 2015 and 2016, the commune was declared the richest in the country in terms of income, paradoxically the pole of wealth but also of poverty being in Iași county. One of the main factors that generated revenue growth in Miroslava was the fact that many companies in Iași and not only moved their administrative and financial headquarters here. During the analyzed period, officially, the commune doubled its total population (from 7550 to about 14838), but unofficially the population seems to be greatly underestimated. The share of employees is very high compared to the other communes analyzed, 21.51% for the period 2013-2017 and is growing. However, the birth rate does not decrease very much, from 15.12‰ in 2001-2006 to 13.91‰. As it is natural in a community where there are jobs and a high standard of living that brings well-being, migration is lower.

As I mentioned above, in order to complete the statistical analysis and the survey on the field, we have also carried out an analysis in the main components, taking into account the abovementioned socio-demographic indicators.

As we can see in the figure below the factors that best correlate with infant mortality are birth rate, share of the Roma population, share of the number of unemployed looking for the first job, share of the population employed in health and social assistance, the share of employees and of population with higher education (figure 6).



Figure 6. Analysis in main components - the contribution of the factors

In the case of the municipality of Iaşi and of the peri-urban communes (Rediu, Ciurea, Miroslava) or of the cities of Harlau, Târgu Frumos or Pascani, child mortality seems to be influence by the population in health and social care, by the proportion of the population with higher education and by the share of the employed. Settlements with high accessibility to primary educational services are located in favor of the system of communication routes or the big cities, and are usually localities that have known after 1990 the effects of periurbanization of the socio-professional structure: Miroslava, Tomesti, the Valley of the wolf, Barnova in the Metropolitan area of Iaşi. In the case of Lungani we can also signal the existence of a highly low-qualified educational stock in the adult population, which is why we can believe that the propensity of a community to education is inherited behavior, with both negative and positive states tending to perpetuate (Tudora and Muntele, 2012).

Tabel 1. The Pearson correlation matrix

Correlation matrix (Pearson (n)):								
Variables	INFANT _MORT ALITY	BIRTH_ RATE	POP_WORKING_ HEALTH_SISTEM	ACTIVE _POP	EMPLO YEES	UNEMP LOYED	POP_WITHOUT _EDUCATION	POP_HIGHE R_EDUCATI ON	RROMA_POP
INFANT_MORTALITY (2007-	1	0,1418	-0,2809	0,0081	-0,2196	0,1896	0,0702	-0,2013	0,0592
BIRTH_RATE (2007_2016)	0,1418	1	-0,0891	-0,3781	-0,0633	0,3882	0,3073	-0,1577	0,4229
POP_WORKING_HEALTH_SI									
STEM (%-2011)	-0,2809	-0,0891	1	-0,2272	0,6569	-0,0823	-0,0991	0,7587	0,1158
ACTIVE_POP (%-2011)	0,0081	-0,3781	-0,2272	1	-0,2414	-0,2621	-0,1299	-0,0654	-0,2368
EMPLOYEES (%-2011)	-0,2196	-0,0633	0,6569	-0,2414	1	-0,1316	-0,2527	0,7582	0,0273
UNEMPLOYED (%-2011)	0,1896	0,3882	-0,0823	-0,2621	-0,1316	1	0,2497	-0,1564	0,3856
POP_WITHOUT_EDUCATIO									
N (%-2011)	0,0702	0,3073	-0,0991	-0,1299	-0,2527	0,2497	1	-0,3112	0,2355
POP_HIGHER_EDUCATION									
(%-2011)	-0,2013	-0,1577	0,7587	-0,0654	0,7582	-0,1564	-0,3112	1	-0,0054
RROMA_POP (%-2002-2011)	0,0592	0,4229	0,1158	-0,2368	0,0273	0,3856	0,2355	-0,0054	1
Values in bold are different from 0 with a significance level alpha=0.05									

According to the correlation matrix, infant mortality correlates negatively with the population employed in health and social assistance, with employees and with persons with higher education, therefore it is higher where they have low values. The strong correlation of the employed population and the employees with the higher studies shows that these factors constitute a favorable context for the decrease of infant mortality, explaining types 1-2 of the AHC and the Roma population is positively correlated with high birth rates, unemployment and poor education, practically resulting in two distinct where the extremes are Iaşi and Lungani (table 1). It certifies the results of the descriptive statistical analysis and the field surveys carried out.

CONCLUSIONS

From the point of view of the reference indicator, our country has gone a specific road to countries in transition, characterized by a significant reduction in child mortality.

The main contribution of this article is to analyze local events and trends, which are necessary following the analysis of general trends, at national and county level. It is partially confirmed that the high values of the indicator analyzed can be associated in some counties/communes with the existence of important Roma communities. The confessional component has much less influence on child mortality than ethnic, with some principles or rules of religion directly influencing the family's standard of living, the number of members per family or the level of morality, to be open to the West or to deny modernity and to promote traditional principles. The peri-urban areas of large cities have significantly improved the impact of this indicator, in contrast to isolated municipalities that are disadvantaged in terms of access to health infrastructure, where high values are maintained. The results of the study show obvious limitations, generated by the sometimes incomplete information, the general nature of analyzed parameters or the subjectivity of local administrative bodies.

According to the Save The Children Foundation, the main cause of child mortality in our country is premature births; one third of these could be prevented by developing support programs for mothers and children and by the development and modernization of maternity and newborn sections, therefore the development of economic policies, Health and education and investment in these fields seems to be essential at local level in Iași county.

Acknowledgement: This work was co-funded by the European Social Fund, through Operational Programme Human Capital 2014-2020, project number POCU/380/6/13/123623, project title "PhD Students and Postdoctoral Researchers Prepared for the Labour Market!".

REFERENCES

- Bardet, J.-P., Dupâquier, J. (1999). Histoire des populations de l'Europe, Fayard, vol. III, Paris.
- Burlea, A.M. (2012). Multilevel analysis of infant mortality in Romania. Revista de Cercetare și Intervenție Socială, (39), 100-116. Dumitrache, L. (2004). Starea de sănătate a populației României: o abordare geografică, [The Romanian population health status-a geographic approach], Editura Univers Enciclopedic, București.
- Istrate, M. (2008). Relațiile urban-rural în Moldova în perioada contemporană, Edit. Universității "Alexandru Ioan Cuza", Iași, 352.
- Jemna, D. V. (2015). Causality relationship between economic development and fertility in Romania on regional level. *Procedia Economics and Finance*, 20, 334-341.
- Kurkó, I. (2010). Disparități geodemografice și economice din România în perioada de tranziție. Presa Universitară Clujeană.
- Onambele, L., San Martin-Rodríguez, L., Niu, H., Alvarez-Alvarez, I., Arnedo-Pena, A., Guillen-Grima, F., & Aguinaga-Ontoso, I. (2019). Mortalidad infantil en la Unión Europea: análisis de tendencias en el período 1994-2015. In Anales de Pediatría, 91(4), 219-227. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.anpedi.2018.10.022

Pressat, R. (1974). Analiza demografică (Demographic analysis). Editura Științifică, București.

Reidpath, D. D., & Allotey, P. (2003). Infant mortality rate as an indicator of population health. *Journal of Epidemiology & Community Health*, 57(5), 344-346. https://jech.bmj.com/content/57/5/344.

Rotariu, T. (2009). Demografie si sociologia populației. Structuri și procese demografice, Polirom, Iași.

Storeygard, A., Balk, D., Levy, M., & Deane, G. (2008). The global distribution of infant mortality: A subnational Spatial view. *Population, space and place*, 14(3), 209-229. Trebici, V. (1975). Mică enciclopedie de demografie, Editura Științifică și Enciclopedică, București.

Tudora, D., & Muntele, I. (2012). Coeziune teritorială și disparități în Moldova, Ed. Universității "Al. I. Cuza" Iași.

Corsini, C. A., & VIAZZO, P. (1993). The decline of infant mortality in Europe, 1800-1950: four national case studies (pp. 1-86). UNICEF International Child Development Centre.

Waldhoer, T., Wald, M., & Heinzl, H. (2008). Analysis of the spatial distribution of infant mortality by cause of death in Austria in 1984 to 2006. *International Journal of Health Geographics*, 7(1), 1-9.

*** World Population Data Sheet, 1995-2019 series, Population Reference Bureau, Washington, accesed at may 2020.

Submitted: March 21, 2020 Revised: June 12, 2019 Accepted and published online July 15, 2020

EFFECTS OF URBAN WASTE ON HEAVY METALS CONCENTRATION IN CARICA PAPAYA LINN AND SOIL IN ENEKA DUMPSITE, PORT HARCOURT, RIVERS STATE, NIGERIA

Olatunde Sunday ELUDOYIN*

University of Port Harcourt, Department of Geography and Environmental Management, East-West Road, Choba, Port Harcourt, Nigeria, e-mail: <u>olatunde.eludoyin@uniport.edu.ng</u>

Mohammed Abdullah GAFAR

University of Port Harcourt, Department of Geography and Environmental Management, East-West Road, Choba, Port Harcourt, Nigeria, e-mail: <u>gafarabdullahi@gmail.com</u>

Citation: Eludoyin, O.S., & Gafar, M.A. (2020). Effects of urban waste on heavy metals concentration in Carica Papaya Linn and soil in Eneka Dumpsite, Port Harcourt, Rivers State, Nigeria. *Analele Universității din Oradea, Seria Geografie*, 30(2), 131-140. https://doi.org/10.30892/auog.302102-840

Abstract: The study examined the heavy metal concentrations in the tissues of Carica papaya (CP) tissues and soil in Eneka Dumpsite, Port Harcourt, Nigeria. A transect of 100 m x 300 m was laid from the center of the dumpsite. In the transect a 20 m x 20 m quadrat was established at 10 m, 20 m, 50 m, and 300 m (control) from the dumpsite whereby the soil samples and CP tissues (leaf, fruit and root) were collected. Standard laboratory techniques were used to determine the heavy metals in the soil samples and CP tissues. Results showed that heavy metals in CP and soil decreased with increasing distance from the dumpsite. Fe, Pb and Cu in CP tissues varied significantly with distance. In conclusion, there is accumulation of heavy metals in CP around dumpsite and human consumption of such CP should be reduced or totally avoided.

Key words: dumpsite, heavy metals, carica papaya, human health, medicinal

* * * * * *

INTRODUCTION

Solid waste disposal releases toxic substances into the environment (Kouznetsova et al, 2007). Toxic substances which include heavy metals accumulate in the environment above their normal level and cause alterations in the air, plants, soil, water and micro-organisms. The heavy metals which have densities higher than 5g/cm³, are non-biodegradable and persistently accumulate in the ecosystem; hence heavy metals are serious environmental pollutants (Nubi et al., 2009; Ukpong et al., 2013; Obasi et al., 2013; Aladesanmi et al., 2016; Romocea et al., 2018). The contamination of the soil and plants in the ecosystem may pose health hazards to humans by ingesting the contaminants directly and indirectly through the contaminated soil, food chain (soil-

^{*} Corresponding Author

plant-human or soil-plant-animal-human), drinking of contaminated groundwater or surface water (Herman et al., 2019a,b,c). Subsequently, the solid waste dumpsite contaminates the soil through disintegration and oxidation processes which in the long run discharge leachate from dumpsites into the neighbouring soils and groundwater (Nagarajan et al., 2012).

The release of heavy metals to the ecosystem would have been reduced in the developing countries but the use of landfill as a way of waste disposal has been a major problem; however open dumps have been the most common method of solid waste disposal.

The threat of heavy metals to the ecosystem would have been reduced especially in the developing countries but the preparation of landfill is a major system of arranging waste in numerous under-developed nations including Nigeria (Adewole, 2009). Thus, open dumps have been the antiquated and commonest way for solid waste dumping. Subsequently, producing solid waste and inadequate dumping system is dangerous to the earth because it leads to ecological contamination particularly in the urban communities (Amadi et al., 2010). Perpetual movements from the provincial ranges to urban zones and population increase in sub-Saharan African nations have aggravated the rate of pollution increase (Awomeso et al., 2010; Najib et al., 2012). Furthermore, lack of extension services and terrible system execution are significant reasons for urban contamination from urban waste especially in Nigeria as this behaviour can result in exposure to heavy metals which exceed health standards.

Studies have shown that dumpsites are used for cultivating crops like cassava, maize and vegetables because of the perceived fertility of the soil in and around the dumpsite (Amadi and Nwankoala, 2013); but this attitude may be deadly if there is no proactive measure to intervene and enlighten the public. This is because the crops absorb heavy metals from the polluted soil and when consumed by man, it could constitute health challenges in the body system (Rotich et al., 2006; Njagi, 2013). It is already established that, the uptake of heavy metals in crops generates a threat to humans and may lead to death of man particularly children. World Health Organization (WHO) assessed that most of the diseases confronting mankind in the recent times came about due to continued contact to environmental contamination (Rotich et al., 2006; Pruss-Ustun and Corvalan, 2006).

Several studies had been carried out on the uptake of heavy metals by crops or plants. This included the study that examined the impacts of dumpsite on spinach, cowpea and potatoes in Mpape dumpsite, Abuja whereby the concentrations of mercury, copper, and cadmium in plants of the dumpsite were above FEPA limit, except spinach that contained Iron and zinc values within the safety limit (Magaji, 2012). Futhermore, the concentration of Cd was more than other heavy metals in all the vegetables investigated (Magaji, 2012). The impacts of dumpsite on the Amaranthus sp vegetable around the dumpsite in Anyigba, Kogi State showed that the concentration of Fe, Zn and Cu at the dumpsite was 7.27 ppm, 6.53 ppm and 6.53 ppm respectively and higher than that of the abandoned dumpsite; though the heavy metals were found to be within the acceptable limits (Musa and Ifatimehin, 2013). A study considered the ecological status of heavy metals in soil of waste dumpsite in Ido-Osun, Osogbo and it was observed that the concentration of Zn was the highest (1133±897 mg/kg) and Cr was the lowest (3.63±2.46 mg/kg) (Olayiwola and Onwordi, 2015). Also, a study investigated the heavy metals contents in both soils and plants in a non-functional waste dumpsites in Port Harcourt whereby the concentrations of Pb and Cd in the plants were higher at the dumpsite than the control site (Eshalomi-Mario and Taneel, 2015); while another study assessed various metals on edible leafy plants of Umuka and Ubahu dumpsites in Okigwe, Imo State, Nigeria whereby heavy metals (Cd, Fe, Pb, Mn, Zn, Cr, Ni and Cu) were significantly higher in different parts of Amaranthus hybridus, Talinum triangulare, Carica papaya, Ipomea batatas and Luffa aegyptica; and that the concentration of Cd among other heavy metals was found to be the highest in the leafy plants (Obasi et al., 2013). None of these studies considered the heavy metal absorption by Carica papaya tissue in a functional dumpsite. Besides, most of the dumpsites in Port Harcourt Metropolis are functional and lots of farming activities are going on around them to subsistently cultivate some crops especially vegetables

(pumpkin, okro, pepper), yet some crops grow naturally and Carica papaya is inclusive. Against this background, the study examined the heavy metals uptake by Carica papaya tissues and soil in Eneka Dumpsite, Port Harcourt, Nigeria.

MATERIAL AND METHODS Study Area

The study was carried out in Eneka Dumpsite, Port Harcourt Metropolis, Rivers State, Nigeria. The study area is located between latitude 4° 47' 14'' and 5° 06' 58'' North and longitudes 7° 00' 14'' East and 7[°] 02' 47'' East (figure 1). The criteria used in selecting the study area included proximity to the urban area, accessibility and availability of Carica papaya. Eneka Dumpsite is about 200 m in length and 425 m width tapering to about 130 m along Igwuruta/Eneka highway (Abah and Ohimain, 2010). The area is located in the sub-equatorial region and enjoys the tropical climate. The topography of the area ranges between 16 m and 40 m above the sea level (Mmom and Fred-Nwagwu, 2013) and has the vegetation type similar to tropical rainforest. Generally, the vegetation is consistently nourished with high rainfall and high temperature which provide favourable condition for the growth of varieties of tall and big trees like Swietenia macrophylla, Triplochiton scleroxylon, Terminalia superba, and Elaeis guineensis (Eludoyin et al., 2012). The soils of the area can be categorized as freshwater brown loams and sandy loams.



Figure 1. Port Harcourt Metropolis showing Eneka Dumpsite Location Source: Rivers State Ministry of Lands and Survey, 2019

Research Design and Site Description

The research design of this study was experimental design whereby the study made use of both experimental plot (Eneka Dumpsite) and the control plot. The experimental location of the study was Eneka Dumpsite while the control plot was a fallow land of about 5 years and about 300 m away from the dumpsite. Waste deposited at this site included plastic materials, bottles, cartons, textile materials, electrical wires, cans, leather materials, metal objects, used oil cans and commercial and domestic wastes of various compositions (Eludoyin et al., 2012; Abah and Ohimain, 2013; Mmom and Fred-Nwagwu, 2013; Avwiri and Olatubosun, 2014).

Carica papaya Sampling Technique

A transect of 100 m x 300 m was laid from the center of the dumpsite. In the transect, a 20 m x 20 m quadrat was established at 10 m, 20 m, 50 m and 300 m (control) from dumpsite whereby the tissues (leaf, fruit and root) of Carica papaya were collected on the identified papaya stand (figure 1). Three Carica papaya stands of at least 10 m apart were sampled in each 20 m x 20 m quadrat at each distance from the dumpsite. From each Carica papaya stand, 3 composite samples of each of fresh and mature leaves, mature fruits and roots were collected after being homogenized (Tigist et al., 2014). Each composite sample was properly labelled according to their stands and distance from the dumpsite. Thus, a total of 9 samples of each Carica papaya tissue were taken to the laboratory for further analysis.

Laboratory Analysis for Carica papaya tissues

The leaf, stem, fruit and root samples of Carica papaya were thoroughly washed with running tap water and rinsed with deionized water to remove any soil particles attached to the plant surfaces. The fruit samples were scrapped to separate the seed from the fruit and thereafter the fruit only were crushed. Similarly, the leaf and root was crushed. All the tissues were ovendried at 70 °C for 24 hours. After cooling at ambient temperature, the dried tissues were weighed and ground into fine powder and thereafter were kept in pre-cleaned screw capped polyethylene container for further metal concentration analysis. The sample digests of the fruit, leaf, stem and root were analyzed in five replicates for Iron (Fe), Lead (Pb), Nickel (Ni), Cadmium (Cd), and Copper (Cu). These heavy metals were determined by Atomic Absorption Spectrophotometry (AAS) of the Association of Official Agricultural Chemists (AOAC) standard (Akinola and Adenuga, 2008). All the samples were quantified in quadruplicate. The analysis was carried out in the Agronomy Laboratory of the University of Ibadan, Ibadan, Nigeria.

Soil Sampling Techniques

A transect of 100 m x 300 m was laid from the center of the dumpsite. In the transect, a 20 m x 20 m quadrat was established at 10 m, 20 m, 50 m and 300 m (control) from dumpsite whereby soil samples were collected from the topsoil (0-15cm) (figure 1). Three soil samples were collected around every selected Carica papaya stand into the well-labelled polythene packs. Thus, nine soil samples were collected at each distance from the dumpsite. The soil specimens were air-dried and sieved with 2 mm mesh for laboratory examination.

Laboratory Analysis for Soil Samples

Extracts to be used for determining heavy metals were obtained by leaching soil samples using 0.1N EDTA and 5 g of each sample was weighed into a clean, dry silica dish, covered and ignited in a furnace for 6 h at 500 °C until a grey white ash was obtained (Nwaichi et al., 2014). The cover of the dish was opened to allow for escape of gases. To cool ash samples, 5 ml of 10 % HCl was added to enhance dissolution and 5 ml of 10 % HNO₃ was added thereafter and set on a water bath to dissolve completely. The solution was later relocated into a clean dry 50 ml standard volumetric flask and marked up with distilled water (Khan et al., 2008). Extracts used for determining heavy metals were obtained by leaching soil samples using 0.1N EDTA. The concentrations of extractable trace metals including Fe, Pb, Ni, Cd and Cu were determined using AAS of AOACs standard (Nazli et al., 2010; Naeem et al., 2012). The blank reagent and standard reference soil materials was included in each sample batch to verify the accuracy and

precision of the digestion procedure and also for subsequent analyses. All the samples were quantified in quadruplicate. The analysis was carried out in the Agronomy Laboratory of the University of Ibadan, Ibadan, Nigeria.

Method of Data Analysis

Descriptive and inferential statistics were used to analyze the data obtained on soil samples and tissues of Carica papaya. Analysis of variance (ANOVA) was used to determine the significant differences at p<0.05 of heavy metals in soil and Carica papaya with respect to distances from the dumpsite. Relationships between heavy metals in the soil and tissues of Carica papaya were determined using Spearman's rank correlation statistics while scatter diagram was used to depict the correlation between the heavy metals in soil and tissues in Carica papaya. The mean values of the heavy metals in soil were compared with the permissible levels set by United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA), Department of Petroleum Resources (DPR) in Nigeria while that of C. papaya tissues were compared with the permissible levels of the World Health Organization (WHO). Pollution Load Index (PLI) for each study site was evaluated (Tomllinson et al., 1980). The PLI was obtained as a contamination factor (CF) of each metal with respect to the natural background value in the soil was computed using Equations (1) and (2) (Ogunmodede et al., 2016). CFs were the heavy metal loads at the baseline and CF>1 indicated heavy metal accumulation or pollution in soil from the test site (Agunbiade and Fawale, 2009). Translocation factors were computed for the heavy metals to quantify the efficiency of Carica papaya to accumulate in a given heavy metal and can be PLI>1 or PLI<1. When PLI>1, the location is being polluted and is of pollution concern (Uwah et al., 2012; Ololade, 2014).

Translocation factor (TF) was determined using the standard method (Ogunmodede et al., 2016).

 $CF = C_{sample} / C_{background} \dots (1)$

 $PLI = [CF1 \times CF2 \times CF3 \times ... \times CFn]^{1/n}.$ (2)

where,

CF=contamination factor, n = number of metals = 5; Csample= metal concentrate on in polluted soils; Cbackground= mean natural background value of that metal.



Figure 2. Layout of the sampling sites for Soil and Carica papaya sample collection Source: Researchers' Fieldwork, 2019

RESULTS

Heavy metal uptake by Carica papaya with increasing distance from dumpsite

The findings revealed that the mean concentration of Fe decreased with increasing distance from the dumpsite. The mean concentration of Fe was lowest in the Carica papaya tissues in the control site (table 1). However, the concentration of Fe was the highest heavy metal at all the distances from the dumpsite considered for the study. The concentration of Fe was highest in the leaf at all distances from the dumpsite. More importantly, Fe concentrations at different distances from the dumpsite varied significantly among the tissues of Carica papaya (F=7.18, p<0.05). The mean Pb was highest in the root of Carica papaya at 10m (4.8±8.6 mg/kg); 20 m (3.5±0.3 mg/kg) and 50 m (2.7±0.3 mg/kg) of distance away from the dumpsite. In the root, leaf, and fruit; the concentrations of Pb decreased with increasing distance from the dumpsite. Furthermore, Ni and Cd were lower in concentrations compared to the level of availability of other heavy metals investigated. Their concentrations were slightly varied with increasing distance from the dumpsite. The concentration of Cu was highest in the root at all points of study from the dumpsite and the mean Cu significantly varied among the tissues in the study area (F=1.27, p<0.05). Summarily, majority of the heavy metals were concentrated in the root, followed by the leaf and lowest in the fruit. Generally, the mean concentrations of heavy metal contents in the tissues of Carica papaya in the dumpsite occurred in the decreasing order of Fe>Cu>Pb>Ni>Cd (table 1). Comparing the level of concentrations of heavy metals with the WHO permissible level, Fe, Ni and Pb concentrations were higher than the permissible level (table 1).

Parameters	Tissues	10m	20m	50m	300m	F value	F value	WHO
(mg/kg)					(Control)	$(p < 0.05)^+$	(p<0.05) ⁺⁺	
		Mean±SD	Mean±SD	Mean±SD	Mean±SD		_	
Fe	Root	134.2±21.6	127.1±12.3	108.3±10.1	98.2±6.2	4.81*	7.18*	425
	Leaf	189±20.2	156±11.2	121.3±5.5	98.0±7.3	5.27*		
	Fruit	143.0±19.5	106.1±15.4	97.3±5.6	80.0±9.3	12.95*		
Pb	Root	4.8±8.6	3.5±0.4	2.7±0.3	1.8±3.5	1.25*	1.17*	0.1
	Leaf	3.7±1.6	2.6±0.8	2.3±0.9	1.9±0.5	2.14*		
	Fruit	3.9±1.4	2.7±0.6	1.8±0.2	1.1±0.5	2.67*		
Ni	Root	0.8±0.1	0.6±0.1	0.3±0.2	0.2±0.1	0.07	0.29	67
	Leaf	0.7±0.2	0.6±0.1	0.3±0.1	0.2±0.1	0.35		
	Fruit	0.5±0.1	0.4±0.1	0.3±0.1	0.2±0.1	0.27		
Cd	Root	0.7±0.1	0.5±0.1	0.4 ± 0.1	0.2±1.7	0.12	0.68	0.05
	Leaf	0.7±0.2	0.5±0.1	0.3±0.1	0.2±0.1	0.91		
	Fruit	0.5±0.1	0.3±0.1	0.2±0.1	0.1±0.0	0.34		
Cu	Root	7.6±1.8	7.5±1.1	7.3±0.9	7.2±0.8	0.74	1.27*	73
	Leaf	6.1±3.8	5.4±2.4	5.1±2.3	5.0±1.9	0.75]	
	Fruit	6.0±1.5	5.3±0.3	4.9±0.6	4.7±1.9	1.32		

 Table 1. Heavy metals in the tissues of Carica papaya at different distances from the dumpsite

 (Source: WHO permissible levels: Bigdeli and Selsepour, 2008; Ogunkunle et al., 2014; Hailemariam et al., 2015; Researchers' Analysis, 2019)

*F value is significant; + F value of each tissue; ++F value of heavy metals for all tissues; SD-Standard Deviation; n=36;

Effects of dumpsite on heavy metal concentrations in soil

The concentrations of heavy metals in soils at different distances from the dumpsite are shown in table 2. The result reveals that the concentration of Fe was 1663.0 mg/kg, 1571.0 mg/kg and 692 mg/kg at 10 m, 20 m and 50 m respectively while at the control plot, it was 605.0 mg/kg. The concentrations of Pb, Ni, Cd and Cu also decreased with increasing distance from the dumpsite. The concentrations of heavy metals investigated varied significantly with distance from the dumpsite. The result also revealed that the concentration of Fe was the highest while Ni was the lowest at all the distances considered for this study. The concentrations of heavy metals were significantly varied with distance from the dumpsite. The result also revealed for this study. The concentrations of heavy metals were significantly varied with distance from the dumpsite.

Ni, Cd and Cu (10 m and 20 m away only) were higher than the permissible limit of DPR while the concentration of Cd at 10 m away from the dumpsite only was higher than the permissible limit of USEPA (table 3). The mean concentrations of heavy metal contents in soils at different distances from the dumpsite occurred in the decreasing order of Fe>Pb>Cd>Cu>Ni (table 2).

Parameters	10 m	20 m	50 m	300 m (Control)	F value $(p < 0.05)$	USEPA	DPR
(ing/kg)	Mean±SD	Mean±SD	Mean±SD	Mean±SD	(p<0.03)		
Fe	1663±21.2	1571.0±18.4	692.0±7.8	605.0±9.2	13.06*		5000
Pb	220.0±8.6	175.0±6.4	105.0±5.2	102.0±3.5	5.41*	300	85
Ni	23.0±3.1	16.0±2.6	12.5±1.5	9.7±1.2	2.91*		35
Cd	80.0±5.8	65.0±4.7	45.0±2.4	17.5±1.7	4.70*	70	0.8
Cu	42.5±4.8	39.0±4.5	29.5±3.3	17.7±1.9	1.75*	250	36

Table 2. Heavy metal concentrations in soils at different distances from the dumpsite (Sources: DPR, 2002; Chiroma et al., 2014; USEPA, 2016; Researchers' Analysis, 2019)

*F value is significant; SD-Standard Deviation

Contamination Factor and Pollution Loading Index of Heavy Metals in Soil

Contamination factor (CF) and pollution load index (PLI) were used to assess heavy metal contaminations in soil located in and around Eneka Dumpsite (table 3). The CF for the five metals at different distances (10 m, 20 m, and 50 m) were relatively high ranging from 1.03 in Pb to 4.58 in Cd. The analysis has also shown that the CFs decreased with increasing distance from the dumpsite. Furthermore, the CF of Cd was the highest at all distances from the dumpsite considered in this study. Thus, CF at the distance of 10 m, 20 m and 50 m away from the dumpsite is arranged in the decreasing order of Cd>Fe>Cu>Ni>Pb; Cd>Fe>Cu>Pb>Ni and Cd>Cu>Ni>Fe>Pb respectively. The CF of all the heavy metals can be grouped into very severe contamination (table 4). Nevertheless, the PLI was highest at 10 m distance from the dumpsite while the least was observed at 50 m away from the dumpsite. All PLIs were greater than unity and the values fell within moderate pollution (table 4).

 Table 3. Contamination Factors (CF) of Heavy Metals in Soils around the Mechanic Workshop (Source: Researcher's Analysis, 2019)

Heavy Metals	10 m	20 m	50 m	Natural Background Concentration*
Fe	2.75	2.60	1.14	605.0±9.2
Pb	2.16	1.72	1.03	102.0±3.5
Ni	2.37	1.65	1.29	9.7±1.2
Cd	4.58	3.71	2.57	17.5±1.7
Cu	2.40	2.20	1.67	17.7±1.9
PLI	2.74	2.27	1.45	

*Mean natural background concentration (\pm SD, n = 5)

Table 4.	Significance	of intervals	of contam	ination/pollu	tion index	(C/P)
	(Sources: Ass	suncao et al.,	2003; Ogun	modede et al.,	2016)	

Class	Contamination factor index
<1	Very slight contamination
0.10-0.25	Slightly contamination
0.26-0.5	Moderate contamination
0.51-0.75	Severe contamination
0.76-1.00	Very severe contamination
1.10-2.0	Slight pollution
2.1-4.0	Moderate pollution
4.1-9.0	Severe pollution
9.1-16.0	Very severe pollution
>16.0	Excessive pollution

Translocation Factor (TF)

The transfer of the heavy metals from soil to Carica papaya tissues in Eneka Dumpsite is presented in table 5. TF is the ratio of the concentration of metal in the aerial portion of the plant to the total concentration in the part in the soil. The result showed that at 10 m away from the dumpsite, the heavy metals occurred in this decreasing order of Fe>Cd>Cu>Pb>Ni; at 20 m, they follow the decreasing order of Fe>Ni>Cd>Pb>Cu; at 50 m, the heavy metals also occurred in the decreasing order of Fe>Ni>Pb>Cu>Cd; while at the control plot (300 m), the TFs of heavy metals occurred in the decreasing order of Ni>Fe>Pb>Cd>Cu. Translocation factors of all the heavy metals in the Carica papaya parts were higher than 1 (table 5). Thus, it may be difficult to translocate metals from the roots to the shoots and as a result, the roots may contain more concentration of the metals.

Haarm Matala	Distance					
neavy wietais	10 m	20 m	50 m	300 m		
Fe	2.47	2.06	2.01	1.81		
Pb	1.58	1.51	1.52	1.67		
Ni	1.50	1.67	2.00	2.00		
Cd	1.71	1.60	1.25	1.50		
Cu	1.59	1.43	1.41	1.35		

 Table 5. Translocation Factor (TF) of heavy metals from soil to Carica papaya tissues (Source: Researchers' Analysis, 2019)

Relationships between heavy metals in Carica papaya tissues and soil

The correlations between heavy metals in soil and Carica papaya tissues were strong and positive except the relationship between Fe soil and Fe fruit; and Cu soil and Cu fruit (table 6). The coefficient of determination (R^2) of the correlations were above 0.90 except for the relationships in Fe soil and Fe fruit (R^2 =0.691); Fe soil and Fe leaf (R^2 =0.8919); Pb soil and Pb leaf (R^2 =0.8734); Ni soil and Ni leaf (R^2 =0.8809); and Cu soil and Cu fruit (R^2 =0.6979); which were observed not to be significant at p<0.05 (table 6). The positive and strong correlations (\geq 0.90) showed that more than 90% of the heavy metals in the tissues of Carica papaya around Eneka Dumpsite were absorbed from the soil and through the root.

 Table 6. Correlations between heavy metals in soil and Carica papaya tissues (Source: Researchers' Analysis, 2019)

	Fe Soil	Pb Soil	Ni Soil	Cd Soil	Cu Soil
Fe Root	0.976^{*}	0.964^{*}	0.941	0.982^{*}	0.980^{*}
Fe Leaf	0.944	0.976^{*}	0.984^{*}	0.978^{*}	0.959^{*}
Fe Fruit	0.831	0.926	0.993*	0.926	0.884
Pb Root	0.904	0.956^{*}	0.993*	0.974^{*}	0.947
Pb Leaf	0.834	0.935	0.995^{*}	0.912	0.867
Pb Fruit	0.921	0.971*	0.994^{*}	0.968^{*}	0.942
Ni Root	0.969*	0.992^{*}	0.974^{*}	0.960^{*}	0.944
Ni Leaf	0.988^{*}	0.977^{*}	0.939	0.965*	0.962^{*}
Ni Fruit	0.932	0.955^{*}	0.975^{*}	0.991*	0.975^{*}
Cd Root	0.880	0.922	0.976^{*}	0.985^{*}	0.963*
Cd Leaf	0.944	0.985^{*}	0.989^{*}	0.963*	0.940
Cd Fruit	0.889	0.959^{*}	0.999^{*}	0.952*	0.919
Cu Root	0.974^{*}	0.975^{*}	0.957*	0.979*	0.972*
Cu Leaf	0.854	0.957*	0.990*	0.881	0.835
Cu Fruit	0.894	0.973^{*}	0.998*	0.926	0.889

DISCUSSION

Findings reveal that only Cd and Pb were higher in the tissues of Carica papaya than the WHO permissible levels of 0.2 mg/kg and 0.3 mg/kg respectively. The high Cd concentration in

the tissues of Carica papaya in the study area may be attributed to the inadvertent uptake and translocation (Asuncao et al., 2003; Obasi et al., 2013) and may lead to phytotoxicity in plant (Obasi et al., 2013). Cd in soil was higher than the permissible level of DPR (0.8 mg/kg) while it was only the Cd at 10 m away from the dumpsite that was higher than the permissible levels of USEPA (70 mg/kg). The high concentration of Cd in the entire study area is a great concern, though higher around the dumpsite. This can be attributed to the presence of waste like battery, engine oils, metal parts such as radiator which constitute part of the waste deposited in the dumpsite (Odoh et al., 2006).

The high levels of Cd and Pb may be dangerous to human health as there is tendency of injecting the toxic substance into the food chain thereby accumulating easily in the human body. Ang et al., (2003) reported that Pb is known to be toxic even at low concentration especially in young children and that the ingestion of Pb may result to kidney disorder, brain damage, sensory disturbances. High Cd in the human body can also lead to kidney problem, respiratory system malfunctions, bone damage and cancer (Godt et al., 2006). Translocation factors of all the heavy metals in the Carica papaya parts were higher than 1. Thus, it may be difficult to translocate metals from the roots to the shoots and as a result, the roots may contain more concentrations of the metals. Since the translocation factors of heavy metals in this study were greater than one, this indicated that there was high root to shoot translocation of metals in Carica papaya because translocation factors are always based on the root uptake of the heavy metals and not the foliar absorption of atmospheric metal deposits (Awode et al., 2006). This further proves that Carica papaya has the potentials to be used for phyto-extraction of the metals in the environment (Yoon et al., 2006; Cui et al., 2007). The higher contamination factor of Cd in the study area suggests that Cd was a major heavy metal being absorbed by plants especially Carica papaya and this confirms its high presence in the soil. The PLI of heavy metals in the study area is also found to be highest at the distance of 10 m from the dumpsite and reduced with the increase in distance from the dumpsite. This trend indicates that there is occurrence of dilution and dispersion of heavy metal contents through the soil with increasing distance from the source areas (Chakravarty and Patgiri, 2009). The higher values of PLI showed that anthropogenic sources contribute immensely as heavy metal sources in the study area. It was reported that lower values of PLI imply that there was no major input from anthropogenic sources (Chakravarty and Patgiri, 2009. The relationships between the heavy metals in Carica papaya and soil were positive and strong.

The results simply explained that the heavy metals accumulated in the soils are transported to the tissues of Carica papaya through their roots by the process of absorption (Uwah et al., 2012). Thus, the absorption of heavy metals in the tissues of C. papaya was greatly controlled by the content of heavy metals in the soil solution (Tigist et al., 2014).

CONCLUSION

The study has demonstrated that heavy metals especially Pb and Cd were absorbed by the tissues of Carica papaya with most of the heavy metals being absorbed by the root and leaf. The concentrations of heavy metals varied significantly with distance from the dumpsite as their concentrations in the Carica papaya tissues decreased with increasing distance from the dumpsite. The heavy metal concentrations in the tissues of C. papaya and soil in the study area occurred in the decreasing order of Fe>Cu>Pb>Ni>Cd; and Cd had the highest contamination factor despite its lowest presence in the soil samples. Positive and strong correlations existed between the heavy metals in the tissues of C. papaya and heavy metal contents in soil except the correlations between Fe soil and Fe leaf; and Cu soil and Cu fruit. Thus, consuming any tissue or part of Carica papaya grown or surviving close to the dumpsite may lead to accumulation of the heavy metals in the body and can cause human ailments such as kidney disorder, brain damage, reductive system malfunction and disturbance of the respiratory organs. The study therefore recommended that the human consumption of C. papaya tissues especially the root and leaf for medicinal purposes around the dumpsite ($\leq 50m$ away) should be discouraged.

Government and waste disposal agencies should prevent indiscriminate disposal of wastes especially those that may be the sources of heavy metals. In addition, government can intensify efforts to deliberately grow Carica papaya around the dumpsite not for human consumption but to be used for phyto-extraction because of its potentials to absorb heavy metals.

REFERENCES

- Abah, S.O., & Ohimain, E. (2010). Assessment of dumpsite rehabilitation potential using the integrated risk based approach: a case study of Eneka, Nigeria. World Applied Sciences Journal, 8(4), 436-442.
- Adewole, A.T. (2009). Waste management towards sustainable development in Nigeria: A case study of Lagos State. International NGO Journal, 4(4), 173-179.
- Agunbiade, F.O., & Fawale, A.T. (2009). Use of Siam weed biomarker in assessing heavy metal contamination in traffic and solid waste polluted areas. *International Journal of Environmental Science & Technology*, 6(2), 267-278
- Akinola, M.O., & Adenuga, A.A. (2008). Determination of the levels of some heavy metals in african pear (Dacryodes edulis) marketed in Lagos metropolis, Nigeria. *Journal of Applied Sciences and Environmental Management*, 12(1), 33-37.
- Aladesanmi, O.T., Agboola, F.K., & Adeniyi, I.F. (2016). Distribution of heavy metals in surface sediments from streams and their associated fishponds in Osun State, Nigeria. *Journal of Health and Pollution*, 6(11), 34-46.
- Amadi, A.N., & Nwakwoala, H.O. (2013). Evaluation of heavy metal in soils from Enyimba Dumpsite in Aba, Southeastern Nigeria using contamination factors and geo-accumulation index. *Energy and Environment Research*, 3(1), 125-134
- Amadi, A.N., Ameh, M.I., & Jisa, J. (2010). The impact of dumpsites on groundwater quality in Markurdi Metropolis, Benue State. Natural and Applied Sciences Journal, 11(1), 90-102.
- Ang, H.H., Lee, E.F., & Matsumato, K. (2003). Analysis of Lead Contents in Herbal Preparation in Malaysia. *Human and Toxicology*. 22(8), 445-451.
- Assuncao, A.G.L., Schat, H., & Aarts, M.G.M. (2003). Thlaspi caerulescens, an attractive model species to study heavy metal hyper-accumulation in plants. *New Phytologist*, 159, 351-360.
- Avwiri, G.O., & Olatubosun, S.A. (2014). Assessment of environmental radioactivity in selected dumpsites in Port Harcourt, Rivers State, Nigeria. *International Journal of Scientific & Technology Research*, 3(4), 263-269.
- Awode, U.A., Uzairu, A., Balarabe, M.L., Okunola, O.J., & Adewusi, S.G. (2008). Levels of some Trace Metals in the Fadama Soils and Pepper (Capsicum annuum) along the bank of River Challawa, Nigeria. *Asian J. Sci. Res.*1 6.
- Awomeso, J.A., Taiwo, A.M., Gbadebo, A.M., & Arimoro, A.O. (2010). Waste disposal and pollution management in urban areas: A workabale remedy for the environment in developing countries. *American Journal of Environmental Sciences*, 6(1), 26-32.
- Bigdeli, M., & Seilsepour, M. (2008). Investigation of metals accumulation in some vegetables irrigated with waste water in Shahre Rey-Iran and toxicological implications. *Journal of Agriculture and Environmental Science*, 4, 86-92.
- Chakravarty, M., & Patgiri, A. D. (2009). Metal pollution assessment in sediments of the Dikrong River, NE India. *Journal* of Human Ecology, 27(1), 63-67.
- Chiroma, T.M., Ebewele, R.O., & Hymore, F.K. (2014). Comparative assessment of heavy metal levels in soil, vegetables and urban grey waste water used for irrigation in Yola and Kano. *International Refereed Journal of Engineering* and Science, 3(2), 01-09.
- Cui, S., Zhou, Q., & Chao, L., (2007). Potential hyper-accumulation of Pb, Zn, Cu and Cd in endurant plants distributed in an old semetery, northeast, China. *Environmental Geology* 51, 1043-1045.
- Department of Petroleum Resources (DPR), (2002). Nigeria environmental guidelines and standards for the petroleum industry in Nigeria (EGASPIN) (revised edition). Department of Petroleum Resources, Ministry of Petroleum and Mineral Resources, Abuja, Nigeria, 1-415.
- Eludoyin, O.S., Utang, P.B., & Obafemi, A.A. (2012). GIS, urban forestry and climate change: a review. Research Journal of Environmental and Earth Sciences. 4(6), 307-313.
- Eshalomi-Mario, T.N., & Tanee1, F.B.G. (2015). Phytodiversity assessment in abandoned solid waste dumpsites in Port Harcourt, Nigeria. *Annual Research and Review in Biology*, 6(6), 379-389.,
- Godt, J., Scheidig, F., Grosse-Siestrup, C., Esche, V., Brandenburg, P., Reich, A., & Groneberg, D. A. (2006). The toxicity of cadmium and resulting hazards for human health. *Journal of occupational medicine and toxicology*, 1(1), 1-6.
- Hailemariam, T., Aregahegn, A., Bekele, T., & Madhusudhan, A. (2015). Investigation of the levels of selected metals in edible and medicinal fruits grown in Dilla, Ethiopia. *Research Journal of Chemical and Environmental Sciences*, 3(4), 44-53.
- Herman, G.V., Gaceu, O., Mester, C., Baias, S., Caciora, T., & Wendt, J.A. (2019a). Spatial analysis of water quality in natura 2000 Sites Bihor, Romania. *Journal of Environmental Protection and Ecology*, 20(4), 2121-2129.
- Herman, G.V., Ilies, D.C., Gaceu, O., Ilies, A., Mester, C., Ilies, M., & Dumitru, M. (2019b). Some considerations concerning the quality of groundwater in the Natura 2000 Lunca Barcaului (Barcaului Meadow) site, Romania. *Journal of Environmental Protection and Ecology*, 20(3), 1102-1109.
- Herman, G.V., Ilies, D.C., Sonko, S.M., Gaceu, O., Ilies, A., Josan, I., Mester, C. (2019c). Study regarding the quality of undersground water within Natura 2000 Cefa site (ROSCI 0025), Romania. *Bulletin of L.N. Gumilyov Eurasian National University. Chemistry. Geography. Ecology Series*, 129(4), 91-99.

- Khan, S., Cao, Q., Zheng, Y.M., Huang, Y.Z., & Zhu. Y.G. (2008). Health risks of heavy metals in contaminated soils and food crops irrigated with wastewater in Beijing, China. *Environmental Pollution*, 152, 686–692.
- Kouznetsova, M., Hauang, Z., Ma, J., Lessner, L., & Carpenter, D. (2007). Increased rate of hospitalization for diabetes and residential proximity of hazardous waste sites. *Environmental Health Perspectives*, 115, 75-85.
- Magaji, J. Y. (2012). Effects of waste dump on the quality of plants cultivated around Mpape dumpsite FCT Abuja, Nigeria. Ethiopian Journal of Environmental Studies and Management, 5(4), 567-573.
- Mmom, P.C., & Fred-Nwagwu, F.W. (2013). Analysis of landuse and landcover change around the city of Port Harcourt, Nigeria. *Global Advanced Research Journal of Geography and Regional Planning*, 2(5), 076-086
- Musa, S.D., Ifatimehin O.O. (2013). Human health implications of waste dump cultivated vegetables in Anyigba, Kogi State, Nigeria Research Journal of Environmental and Earth Sciences, 5(12), 710-713.
- Naeem, K., Yawar, W., Akhter, P., & Rehana, I. (2012). Atomic absorption spectrometric determination of cadmium and lead in soil after total digestion. Asia-Pacific Journal of Chemical Engineering, 7, 295–301.
- Nagarajan, R., Thirumalaisamy, S., & Lakshumanan, E. (2012). Impact of leachate on groundwater pollution due to nonengineered municipal solid waste landfill sites of erode city, Tamil Nadu, India. *Iranian Journal of Environmental Health Science and Engineering*, 9(1), 35.
- Najib, N.W.A.Z., Mohammed, S.A., Ismail, S.A., & Ahmad, W.A.A.W. (2012). Assessment of heavy metal in soil due to human activities in Kangar, Perlis, Malaysia. *International Journal of Civil & Environmental Engineering*, 12(6), 28-33.
- Nazli, M.F., & Hashim N.R. (2010). Heavy Metal Concentrations in an important mangrove species, Sonneratia caseolaris, in Peninsular Malaysia, *Environment Asia*, 3, 50-55.
- Njagi, J.M. (2013). Assessment of heavy metal concentration in the environment and perceived health risks by the community around Kadhodeki Dumpsite, Nairobi County. Doctoral Dissertation, School of Public Health of Kenyatta University, 163 p.
- Nubi, O.A., Osibanjo, O., & Nubi, A.T. (2009), Impact assessment of dumpsite leachate on the qualities of surface water and sediment of River Eku, Ona-ara Local Government, Oyo State, Nigeria. Science World Journal, 3(3), 17-20.
- Nwaichi, E.O., Wegwu, M.O., & Nwosu, U.L. (2014). Distribution of selected carcinogenic hydrocarbon and heavy metals in an oil-polluted agriculture zone. *Environ Monit Assess*, 186, 8697–8706.
- Obasi, N.A., Akubugwo, E., Kalu, K.M., Ugbogu, A.E., & Okorie, U.C. (2013). Toxicological assessment of various metals on selected edible leafy plants of Umuka and Ubahu dumpsites in Okigwe of Imo State, Nigeria. *Journal* of Experimental Biology and Agricultural Sciences 1(6), 441-453.
- Odoh, R., Agbaji, E.B., Kagbu, J.A. (2016). Assessment of trace metals pollution in auto-mechanic workshop in some selected local government area of Benue State, Nigeria. *International Journal of Chemistry*, 3(4), 78-88.
- Ogunkunle, A.T.J., Bello, O.S., & Ojofeitimi, O.S. (2014). Determination of heavy metal contamination of street-vended fruits and vegetables in Lagos State, Nigeria. *International Food Research Journal*, 21, 2115-2120.
- Ogunmodede, O.T., Ojo, A.A., & Jegede, R.O. (2016). Evaluation of pollution loads in and around municipal solid waste dumpsite. *World Applied Sciences Journal*, 34(6), 720-732,
- Olayiwola, O.A., & Onwordi, C.T. (2015). Environmental fate of heavy metals in soil of ido-osun waste dumpsite, Osogbo, Osun, Nigeria. American Journal of Environmental Protection, 3(1), 1-4.
- Ololade, I.A. (2014). An assessment of heavy metal contamination in soils within auto-mechanic workshops using enrichment and contamination factors with geo-accumulation indexes, *Journal of Environmental Protection*, 5, 970-982
- Pruss-Ustun, A., & Corvalán, C. (2006). Preventing disease through healthy environments. Towards an estimate of the environmental burden of disease. Geneva: WHO.
- Romocea, T., Oneţ, A., Sabău, N.C., Oneţ, C., Herman, G.V., & Pantea, E. (2018), Change of the groundwater quality from industrial area Oradea, Romania, using Geographic Information Systems (GIS). *Environmental Engineering & Management Journal (EEMJ)*, 17(9), 2189-2199.
- Rotich, K.H., Zhao, Y., & Dong, J. (2006). Municipal solid waste management challenges in the developing countries-Kenyan case study. Waste Management, 26, 92-100.
- Tigist, M., Rao, M.V., & Faye, G. (2014). Determination of essential and non-essential metals concentration in papaya (Carica papaya) seeds, leaves and supporting soil of Odo-Shakiso district in South East Oromia Region, Ethiopia. *International Journal of Research in Pharmacy and Chemistry*. 4(1), 202-216.
- Tomllinson, D.C., Wilson, J.G., Harris, C.R., & Jeffrey, D.W. (1980). Problems in the assessment of heavy metals levels in estuaries and the formation of pollution index. *Helgoländer Wissenschaftliche Meeresuntersuchungen*, 33, 566-569.
- Ukpong, E.C., Antigha, R.E., & Moses, E.O., (2013). Assessment of heavy metals content in soils and plants around waste dumpsites in Uyo Metropolis, Akwa Ibom State. *The International Journal of Engineering and Science*, 2(7), 75-86.
- USEPA (2016). Suplemental guidance for developing soil screening levels for superfund sites. 187P. Available at https://nepis.epa.gov
- Uwah, E.I., Gimba, M.S.B., & Gwaski, P.A. (2012). Determination of Zn, Mn, Fe and Cu in spinach and lettuce cultivated in Potiskum, Yobe State, Nigeria. *Journal of Agricultural Economics and Development*, 1(4), 69-74.
- Yoon, J., Cao, X., Zhou, Q., & Ma, L.Q. (2006). Accumulation of Pb, Cu and Zn in native plants growing on a contaminated Florida Site. *Science of the Total Environment*, 368, 456-464.

Subm	itte	d:
February	02,	2020

Revised: June 07, 2020

Accepted and published online
July 27, 2020

MULTI-CRITERIA METHOD (WLC) AND GIS MODELING TO ANALYZE SOIL EROSION VULNERABILITY IN CONSTANTINE CITY (ALGERIA)

Filali ABDELWAHHAB*

Laboratory LRNAT, University of Batna-2, Algeria, e-mail: <u>abdelwahhabfilali@gmail.com</u>

Guellouh SAMI

Laboratory LRNAT, University of Batna-2, Algeria, e-mail: <u>guellouhsami@gmail.com</u>

Habibi YAHYAOUI

Laboratory LRNAT, University of Batna-2, Algeria, e-mail: <u>y.habibi@univ-batna2.dz</u>

Bouhata RABAH

Laboratory LRNAT, University of Batna-2, Algeria, e-mail: <u>m_bouhata24@yahoo.fr</u>

Citation: Abdelwahhab, F., Sami, G., Yahyaoui, H., & Rabah, B. (2020). Multi-criteria Method (WLC) and GIS Modeling to Analyze Soil Erosion Vulnerability in Constantine City (Algeria). *Analele Universității din Oradea, Seria Geografie*, 30(2), 141-146. https://doi.org/10.30892/auog.302103-811

Abstract: Land degradation due to soil erosion constitutes a serious threat in the Mediterranean regions, and particularly in Algeria. The objective of this study is to characterized the vulnerability to soil erosion in Constantine city (county seat of the Wilaya of the same name) using a spatial multi-criteria method. The followed approach focused on interaction of several factors (climate, topography, lithology and land cover) Acting erosive process by means of Weighted Linear Combination (WLC) that facilitated the quantification of the global effect of these factors in fine and objective manner. The results show that more than 50% of the city's surface is exposed to high vulnerability, which requires the implementation of soil erosion control measures.

Key words: Soil erosion, Factors, Vulnerability, Weighted Linear Combination WLC

* * * * * *

INTRODUCTION

Soil erosion is one of the biggest problems in the world, especially in Algeria. It is a serious environmental, agricultural and social problem that affects and threatens vast area. Among the most

remarkable consequences, we note the declining fertility of agricultural soils, water pollution, and aggravation of the mud flows in the urban area, the siltation of dams and desertification of the natural environment (FAO, 1980, p. 135; Toundoh et al., 2020. Soil erosion is a complex process that physically takes place by the movement of soil particles from a given site (Saini et al., 2015, p. 9-21).

To study this phenomenon, first, it is necessary to know and identify the different factors influencing this process. The effects of these factors must then be superimposed and adequately quantified in order to obtain more accurate final results using a multi-criteria analysis method.

Different approaches exist to guide a multi-criteria decision situation. Each approach focuses on certain aspects. Therefore each has its advantages and disadvantages (Chakhar, 2006. p. 300).

This method of analysis makes it possible to combine several criteria of different nature, in order to obtain a cartographic result indicating more or less suitable areas capable of solving the problem (Balzarini et al., 2011, p. 85).

The erosive process is the result of the combination of several dynamic and interactive factors (climate, topography, lithology and land cover). To quantify the global effect of these factors, we made call to Weighted Linear Combination (WLC).

WLC is a compensatory method; it makes it possible to compensate, on the same cell, a low value, induced by one criterion, by a higher value, induced by another criterion. This method seems relatively intuitive and simple to implement, especially for decision makers, not necessarily experts in GIS (Balzarini et al., 2011, p. 85).

Weighted Linear Combination is one of the widely used MCE methods for land suitability analysis. It involves standardization of the suitability maps, assigning the weights of relative importance to the suitability's maps, and then combining the weights and standardized suitability maps to obtain an overall suitability score (Malczewski, 2004; Bouguerra and Bouanani, 2016).

This method of analysis has been applied and integrated under a GIS to map vulnerability to soil erosion in the territory of Constantine city (county seat of the Wilaya of the same name), located in eastern Algeria, 431 km east of the capital Algiers (Algeria).

GIS are tools for data management, processing and analysis (Romocea et al., 2018; Herman et al., 2019) but limited as real decision-making tools, especially when several and/or sometimes contradictory criteria and objectives are involved. Over the past decade, many efforts have been made by GIS software developers to make them evolve. Today, spatial decision-making problems present all the characteristics of multi-criteria problems, which mean that this assessment and treatment are becoming unavoidable (Kedowide Mevo Guezo, 2011, p. 138).

STUDY AREA

Located in eastern Algeria, Constantine city (county seat of the Wilaya of the same name) covers an area of 90.1 km², between latitudes 36° 16' and 36° 28' North and between longitudes 6° 31' and 6° 48' East (figure 1)

MATERIALS AND METHODS

In this study, we are based on the integration of spatial multi-criteria analysis into a geographic information system (GIS) to be able to superimpose and quantify the global effect of the different factors contributing to the erosive process. Factors involved in this process fall into four domain: topography, soil, land use and climate (Wischmeier and Smith, 1978, p. 58).

Facteurs	Priorité	Classes	Code
		0-5 %	0.25
Slope	1	5-15 %	0.5
Slope	1	15 - 25 %	0.75
		25 % <	1

Table 1. Priority and code for each factor

		520 - 560 mm	0.25			
Doinfall	2	560 – 600 mm	0.5			
Kaiiiaii	2	600 - 640 mm	0.75			
		640 - 672 mm	1			
		Lithology erosion_resistant	0.25			
Lithology	2	2 Lithology averagely_resistant	0.5			
Littiology	5	Vulnerable lithology	0.75			
		Highly Vulnerable lithology	1			
		Urban area	1 Zones excluded from the			
		Urban area analysis				
Landuse	4	Foret	0.25			
	agricultural lan Bare ground	agricultural land	0.5			
		Bare ground	1			

The effect of each factor is quantified and transcribed as a map (figure 1). We have also defined four coded classes for each factor to translate their influence on the phenomenon. The table below summarizes the classes and codes assigned to each factor involved in the analysis.



Figure 1. (A) Lithology map (B) Land use map (C) Rainfall map (D) Slope map

Calculation of the weight for each factor:

Denoting the rank position of the j-th attribute by rj, the most important attribute is ranked first (rj = 1), the second most important attribute ranks second (rj = 2), and so on; the least important attribute is assigned a rank of rj = n. Then, the j-th criterion weight can be defined as follows: (Malczewski, 2006. p. 3-65).

$$\mathbf{wj} = \frac{\mathbf{n} - \mathbf{r} \, \mathbf{j} + \mathbf{1}}{\sum_{\mathbf{j} = \mathbf{1}}^{\mathbf{n}} \mathbf{n} - \mathbf{rk} + \mathbf{1}} \quad \text{For:} \quad \mathbf{K} = 1, 2, 3....n \quad (1)$$

The weights were calculated and inserted into the WLC Tool as a percentage (figure 2). The vulnerability calculation formula is as follows:

The vulnerability = 0.4 slope+ 0.3 Rainfall + 0.2 lithology + 0.1 Landuse

teria	Result Table					
Name		W	Weight		Locked Benefit	
Seolog	gyco		20			
andu	seco	-0	10		1	
Rainfal	llc		30		-	
lopec	ode		40		1	

Figure 2. Weight for each factor in %

La formule WLC:

WLC is defined and implemented as follows: For a given set of criteria, WLC is defined as a combination procedure that associates a set of criteria weights with the *i*-th decision alternative (the location or polygon). Where the weights satisfy the following properties: $w1, w2, \ldots, 0 \le wk \le 1$ and $\sum_{k=1}^{n} wk = 1$, $k = 1, 2, 3, \ldots, n$. The weights are multiplied with the criterion values *ai*1, *ai*2,...,*ain*, *i*=1,2,...,*m* as in Equation (2) (Steffan, 2016, p. 18).

```
WLC(Ai) = \sum_{k=1}^{n} Wk \cdot V(aik)  (2)
```

RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

After determining the priority and weight for each factor, and then integrating into a single information layer using a spatial joint, the global effect can be quantified using the WLC formula under ARC GIS.

Tab	le								
:=	- 1		R 19 19 19						
NL	C Too	120004828	9619						
Т	FID	Shape	slope_code	rainfall_code	Geology_code	landuse_code	WLCResult	Shape_Leng	Shape_Area
-	1858	Polygon	1	1	0,75	0,75	0,925	933,393818	36409,96127
1	7497	Polygon	1	0,75	1	1	0,925	43800,84332	49178131,2886
Т	8446	Polygon	1	0.75	1	1	0,925	43800,84332	49178131,2884
	8615	Polygon	1	0,75	1	1	0,925	43800,84332	49178131,2884
1	8703	Polygon	1	0,75	1	1	0,925	43800,84332	49178131,2884
	9056	Polygon	1	0,75	1	1	0,925	43800,84332	49178131,2884
	9390	Polygon	1	0,75	1	1	0,925	43800,84332	49178131,2886
	1008	Polygon	1	0,75	1	1	0,925	43800,84332	49178131,2884
	1021	Polygon	1	0,75	1	1	0,925	43800,84332	49178131,288
1	1028	Polygon	1	0,75	1	1	0,925	43800,84332	49178131,2884
	1069	Polygon	1	0,75	1	1	0,925	43800,84332	49178131,2884
	1114	Polygon	1	0,75	1	1	0,925	43800,84332	49178131,288
1	1125	Polygon	1	0,75	1	1	0,925	43800,84332	49178131,2884
1	1137	Polygon	1	0,75	1	1	0,925	43800,84332	49178131,2884
	1142	Polygon	1	0,75	1	1	0,925	43800,84332	49178131,288
1	1157	Polygon	1	0,75	1	1	0,925	43800,84332	49178131,288
1	1178	Polygon	1	0,75	1	1	0,925	43800,84332	49178131,288
1	1196	Polygon	1	0.75	1	1	0,925	43800.84332	49178131.288
1	1196	Polygon	1	0,75	1	1	0,925	43800,84332	49178131,288
1	1221	Polygon	1	0.75	1	1	0.925	43800,84332	49178131,288
	1228	Polygon	1	0.75	1	1	0.925	43800,84332	49178131.2884
1	1228	Polygon	1	0.75	1	1	0,925	43800.84332	49178131,288
1	1228	Polygon	1	0.75	1	1	0.925	43800.84332	49178131.288
1	1249	Polygon	1	0.75	1	1	0.925	43800.84332	49178131.288
1	1255	Polygon	1	0,75	1	1	0,925	43800,84332	49178131,288
	1306	Polygon	1	0,75	1	1	0,925	43800,84332	49178131,288
	1315	Polygon	1	0,75	1	1	0,925	43800,84332	49178131,288
-1-	1322	Polygon	1	0.75	1	1	0.925	43800.84332	49178131.288
	1361	Polygon	1	0.75	1	1	0.925	43800.84332	49178131.288
-	4000	Detinen		0.75		4	0.000	10000 04000	40470404 0000

Figure 3. WLC result for each cell

We have represented the erosion vulnerability in Constantine city under four classes according to the factors global effect as follows:

Classes of vulnerability	Global factors effect code	Area Km ²
Zero	Urban area	27.4
Low	0.06 - 0.25	2.2
Moderate	0.25 - 0.5	8.6
High	0.5 - 0.75	28.2
Extreme	0.75 <	23.7
Total area of C	90.1	

Table 2. Vulnerability classes

Statistical analysis of the areas observed shows that more than 50% of the study area is highly vulnerable. This alarming situation requires a range of actions to be implemented to ensure an effective response

The robustness and reliability of the process is also based on the adequacy of the aptitude criteria chosen for each parameter, the weighting adopted, but also the quality of the spatial information that has been exploited (Kedowide Mevo Guezo, 2011, p. 138).



Figure 4. Vulnerability map

CONCLUSION

The erosion vulnerability assessment was made by a multi-criteria analysis Weighted Linear Combination (WLC) that represents reliability according to several authors.

A large area of the city has been identified as a significant vulnerability given the meeting and the significant interactive influence of factors contributing to the erosion process, in particular the slope and Rainfall.

Based on this study, decision makers may have high vulnerability mapping and facilitate the intervention and implement erosion control measures although there are a number of limitations to this approach.

REFERENCES

- Bouguerra, S., & Bouanani, A. (2016). Qualitative mapping of soil sensitivity to water erosion: Case of the Oued Boukiou watershed (north west of Algeria). *Étude et Gestion des Sols*, 23, 91-100.
- Chakhar, S. (2006). Cartographie décisionnelle multicritère: formalisation et implémentation informatique (Doctoral dissertation).
- Toundoh. O.P., Tchibozo, E.A.M., Vissin, E.W. (2020). Application Du Modèle empirique USPED À L'étude De L'érosion hydrique Dans Le Bassin De La Yéwa Au Bénin. International Journal of Engineering Science Invention (IJESI), 9(1), 67-78.

Kedowide Mevo Guezo, C. G. (2011). SIG et analyse multicritère pour l'aide à la décision en agriculture urbaine dans les pays en développement, cas de Ouagadougou au Burkina Faso (Doctoral dissertation, Paris 8).

FAO, (1980). Conservation des ressources naturelles en zone arides et semi-arides. Cahiers FAO: conservation des sols 3. p. 135.

Herman, G.V., Gaceu, O., Mester, C., Baias, S., Caciora, T. Wendt, J. A. (2019). Spatial Analysis of Water Quality in Natura 2000 Sites Bihor, Romania. *Journal of Environmental Protection and Ecology*, 20(4), 2121-2129.

Romocea, T., Oneţ, A., Sabău, N.C., Oneţ, C., Herman, G.V., & Pantea, E. (2018). Change of the groundwater quality from industrial area Oradea, Romania, using Geographic Information Systems (GIS). *Environmental Engineering & Management Journal (EEMJ)*, 17(9), 2189-2199.

Malczewski, J. (2004). GIS-based land-use suitability analysis: a critical overview. Progress in planning, 62(1), 3-65. doi:10.1016/j.progress.2003.09.002

- Balzarini, R., Davoine, P.A., Ney, M. (2013). Analyse comparée des stratégies 'experts vs étudiants lorsde la réalisation de cartes de susceptibilité. CFC (N°218 - Décembre 2013).
- Steffan, V. (2016). Manuel d'utilisation de MCDA4ArcMap, version 1.1 A. Created on Wednesday, February 24.
- Wischmeier, W. H., & Smith, D. D. (1978). *Predicting rainfall erosion losses: a guide to conservation planning* (No. 537). Department of Agriculture, Science and Education Administration.
- Saini, S. S., Jangra, R., & Kaushik, S. P. (2015). Vulnerability assessment of soil erosion using geospatial techniques-A pilot study of upper catchment of Markanda river. *International Journal of Advancement in Remote Sensing, GIS* and Geography, 2(1), 9-21.

Submitted: May 12, 2019 Revised: Aprile 07, 2020 Accepted and published online July 28, 2020 Analele Universității din Oradea, Seria Geografie ISSN 1221-1273, E-ISSN 2065-3409

TRAVEL AND TOURISM INDUSTRY DEVELOPMENT -THE CASE OF KOSOVO

Idriz KOVAÇI*

University of Applied Sciences in Ferizaj, Faculty of Tourism and Environment, Street "University", 70000, Ferizaj, Kosovo, e-mail: <u>idriz.kovaci@ushaf.net</u>

Alberta TAHIRI

University of Applied Sciences in Ferizaj, Faculty of Tourism and Environment, Street "University", 70000, Ferizaj, Kosovo, e-mail: <u>alberta.tahiri@ushaf.net</u>

Fari BUSHI

University of Applied Sciences in Ferizaj, Faculty of Tourism and Environment, Street "University", 70000, Ferizaj, Kosovo, e-mail: <u>fari.bushi@ushaf.net</u>

Citation: Kovaçi, I., Tahiri, A., & Bushi, F. (2020). Travel and Tourism Industry Development-The Case of Kosovo. *Analele Universității din Oradea, Seria Geografie*, 30(2), 147-156. https://doi.org/10.30892/auog.302104-844

Abstract: This paper presents a brief theoretical summary related to the development of the travel and tourism industry. The purpose of this paper is to make clear the importance of the development of the travel and tourism industry nowadays, knowing that these industries are developing rapidly. What characterizes this paper is the presentation of the case of Kosovo, which is illustrated with some statistics of tourism development in this country.

Key words: travel, tourism, travel and tourism industry, development

* * * * * *

INTRODUCTION

Our intention in this paper is to make clear the importance of the development of the travel and tourism industry, as part of the life of the population worldwide. Knowing that many people are tired of the daily routine of work, they take trips to get out of this routine and relax. Thus, we can say that travel and tourism are part of our lives.

The development of tourism affects the country's economy. This paper presents the case of tourism development in Kosovo where we will see in more detail that the current situation of the tourism sector in Kosovo in terms of cooperation and exchange of data with international tourism organizations is very unsatisfactory, as Kosovo is not marked nor included in various tourism statistical reports for comparison of countries and regions, tourism trends, etc. Also, statistics show that the number of foreign tourists to visit Kosovo mainly increases from one year to another. Kosovo is very rich in natural beauty and opportunities for the development of

* Corresponding Author

various types of tourism, but what needs to be done is to use these opportunities for development and the most positive effects.

Tourism is a growing industry all over the world in recent years. In many war affected countries it has been noted that national investors and international investors have engaged themselves in investing more on the tourism industry as well as they are more eagerly waiting to invest more in the near future (Sivesan, 2020).

As one of the main and most dynamic activities in the world economy and the effects it creates, tourism is considered as one of the global economic phenomena. Its role is widely accepted by all governments of countries in the world, as one of the main indicators of economic growth. At the same time, tourism is recognized for its social, political and cultural impacts and environmental impacts. The World Tourism and Travel Council's research clearly speaks to the potential that tourism has for strengthening the global economy and reducing unemployment. In addition to the economic factor that is encouraged by tourism, direct benefits are also realized in the main tourism sectors, such as: hotels, restaurants, transport and retail (Tahiri and Kovaçi, 2017).

Tourism is now recognized as being an economic activity of global significance. Importance of the activity has increased, so too has the attention given to it by governments, organizations in both the public and private sectors, and academics.

The new challenges facing the tourism industry, as well as its specific characteristics and structure, are creating a need for more in-depth knowledge about the factors that affect and shape this industry. The importance of the tourism industry to the economy has been extensively demonstrated (Herman et al., 2017, 2018; Segui-Amortegui et al., 2019).

Tourism is an activity which cuts across conventional sectors in the economy. It requires inputs of an economic, social, cultural and environmental nature. In this sense it is often described as being multi-faceted. The problem in describing tourism as an "industry" is that it does not have the usual formal production function, nor does it have an output which can physically be measured, unlike agriculture (tonnes of wheat) or beverages (litres of whisky). There is no common structure which is representative of the industry in every country. In France and Italy, for example, restaurants and shopping facilities are major attractions for tourists; in Russia they are not. Even the core components of the tourism industry, such as accommodation and transport, can vary between countries. In the UK many tourists use bed and breakfast accommodation in private houses; in Thailand such facilities are not available. In the transport sector, levels of car ownership and developed road networks cause many tourists to use their cars or buses in Western Europe and the USA. In India and Indonesia, most tourists travel by air. It is some of these problems of definition which have caused many writers to refer to the tourist sector rather than the tourist industry. Sometimes the terms are used interchangeably (Lickorish and Jenkins, 1997).

The tourism industry is often cited as an attractive agent of development or redevelopment, generating employment and foreign exchange in a destination (Pender and Sharpley, 2005). The tourism sector, even if it seeks to be socially inclusive and permit access to different resources, has to address an ongoing problem (Page, 2019).

The relationship between tourism and the natural environment is complex (Ilieş et al., 2017; Tătar et al., 2017; Wendt et al., 2019). On the one hand, tourism depends on the world's natural resources, its diverse ecosystems and its rich biodiversity. A quality environment is the natural capital of tourism destinations, with income from tourism providing financial returns from investment in that capital. On the other hand, tourism uses vast quantities of resources and is a generator of emissions and pollution, both of which drive climate change. It is estimated that tourism accounts for 5% of global carbon dioxide (CO_2) emissions - it may contribute even more to global warming if all greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions are counted (UNWTO, 2018).

TRAVEL AND TOURISM INDUSTRY

The simple word travel, defined as "the act of moving" by most dictionaries, has a different definition within the context of the tourism industry. Travel is defined as "the act of moving outside

one's community for business or pleasure but not for commuting or traveling to or from work or school". With respect to travel as an industry, there must also be economic value creation resulting from travel activity. Understanding the fundamental definitions and concepts used within the travel and tourism industry provides an essential framework from which most industry discussions are based. Because of tourism's intangible nature, common definitions of terminology benefit the industry in a number of ways (Gee and Solá-Fayos, 1997).

The notion of tourism is related to travel, but not to all travel, only to those which are motivated by the desire for rest, recreation, with a trip for the purpose of rest, recreation and visits to natural beauty and cultural and historical heritage values (Recica and Millaku, 2014).

In one definition tourism is described as: the totality of relationships and phenomena arising from the travel and the stay of non-residents, provided that this stay doesn't create a permanent stay and from this stay isn't derived any profitable activity (Koja and Gorica, 2010).

Tourism has grown significantly since the creation of the commercial airline industry and the advent of the jet airplane in the 1950's. By 1992, it had become the largest industry and largest employer in the world. Together with this growth there have emerged a number of extremely critical issues facing the industry in terms of the impacts it has already had on destination areas and its residents, and the future prospects for people and places into the coming decades (Theobald, 2005).

One of the major issues in gauging tourism's total economic impact is the diversity and fragmentation of the industry itself. Theobald suggests that this problem is compounded by the lack of comparable tourism data since there has been no valid or reliable means of gathering comparable statistics. He proposes that the varying definitions of tourism terms internationally, and the complex and amorphous nature of tourism itself have led to difficulty in developing a valid, reliable, and credible information system or database about tourism and its contribution to local, regional, national and global economies. Davidson links the question of whether tourism is really an industry to the misunderstanding, resistance and hostility that often plague proponents of travel and tourism as worthy economic forces in a modern economy. He questions the common practice, especially as suggested in the literature of referring to tourism as an industry. He contends that such a designation may not be correct, and that tourism is not an industry at all. He states that much of the current misunderstanding, resistance and even hostility plaguing proponents of tourism may be due to its mistakenly being called an industry. Three arguments for tourism's designation as an industry are: It needs to gain the respect it now lacks among other competing economic sectors; It needs sound, accurate and meaningful data in order to assess its economic contribution, and; It needs to provide a sense of self-identity to its practitioners (Theobald, 2005).

FORMS AND CATEGORIES OF TRAVEL

Just as there are different types of visitors, there are different forms and categories of travel which take place, varying by traveler, destination, and motive for travel, such as: International vs. domestic travel; Intraregional vs. interregional travel, as well as; Inbound vs. outbound travel.

INTERNATIONAL AND DOMESTIC TOURISM

According to the WTO, international tourism differs from domestic tourism and occurs when the traveler crosses a country's border. Not every international traveler is a visitor, however. The traveler is a visitor only if the trip takes him or her outside the usual environment, e.g., workers who cross borders for employment are not considered visitors. The interest in international tourism has always been strong, primarily for economic reasons, as this form of tourism plays an important role in trade and monetary flows among nations. Domestic tourism has been overshadowed by the interest in international tourism, for it was thought initially to have little or no international impact, and statistics on the subject were felt to be a country's own business. It has become clear, however, that international and domestic tourism do relate to each other. Travelers' choices change depending on circumstances, and domestic tourism can be substituted for international tourism and vice versa under the influence of external factors, such as relative growth in real incomes, price differences
between countries, and international political conditions. Over the past few decades, in many Western countries domestic holidays were largely replaced by outbound holidays, influenced by the rise in living standards and discretionary incomes, while developing countries have seen sharp increases in domestic tourism (Gee and Solá-Fayos, 1997).

REGIONAL TRAVEL

Regions are geographically united subdivisions of a larger area characterized by definitive criteria or frames of reference. Three types of regions are used in tourism research. The first one refers to geographical location. Regions such as "the north" or "the west", are examples of this type. The second type refers to administrative areas, such as "Province X". The third combines criteria referring to location with criteria of a more physical nature. Examples of this type of region are "the lake district" or "the Pacific Basin." Regions of functional type can also be constructed, such as "urban areas" or "coastal areas". The term inter-regional travel refers to travel among various regions, whether in regions found within the same province or state, a country, or various regions throughout the world. Intra-regional, on the other hand, refers directly to travel contained within the same defined region, whether domestic or international such as travel between countries of East Asia (Gee and Solá-Fayos, 1997).

INBOUND AND OUTBOUND TOURISM

There are three forms of tourism at any level, in relation to a given area, e.g., domestic region, country, or group of countries: Domestic tourism, involving residents of the given area traveling (as visitors) only within that area; Inbound tourism, involving non-residents traveling as visitors in the given area; Outbound tourism, involving residents traveling as visitors in an area other than the given area.

If a country is the area of reference, the terms "domestic," "inbound" and "outbound" tourism can be combined in various ways to derive the following categories of tourism: Internal tourism, which comprises domestic and inbound tourism; National tourism, which comprises domestic tourism and outbound tourism; International tourism, which consists of inbound tourism and outbound tourism.

To avoid misunderstanding the terms "inbound", "outbound", "domestic", "internal", "national" and "international tourism" are generally used with a country as the unit of reference. However, it should be recognized that there are political subdivisions which are less than countries and differ from states such as the Commonwealth of Puerto Rico and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands, both part of the United States (Gee and Solá-Fayos, 1997).

THE NATURE AND CHARACTERISTICS OF THE TOURISM INDUSTRY

The amorphous nature of the tourism industry has made it difficult to evaluate its impact on the economy relative to other sectors in the economy. Techniques have been developed to facilitate measurement of impact but there is no universally accepted definition of what constitutes the tourism industry. The World Tourism Organization (WTO) has attempted to address this problem in its publication A Standard Industrial Classification of Tourism Activities (SICTA). Most academic writers tend to craft their definitions to suit their specific purposes. The definition given by Burkart and Medlik (1981) is accepted: the phenomenon arising from temporary visits (or stays away from home) outside the normal place of residence for any reason other than furthering an occupation remunerated from within the place visited.

However, there are a number of features associated with tourism which are quite explicit. For example, tourism implies that a person undertakes a journey: the journey may be for less than a day (day tripper/visitor); or it may be a journey within a national boundary, therefore constituting a domestic tourist trip; or it might be a journey which crosses an international boundary, therefore being classified as an international tourism trip. However, it is not only the nature of the journey which constitutes tourism, but is also the purpose of the journey which very broadly should be for

leisure or business. In looking at the development of tourism historically, most attention has been given to the concept of international tourism, i.e. journeys across international boundaries. Although the components of the tourism industry will differ between countries, there are certain subsectors which are clearly identified as being components of tourism activity, such as the accommodation sector which would include not only formal accommodation, hotels, guest houses, etc., but also camping sites, rooms in private houses and bed and breakfast type arrangements. Travel agents and tour operators are recognized as comprising another distinct subsector. Transport - airlines, shipping, rail and car hire, cars and coaches - will also be seen as being important inputs to the tourism sector. In some countries, shopping and production of handicrafts is another associated activity of tourism (Lickorish and Jenkins, 1997).

THE DEVELOPMENT OF THE TOURISM INDUSTRY

Development is an ambiguous term that, although widely applied in many and diverse contexts, defines precise definition. Broadly, however, it is considered to be both the process through which a nation or society moves from one condition towards another (presumably better) condition and also the goal of that process. On other words, it "refers both to the destination of a journey and to the journey itself". Despite this ambiguity, not only has "development" long been considered both a desirable outcome and specific objective of tourism development but also, for many destinations as well as organizations such as the UNWTO, it continues to be seen in this light (Sharpley, 2020).

Over the five decades, tourism has experienced continued growth and deepening diversification to become one of the fastest growing economic sectors in the world. Modern tourism is closely linked to development and encompasses a growing number of new destinations (Baker and Unni, 2018). It is evident that tourism is in a close relationship with many other sectors. This encounters many difficulties as well as some opportunities (Işik et al., 2019).

If we use 1945 as being the year when the development of the major growth in the tourism industry began, we can make some general observations relating to the changes which one can discern in the tourism industry.

Before the 1950s, tourism was very much an industry which was fragmented; hotels, transport operators, travel agents, tour operators all tended to work independently of each other. Hotels were largely in the business of selling bed nights. Airlines and railways were in the business of selling seats. Travel agents of course, were selling travel and holidays but in each case they tended to operate very much as individual businesses. From the mid-1950s onwards, particularly in the UK, the growth of tour operators began to change the nature of the industry from essentially individual business activities to more integrated activities. Hotels, for example, were beginning to see customers as wanting a range of services rather than simply buying accommodation. So hotels began to develop shopping arcades and later to offer secretarial centres to try to increase the spend of guests within the hotel complex. Transport operators, particularly in the airline business, saw the sale of transport services as being integral to a much wider need. Airlines offered insurance and accommodation booking for travellers. By the 1980s many airlines were offering complete travel services including holiday arrangements, medical services, car hire, etc.

What we have seen since the 1950s is the emergence of a holiday and travel industry which is offering more integrated services. This is particularly noticeable with the forward and backward integration of some of the very large tour operators. To some extent this was determined by the nature of demand. In other cases it was a business opportunity to integrate demand and provide a service at a much more competitive price and to maintain and increase market share. By 1990 the structure of the tourism industry, certainly in the UK and Europe, was influenced by the growth of some very large companies. In the USA, American anti-trust laws discouraged, if not prohibited, the development of large integrated companies. The American experience in tour operation has been very different from that within Europe, particularly compared with the UK (Lickorish and Jenkins, 1997).

TOURISM GLOBAL DEVELOPMENT

That tourism is a global phenomenon is not debated. However, the definition and nature of the phenomena collectively known as global tourism are frequently debated and misunderstood. "Global", as a term, is not the major source of confusion. It refers to the fact that visitor flows, tourism advertising, flows of spending by visitors and tourism enterprises, the ownership of tourism enterprises, and the collection and reporting of tourism statistics reach around the world and form a complex web of interconnections and dependencies among tourism businesses and organizations. The confusion stems from the nature of "tourism" itself (Lew et al., 2004).

It is important to recognize that international tourism, although considered an industry, is more accurately a set of industries, including railroads, airlines, automobile rental companies, hotels, restaurants, food and beverage producers, travel agencies, communications firms, museums, souvenir makers and sellers, and various entertainments. Significantly, many of these industries compete internationally, need large capital investments, require development of local infrastructures, and increasingly rely on strategic alliances and centralized coordination (Belk and Costa, 1995).

Tourism, as a curious quest for something that is novel and different, involves spaces and people's social relations to spaces, simply because novelty and difference exist not at home but elsewhere (Wang, 2000).

Globalisation is a concept that is increasingly invoked in the analysis of tourism. With the seemingly limitless spread of tourism, the embracing of virtually any form of activity and the general ubiquity of tourists and tourism, the temptation to reference globalisation in discussions of tourism has been irresistible, often through casual and uncritical statements (Mowforth and Munt, 2016).

Tourism and its development prospects in the world matter too many countries, regions and continents of the globe. From the level and dynamics of international tourism development many countries and regions have changed the landscape physiognomy. From backward and underdeveloped areas have become functional tourist areas, in which there is a genuine tourist offer. International tourism in the world in the past century has reached an extremely high level. The development of international tourism and the progress of its development are related to the political and economic situation in the world and different areas and regions. Tourism as an important economic activity is related to the circumstances created in the world economy. In the fifty years the level of international tourism development has been harmonized with the development of the world economy and the movement of the standard of living (real increase in wages and leisure). However, tourism has grown faster than the world economy and living standards. There is no doubt that in this act and other factors, such as: the rapid development of urbanization and motorization in developing countries has created the need for foreign tourism demand and extensive state and large capital jobs in the developing famous tourist sites with fast developing tourism industry in all fields. The latter is related with the tendency to increase tourism through export opportunities to those countries with favorable natural and other conditions for tourism development (Recica and Millaku, 2011).

TOURISM INDUSTRY IN KOSOVO

Tourism today is one of the most important and dynamic sectors of the world economy and is considered to be a complex and diverse phenomenon. It is complex as it involves the performance of a large number of activities (e.g. water, rail, road and air transport services to hotels, restaurants, souvenir shops, banks and retail) that are organized and coordinated with each other.

KOSOVO AND INTERNATIONAL ORGANIZATIONS FOR TOURISM AND STATISTICS

An important issue for tourism development in Kosovo is its membership in various international organizations that are directly involved in tourism, or indirectly contribute to the collection and comparison of tourism data. The current situation of the tourism sector in Kosovo in terms of cooperation and exchange of data with international tourism organizations is very unsatisfactory, as Kosovo is neither listed nor included in the various tourism statistical reports for comparison of countries and regions, tourism trends, etc.

Memberships and collaborations with organizations of this nature are very useful and recommended when preparing national tourism strategies and are considered as an extremely important tool in measuring the level of progress in achieving country-specific tourism objectives. Furthermore, the lack of appropriate local, regional and national data on the tourism sector in Kosovo presents a major challenge and makes it difficult for policymakers to develop strategies and set objectives for the sector. When compared to Kosovo, regional countries such as Albania, Macedonia, Montenegro, etc., are already full members or candidates for membership in various international tourism organizations. As noted in various reports on tourism, these countries use and consult closely the reports and findings of international tourism organizations as valuable resources for the development of tourism strategies.

In the table below, there is a list of international organizations related to collecting and comparing tourism data.

Main international organizations for tourism and statistics					
United Nations World Tourism Organization (UNWTO)	"A United Nations agency responsible for promoting responsible, sustainable and inclusive tourism. It generates market knowledge, promotes competitive and sustainable tourism policies and instruments, and promotes tourism education and training".				
World Council on Travel and Tourism (WTTC)	"The WTTC works to raise awareness of Travel & Tourism as one of the largest sectors in the world. The WTTC advocates for partnerships between the public and private sectors, delivering results that match the needs of economies, local and regional authorities, and local communities, with business ones".				
Eurostat	"It provides the EU with statistics at European level that allow comparisons between countries and regions".				
TravelandTourismCompetitivenessIndex(World Economic Forum)	"This index is a measure of the factors that make business development in the travel and tourism industry of individual countries attractive, rather than a measure of the country's attractiveness as a tourist destination".				
European Travel Commission (ETC)	"It's a non-profit organization responsible for promoting Europe as a tourist destination in third markets".				
United Nations Economic Commission for Europe (UNECE)	"It aims to promote pan-European economic integration and facilitate greater economic integration and cooperation among member countries".				
United Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organization (UNESCO)	"It is responsible for coordinating international cooperation in education, science, culture and communication. It strengthens the links between nations and societies, and mobilizes the general public".				
United Nations Statistics Division (UNSTATS)	"It is committed to advancing the global statistical system. UNSTATS aims to compile and disseminate global statistical information, develop standards and norms for statistical activities, and support countries' efforts to strengthen their national statistical systems".				

 Table 1. International organizations that contribute to the collection, analysis and measurement of tourism data

 Source: Analysis of the current situation in the tourism sector in Kosovo, 2018

STATISTICS FOR TOURISM DEVELOPMENT IN KOSOVO

Despite the lack of institutional support and investment in the tourism sector, the number of international travelers visiting Kosovo has progressively increased from 24,616 in 2008 to 79,234 in 2015. The regions most visited by international guests in Kosovo in 2015 are Pristina (53,057), Peja (12,694) and Prizren (9,779). The data available for this sector is very limited. Tourism is assumed to directly contribute more than 1% to Kosovo's GDP and employs more than 9,000 people (3.5% of total employment), while the world average tourism contribution to GDP is 3.3%. Public investment (human and financial) in this sector is negligible. The ministry responsible for tourism development is the Ministry of Trade and Industry, with a Division of Tourism employing three full-time public officials. Kosovo Investment and Enterprise Support Agency (KIESA) is the public institution responsible for promoting tourism. Both organizations commit very small amounts of money to develop the sector (less than 100,000 euros a year). Unlike the central level, the commitment (product development, promotion and launch of public-private projects) of some municipalities such as Peja, Prizren and Gjakova for tourism development has been significantly higher.

0.1		2016		20)17	2018	
No.	Country	Visitors	Nights	Visitors	Nights	Visitors	Nights
1	Austria	7,493	11,309	5,719	9.138	5,076	8,809
2	Belgium	2,735	4,209	2,995	5,300	3,156	6,034
3	Bosnia and Herzegovina	2,705	4,071	2,460	4,436	3,360	5,231
4	Great Britain	5,514	9,698	5,034	8,400	6,482	10,113
5	France	3,756	6,027	4,084	7,014	4,496	7,184
6	Germany	14,225	24,425	16,579	28,283	17,178	28,668
7	Greece	1,290	2,624	1,441	4,414	2,593	9,448
8	Netherlands	2,480	4,748	2,666	5,321	3,107	5,564
9	Italy	4,946	7,725	5,023	8,299	6,292	10,253
10	Croatia	5,401	8,775	4,344	7,304	5,926	10,421
11	Montenegro	3,098	4,799	2,889	5,082	3,901	6,843
12	Macedonia	6,155	9,602	6,251	10,504	7,842	12,554
13	Poland	661	1,157	671	1,059	503	891
14	Serbia	6,089	9,173	6,108	9,461	7,475	12,222
15	US	12,238	21,703	10,539	18,796	13,857	21,862
16	Albania	29,509	41,293	28,158	40,263	37,141	53,669
17	Slovenia	6,192	11,771	6,848	13,093	6,690	13,394
18	Spain	325	532	375	636	650	2,059
19	Turkey	12,667	20,928	13,463	21,880	14,848	23,938
20	Switzerland	11,001	18,989	12,494	23,165	13,151	21,741
21	Other	25,506	43,526	24,088	41,549	29,035	50,431
	Total	163,986	267,084	162,229	264,268	192,759	321,329

 Table 2. Number of foreign visitors and their nights of stay by country of origin in the period 2016-2018

 Source: Kosovo Agency of Statistics, Series 3: Economic Statistics, Hotel Statistics Q1 2019

The table above shows statistics on the number of tourists and their night stays by country of origin in the period 2016-2018. We note that the largest number of tourists come from Albania (37,141 tourists in 2018), Germany (17, 178 tourists in 2018) and Turkey (14,848 tourists in 2018). Mostly the number of tourists has increased from one year to another.

Also the Kosovo Agency of Statistics (KAS) has published the Hotel Statistics in Kosovo in the first quarter of 2019 (Q1 2019). In Q1 2019, part of the survey was 218 hotels that operate in the territory of Kosovo. Most of the hotels are located in the region of Prishtina, Peja, and so on. In Q1 2019 the number of visitors (local and foreign) was 65,265, of which 41.85% were local visitors and 58.15% were foreign visitors, while the number of nights of stay was 104,907, of which 39.70% by local visitors and 60.30% by foreign visitors. The largest number of visitors and their nights of stay is concentrated the region of Prishtina with 28,876 visitors with 48,561 night of stay. The largest number of foreign visitors, the largest number of them was from Albania, Turkey, Germany, etc.



Figure 1. Graphical representation of the number of foreign visitors and their night stays in the period 2016-2018 Compiled by authors based on table data

Figure 1 graphically shows the total number of foreign visitors and their night stays during the period 2016-2018. It is seen that from 2016 to 2017 there is a slight decrease in the number of foreign visitors and their night stays. However, in 2018 the number of foreign visitors and their night stays have increased; the number of visitors from 264,268 in 2017 increased to 321,329 in 2018 and their night stays from 162,229 in 2017 increased to 192,759 in 2018.

CONCLUSIONS

The travel and tourism industry is of particular importance because it contributes to the economic development of countries in general. So, it contributes to GDP growth. Tourism as an industry evolved more rapidly with the creation of the airline industry, which enabled faster transport of tourists from one place to another.

The movement of tourists through tourist destinations in different countries has made tourism develop globally. Nowadays the possibilities for free movement have increased and this has facilitated the global development of tourism. Nowadays both domestic and foreign tourism have a higher level of development as it's easier for tourists in general to visit tourist sites around the world, in those places that tourists prefer.

Regarding Kosovo, we can say that Kosovo has natural beauties, cultural heritage, historical monuments, etc., and all of which affect the way Kosovo is visited by tourists from all over the world. We noticed that the number of tourists visiting Kosovo has increased year after year, which means that the tourist potential in Kosovo is high. To keep up with the growing tourism trend, the government's budget allocated for tourism needs to be increased in order to protect and develop tourist destinations.

Kosovo also needs to become a member of the International Organizations for tourism and statistics so that tourism statistics can be always updated and the access in tourism statistics can be easier.

Concerning the number of foreign tourists, it turned out that the largest number of foreign visitors is concentrated in Prishtina, Prizren and so on. As for foreign visitors, the largest number of them was from Albania, Turkey, Germany, etc.

It should be noted that the number of foreign visitors and their night stays in Kosovo varied from one year to another. Thus, if we compare the years studied, we can say that the number of foreign visitors and their night stays was higher in 2016 compared to 2017. And also in 2018 there was again an increase in the number of foreign visitors and their night stays in Kosovo.

REFERENCES

- Baker, D., Unni, R. (2018). Characteristics and Intentions of Cruise Passengers to Return to the Caribbean for Land-Based Vacations. *Journal of tourism studies and research in tourism*, Issue 26, 1-9.
- Belk, R. W., Costa, J. A. (1995). International Tourism: An Assessment and Overview. Journal of Macromarketing, SAGE journals, 15(2), 33-49.
- Burkart, A. J., Medlik, S. (1981). Tourism: Past, Present and Future, Elsevier Science & Technology Books, United Kingdom.
- Gee, Y. Ch., Solá-Fayos, E. (1997). International Tourism: A Global Perspective, 1st Edition, World Tourism Organization, Madrid, Spain.
- Herman, G. V., Deac, A. L., Ciobotaru, A. M., Andronache, I. C., Loghin, V., & Ilie, A. M. (2017). The role of tourism in local economy development. Bihor County case study. Urbanism. Architecture. Constructions/Urbanism. Arhitectura. Constructii, 8(3), 265-274.
- Herman, G. V., Peptenatu, D., Grama, V., & Pintilii, R. D. (2018). Tourism and Local Development. Study Case: Băile Felix-Băile 1 Mai Tourism System, Bihor County, Romania. Analele Universitatii din Oradea, Seria Geografie, 28(1), 131-137.
- Ilieş, D. C., Baias, S., Buhaş, R., Ilieş, A., Herman, G. V., Gaceu, O., & Măduța, F. (2017). Environmental education in protected areas. Case study from Bihor County, Romania. *GeoJournal of Tourism and Geosites*, 19(1), 126-132.
- Işik, C., Günlü Küçükaltan, E., Taş, S., Akoğul, E., Uyrun, A., Hajiyeva, T., Turan, B., Dibro, A. H., Bayraktaroğlu, E. (2019). Tourism and Innovation: A literature review. *Journal of Ekonomi*, 1(2), 98-154.
- Koja, V., Gorica, K. (2010). Bazat e Turizmit [The Fundamentals of Tourism], albPaper, Tirana, Albania.
- Lew, A. A., Hall, M. C., Williams, M. A. (2004). A Companion to Tourism, Blackwell Publishing, USA.
- Lickorish, J. L., Jenkins, L. C. (1997). An Introduction to Tourism, Butterworth-Heinemann, United Kingdom.

- Mowforth, M., Munt, I. (2016). Tourism and Sustainibility: Development, Globalisation and New Tourism in the Third World, Fourth Edition, Routledge, Taylor & Francis Group, London and New York.
- Page, J. S. (2019). Tourism Management, Sixth Edition, Routlende Taylor & Francis Group, London and New York.
- Pender, L., Sharpley, R. (2005). The Management of Tourism, SAGE Publications, London, United Kingdom.
- Reçica, F., Millaku, B. (2011). Ekonomia e Turizmit [Tourism Economy], The authors, Prishtina, Kosovo.
- Reçica, F., Millaku, B. (2014). Hyrje në Turizëm [Introduction to Tourism], The authors, Peja, Kosovo.
- Segui-Amortegui, L., Clemente-Almendros, J. A., Medina, R., Grueso Gala, M. (2019). Sustainability and Competitiveness in the Tourism Industry and Tourist Destinations: A Bibliometric Study. Sustainability, 11(22), 1-30.
- Sharpley, R. (2020). Tourism, sustainable development and the theoritical divide: 20 years on. *Journal of Sustainable Tourism*, 28(11), 1932-1946.
- Sivesan, S. (2020). Sustainable Tourism Development in Jaffna District. Journal of Tourism & Hospitality, 9(3), 1-5.
- Tahiri, A., Kovaçi, I. (2017). Menaxhimi në Turizëm: Qasje Teorike Menaxheriale [Management in Tourism: Theoritical Managerial Approach], Research Center, Peja, Kosovo.
- Tătar, C. F., Herman, G. V., Dehoorne, O., & Zarrilli, L. (2017). Ecotourism in the Danube Delta. Analele Universității din Oradea, Seria Geografie, 27(1), 122-132.
- Theobald, F. W. (2005). Global Tourism, Third Edition, Elsevier, Butterworth-Heinemann, United Kingdom.
- Wang, N. (2000). Tourism and Modernity: A sociological analysis, Elsevier Science, United Kingdom.
- Wendt, J., Buhaş, R., & Herman, G. V. (2019). Experience of the Baile-Felix Tourist System (Romania) For the Protection and Promotion of the Grey Seal as a Brend on the Hel Peninsular (Poland). *Baltic Region/Baltijskij Region*, 11(1), 109-116.
- World Tourism Organization (UNWTO). (2018). Tourism for Development, Volume I: Key Areas for Action, Madrid, Spain.
- *** USAID EMPOWER Private Sector: Analysis of the current situation in the tourism sector in Kosovo. This report was produced for review by the United States Agency for International Development (USAID) and Swedish International Development Cooperation Agency (SIDA), Prishtina, April, 2018. (https://mti.rksgov.net/desk/inc/media/BEE9A796-9FA3-4254-8528-AB86C722CFF2.pdf)
- *** Tourism Development Through Efficient Policies and Legislation: Identifying potential reform steps in tourism policy and legislation. Democracy for Development Institute, Prishtina, July, 2017. (https://d4d-ks.org//wpcontent/uploads/2017/07/D4D_PI_10_SHQ_WEB.pdf)
- *** Kosovo Agency of Statistics, Series 3: Economic Statistics, Hotel Statistics Q1 2019. (https://ask.rks-gov.net/media/4926/hotel-statistics-q12019.pdf

Submitted: March 09, 2020 Revised: June 20, 2020 Accepted and published online August 03, 2020 Analele Universității din Oradea, Seria Geografie ISSN 1221-1273, E-ISSN 2065-3409

GEOMATICS CONTRIBUTION TO ROAD NETWORK CHARACTERIZATION CASE STUDY: BATNA CITY

Merdassi ABDELMOUMENE*

Laboratory LRNAT, University of Batna -02, Mustapha Ben Boulaid, Algeria, e-mail: <u>merdaci.sig@gmail.com</u>

Kalla MAHDI

Laboratory LRNAT, University of Batna-2, Mustapha Ben Boulaid, Algeria, e-mail: <u>m_kalla1@yahoo.fr</u>

Citation: Abdelmoumene, M., & Mahdi, K. (2020). Geomatics Contribution to Road Network Characterization Case Study: Batna City. *Analele Universității din Oradea, Seria Geografie*, 30(2), 157-156. <u>https://doi.org/10.30892/auog.302105-817</u>

Abstract: The city of Batna is an important crossroads between coastal cities and the far south. It is also an axis linking East to West across the highlands due to its valuable geographical location and its high demographic increase. As a result, traffic flow problems related mainly to the growing vehicle fleet, as well as the characteristics of the road network and the traffic plan applied, have generated increased needs for motorized travel. It is therefore interesting to establish a diagnosis of the current functioning of the road network in the city of Batna, for more effective management and to help planners anticipate the expected problems. This work will integrate an approach based on the association of the digital database with the use of Geomatics techniques (techniques based on the use of Geographic Information Systems) which can provide a powerful tool for better urban mobility.

Key words: Batna, urban roads, traffic, congestion, load, vehicles

* * * * * *

INTRODUCTION

The transport sector is nowadays one of the essential factors for development. Roads, which facilitate the mobility of goods and people, are therefore one of the important factors for the development of the economy and prosperity in a country. According to the World Bank, there are 76 private vehicles per 1000 inhabitants in Algeria. As a result, it ranks fifth in Africa for the number of vehicles per capita (Benmahmoud, 2013).

It is important to note that the private vehicle has become the most widely used means of urban mobility, and public authorities must therefore "build an urban transport system in the sustainable sense of the term, as long as they develop a participatory approach and innovative communication at the same time" (Boubakour, 2008).

Over the past twenty years, the Geographical Information System (GIS) has been an area of information and communication technology increasingly used by public authorities in decision-making, particularly in planning and management (Masser and Ottens, 1999; Jankowski, 2009; Stillwell et al., 1999).

Although GIS has been used for more than thirty years, however, it has only recently been used in the field of transport (Shafabakhsh et al., 2017; Sun et al., 2011; Morita et al., 2004; Ueda et al., 1996).

In this context, the present study is based on a series of questions related to the contribution of Geomatics to the management of the road network in the city of Batna.

A database and digital mapping of the road network were set up from a Geomatics perspective. The objective is to demonstrate the usefulness of GIS in road network management to enable coherent management of road mobility, thus facilitating the decision-making process by the concerned services.

STUDY AREA

Batna wilaya is located in the eastern part of Algeria in the Aurès region. The city of Batna is the capital of the wilaya located at the crossroads of Constantine, Biskra and Khenchela roads. Batna is considered as a crossroads that aims to ensure the interconnection of the regional regions of the north and south and at the same time to provide the East-West transition: Khenchela - Biskra (figure 1).



Figure 1. The geographical and administrative situation of Batna city Source: Merdassi Abdelmoumene

MATERIALS AND METHODS

The methodology used in this work is based on satellite data, topographical data, urban planning instruments and field surveys. These data are then integrated and analyzed in a GIS environment for road traffic restitution and analysis (table 3) using the software: ENVI 4.5 for image processing and ArcGis 10.1 for vector mode GIS.

The survey is based on the information collection for each primary urban road as follows:

- Number of vehicle fleets in the city;
- Present-day traffic conditions;
- Traffic variations during the day (especially during rush hours).

Urban evolution of the city

The change detection approach helps to better assess the socio-spatial changes that occur in a region. To this end, the vectorization and superposition of the various multi-date classifications are an excellent source of information to determine the size and trend of urban dynamics in Batna City (figure 2).



Figure 2. The evolution of the built environment in the Batna city in 1987, 2000 and 2017 Source: (Landsat images)

Land use units	Classification1987		Classification 2000		Classification 2017	
	Surface in hectares	Surface %	Surface in hectares	Surface %	Surface in hectares	Surface %
Urban space	1021,41	12,00	1969,92	23,13	3706,38	43,53
Bare land	2528,64	29,70	1998,18	23,46	1690,92	19,86
Forest	1795,50	21,08	1517,67	17,82	2114,37	24,83
Farm land	3168,90	37.21	3028,68	35,57	1002,78	11,77

Table 1. Evolution of land use areas

The analysis of the classification results (table 1) confirms the progression of the urbanized surface between the two periods. There was a development in the surface of the urban spot of 948.5 hectares or 67.75/year between 1987 and 2000. In the period between 2000 and 2017 this area developed with 1737.5 hectares or 115.75 hectares/year.

Road network components in Batna

The road network in Batna city consists of 3 types of roads (figure 3).

- City bypasses

These roads partially avoid the crossover of Batna city, except that the multiple traffic jams (due to poorly designed junctions, parking and reduced traffic flow at police checkpoints) discourage

motorists from using them. They are supposed to prevent transit traffic from accessing the city and thus avoiding any congestion and safety problems that may arise.

These roads have a dual role: interurban connections and city bypasses.

- South bypass

It bypasses the urban area to the south along the protection ditch, to allow traffic between the two main roads, National No. 3 (RN3) and National No. 31 (RN31), towards Khenchela.

- North bypass

Biskra - Constantine: It borders successively the new urban housing zone II (ZHUN2), the Kechida neighborhood and the Industrial Zone. The development of the city on both sides also gives it an additional role as a collector road.

Urban roads

There are three types of urban roads:

- Primary roads

These roads provide access from the city center to the suburban districts; all these roads are structured by two major axes:

Axis 1: Boulevard KL, Route de Biskra, Avenue de l'Indépendance and Route de Constantine. Axis 2: Avenue de la République, Rue Boukhlouf Mohamed and Allées Boudiaf Mohamed. - Secondary roads

They are the second group of roads that connect neighborhoods from the main network.

- Tertiary roads

The tertiary roads provide access within the properties. They have been delayed in terms of planning.



Figure 3. Batna city road network (2017) Source: Google Maps

Current functioning of the road network

Pendulum movement for the employment sector in Batna

As shown in table 2, there is a real pendulum migration between Batna and the neighbouring cities. In this example, public transport is taken into account since it is often considered as a means of transport for work-related or service purposes.

Table 2. Number of tra	avelers at departure a	nd arrival (Bus transport)
Source	ce: 2016 Urban Commu	nity Plan

City	Departures	Arrival
Batna	2038	10701

It is clear that the number of passengers arriving in Batna by public road transport is higher than the number leaving Batna, which confirms the attractiveness of Batna city.

Theoretical and operational capacity of roads

Road capacity at a given point is the maximum number of vehicles that can be passed at that point during a reference time interval, usually corresponding to an hour (Wardrop, 1954) and depending on the existing infrastructure and traffic characteristics.

Capacity on a road route is a different concept defined by Cohen's (2005) quotation: "Capacity on a route is the minimum of capacity at each of its points".

- Theoretical capacity

The theoretical capacity of a road section is the maximum traffic intensity per hour. It is calculated based on the maximum number of passenger cars passing through in 15 minutes, multiplied by the coefficient corresponding to the peak hour. This number is not an absolute maximum; it is based on reasonable respectability. Thus expressed, capacity depends only on the number of lanes, their width and off-road areas and the gradient of the section (PIARC, 2011).

In this case, every 1000 m with a vehicle width of 5 m is equal to 200:

$$Tc = 200 \ x road width$$

- Practical capacity

Practical capacity is defined as the maximum observable traffic intensity on the section, depending on the nature of the traffic predominating at that point (PIARC, 2011).

- Saturation Flow Rate (SFR)

The saturation flow rate of a roadway, whether in the morning or in the evening, is calculated as follows:

 $SFR = load (PPV/h) \times 100 / theoretical capacity$

2)

1)

Where, PPV is the Private Passenger Vehicle unit.

Table 3 summarizes the main characteristics of the road load survey on the main roads of the city.

Sectors and population	Equipment	Urban transport line	Road
Code Sector name Surface area Ranking Percentage Population87 Density 87 Population 98 Density 98 Population 2014 Density 2014	Code Type Name Sector Equipment Surface area	Code Origine Destination Outward length Number of stops Return width Number of stops Busnumber Places available	Code Name Length Width Load HPM LoadHPS Daily capacity Exploitation Condition Theoretical capacity Saturation rate travel time Speed

Table 3. Database component

Using this database, queries can be made to analyze the state of the place. This feature allows highlighting the real issues in the field. The example given in this article concerns the saturation of the current roads. In addition, several requests can be made depending on the factors having a direct impact on traffic, allowing several special analyses to be performed.

RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

Analysis of the practical load of roads

Suburbanization and more generally, any separation of the workplace and the place of residence have led to significant migration (daily movement between the city dweller's home and his place of work, always at the same times). In addition, service and commercial transport generates significant traffic on the city's roads.

The road network in the city of Batna is experiencing significant traffic but has not reached saturation levels yet (figure 5).



Figure 5. Load of the main axes (morning and evening)

It can be noticed that the highest load at Morning Rush Hour is observed at A.N.P. Avenue (2867 U.V.P/MRH), and the highest load at Evening Rush Hour is observed at Constantine Road (2851 U.V.P/ERH). Roads with a low load are: Biskra road with a load of (220 U.V.P/MRH) in the morning and Avenue de la République with a charge of (298 U.V.P/ERH) in the evening.

Comparison between the theoretical capacity and the practical load of the different primary axes



Figure 6. Theoretical and practical load at morning rush hour

The road network in the city of Batna has experienced significant traffic but has not reached saturation levels. This traffic is observed on various routes such as those connecting the city of Batna to the surrounding areas.

Access to the city center is characterized by very high mechanical traffic pressure, which shows a permanent load that is constantly generated on downtown roads on a daily basis. It can also be noticed that during rush hours, there is acongestion on the wilaya road N° 161, RN N°77, avenue de l'A.N.P, as well as the rue de Bouakaz and the east bypass, which explains that the majority of the practical load is caused by the entrances to the city of Batna and is higher than the theoretical load (figure 6).



Figure 7. Theoretical and practical load at the evening rush hour

It can be seen that the presence of bus and taxi stations on general traffic lanes disrupts the traffic flow. The inconvenience is caused by traffic on the boulevards and highways with very heavy commercial activity that are parked on both sides.



Analysis of the saturation rate of the primary axes

Figure 8. Saturation rate of the main axes (morning and evening)

The city, which currently hosts almost twice its capacity, is in a state of major traffic jams. Some sections have a very high saturation rate, including several axes that have a rate higher than 100% in the morning and evening rush hours.

It is can be noticed that National Road $N^{\circ}3$ (CW $N^{\circ}161$ in this scale) has a very high saturation rate of 183.75% in the morning and 123.19% in the evening (figure 8).

Transport hubs

The importance of certain facilities or their absence results in significant population movements from one sector to another and from one agglomeration to another.

Traffic black spots are caused by traffic management malfunctions due to factors external to the road network and its management, such as the presence of certain very specific problems on the network that can create waiting lines over several hundred meters. The traffic black spots observed in the city of Batna are summarized in Figure 9.



Figure 9. Traffic black spots in the city of Batna

The perimeter of the city of Batna includes places of economic attraction and a series of facilities and structuring activities. Therefore, it has been noticed that the traffic squares are located at the crossroads (roundabouts) as well as the black spots are much more centered in the city center, and this corresponds to the concentration of the various life services, which causes a great accessibility problem and consequently long lines of cars. As a result, it is difficult for many buses to cross these lines.

The two black spots on the M. Boudiaf alleys are the cause of the presence of the CHU (Centre Hospitalier Universitaire - University Hospital).

The saturation of all these intersections is the result, in addition to their presence on high-traffic roads, of the accumulation of certain causes of dysfunction linked to several factors.

A better management of urban roads by geographic information systems (GIS) requires a reliable and enriched database that allows analyzing, managing and interpreting the results obtained from the different requests.

The analyses carried out show that most of the city's road network, and in particular the city center and the first suburbs of urban fabric, are relatively saturated, particularly during rush hour.

This lack of traffic flow is the result of a constant increase in the number of private vehicles combined with undersizing of the primary and secondary roads. There are roads that have a morning and evening saturation rate of > 100%.



Figure 10. Selection of roads with MSR and ESR> 100%

- MSR = Morning Saturation Rate
- ESR = Evening Saturation Rate

These axes are characterized by:

- Narrow roadway that causes lateral collisions;
- Number of incoming channels that are too high;
- Does not have traffic lights (Lack of signage);
- Anarchic (informal) parking;
- Conflicts: vehicle/pedestrian, vehicle/vehicle;
- Congestion almost all day long;
- Reduced visibility distance when approaching the intersection;
- High population density and where illegal constructions proliferate;
- Poor road conditions;
- Sidewalks congested by informal transport;
- No pedestrian crossing;
- Inadequate width and number of rows;
- Incoherence of the layout in relation to the typology of the track;
- The heavyweight;
- Poor layout of roundabouts, sidewalks congested by informal transport (Fraud);
- Input radius too large;
- Almost no ground markings for user guidance.

RECOMMENDATIONS

To improve the situation, a series of measures have been proposed for the rehabilitation of roads. The solutions that can be proposed are:

- Installation of traffic lights;
- Widening of the roadway for any axis;
- Regular maintenance of the pavement;
- Improvement of the perception of mini roundabouts;
- Installation of speed limitation road signs;
- Any arrangement to reduce the approach speed (narrowing of the pavement width has crossed;
- Reduce the width of the inlets and outlets;
- Closeness of pedestrian crossings to the intersection area;
- Parking management;
- Presence of bus and taxi stations on the traffic lanes.

CONCLUSION

A better management of urban roads by geographic information systems (GIS) requires a reliable and enriched database that allows analyzing, managing, and interpreting the results obtained from the different requests.

The city of Batna is a medium-sized city that is undergoing a development towards a form of metropolis due to a spreading development. This urban development, driven by both population growth and migration within and between wilayas (departments), has created new travel needs.

Road infrastructure and the transport network have not been able to handle traffic flow, especially during rush hours. This situation of permanent road congestion is a major problem for the social and economic development of the city and raises serious environmental problems.

The use of the database made it possible to highlight saturation levels, fluidity levels and service rates. All these elements make it possible to first target the sectors to be maintained and redeveloped as a priority. In a second step, the study addressed the problem of conflict points by analyzing intersections (crossroads and roundabouts).

As a result the analysis showed a malfunction in traffic that result in daily traffic jams. There is also a lack of prospective visions in terms of urbanization, particularly during the postcolonial period.

Therefore, a traffic plan must be implemented to ensure the adequate traffic flow and to ensure a service for marginalized sectors. Finally, it is important to take into consideration future urban development and the population' most convenient means of transportation.

REFERENCES

Benmahmoud, K. (2013). Faible taux de motorisation Motors.

- Boubakour, F. (2008). Les transports urbains en Algérie face aux défis du développement durable: sur les problèmes rencontrés et les solutions proposées. Paper presented at the CODATU XIII.
- Cohen, S. (2005). Systèmes et méthodes de détection automatique des incidents routiers: guide technique. INRETS.
- Jankowski, P. (2009). Towards participatory geographic information systems for community-based environmental decision making. *Journal of Environmental Management*, 90(6), 1966-1971.
- Masser, I., & Ottens, H. (1999). Urban Planning and Geographic Information Systems In: Stillwell J, Geertman S, Openshaw S (eds) Geographical Information and Planning: European Perspectives. Springer Berlin Heidelberg, Berlin, Heidelberg, p. 25-42.
- Morita, A., Takeuchi, K., Doi, K., Sigua, RG., Honda, K., Seta, F., & Murakami, A (2004). Urban transport and local governance in asian developing countries: In Search of Transport Policies (IATSS H493 Project Report). IATSS Research 28 (1). p. 6-18.

Piarc, WRA (2011). Road Tunnels Manual.

- Shafabakhsh, G.A., Famili, A., & Bahadori, M.S. (2017). GIS-based spatial analysis of urban traffic accidents: Case study in Mashhad, Iran. Journal of Traffic and Transportation Engineering (English Edition), 4(3), 290-299.
- Stillwell, J., Geertman, S., & Openshaw, S. (1999). Geographical Information and Planning: European Perspectives. Springer Berlin Heidelberg,
- Sun, J., Liu, Q., & Peng, Z. (2011). Research and Analysis on Causality and Spatial-Temporal Evolution of Urban Traffic Congestions-A Case Study on Shenzhen of China. Journal of Transportation Systems Engineering and Information Technology, 11(5), 86-93.
- Ueda, T., Nakamura, H., & Shimizu E. (1996). GIS Integrated System for Urban Transport and Development Planning. In: Hayashi Y, Roy J (eds) Transport, Land-Use and the Environment. Springer US, Boston, MA, p. 317-336.

Wardrop, J.G. (1954). The Capacity of Roads. OR 5 (1), 14-24.

Submitted: May 12, 2019 Revised: Aprile 07, 2020 Accepted and published online August 10, 2020 Analele Universității din Oradea, Seria Geografie ISSN 1221-1273, E-ISSN 2065-3409

ANALYZING THE TOURIST BEHAVIOR OF THE INTERNATIONAL STUDENTS IN WARSAW

Petrică NIȚOAIA^{*}

"Alexandru Ioan Cuza" University of Iași, Faculty of Geography and Geology, Bd. Carol I, no. 20A, 700505, Iași, Romania, e-mail: <u>petricanitoaia@yahoo.ro</u>

Gabriel CAMARĂ

"Alexandru Ioan Cuza" University of Iași, Faculty of Geography and Geology, Bd. Carol I, no. 20A, 700505, Iași, Romania, e-mail: <u>gabriel.camara@uaic.ro</u>

Citation: Camară, G., & Niţoaia, P. (2020). Analyzing the Tourist Behavior of the International Students in Warsaw. *Analele Universității din Oradea, Seria Geografie*, 30(2), 167-175. <u>https://doi.org/10.30892/auog.302106-842</u>

Abstract: This paper is the result of a case study on the foreign students from Warsaw (winter semester 2015-2016), their view on the city and their behavior as tourists. In this case study we applied a questionnaire and analyzed the resulting data in SPSS in order to understand why the students chose Warsaw, if they were involved in tourist activities and if the tourist market from the city and beyond can satisfy their needs. This paper may be useful for policymakers in cities with large numbers of foreign students since it highlights the needs and relation of foreign students regarding tourism.

Key words: international students, educational tourism, tourist behavior, geostatistics, quantitative methods

* * * * * *

INTRODUCTION

Ever-increasing, tourism is becoming more important and our society views the act of travelling as a way of attaining relaxation, finding fulfilment in life and also getting to know one's self better. The youth tourism (Horak and Weber, 2000) and the youth travel market becomes so important from the 1990s that it was discussed into the first WTO's International Conference on Youth Tourism, held in New Delhi, 1991 (Abdel-Ghaffar et al., 1992).

The tourist behavior is analyzed in many research articles from many points of view (Afshardoost and Eshaghi, 2020; Ferreira Silva et al., 2020; Huang et al., 2020; Jiménez-Barreto, 2020; Manosuthi et al., 2020; Tkaczynski et al., 2020; Wang et al., 2020; Xue and Zhang, 2020; Kock and Ringberg, 2019; Kock, Josiassen and Asssaf, 2018; Kumar, 2016; Lin and Kuo, 2016; Pearce, 2016), but students' tourist behavior not, with some exceptions (Tran et al., 2018; Pereira

^{*} Corresponding Author

López, 2016), which is why we considered this article useful in the context of student mobility is the maximum, at least in European countries. For students, all the above reasons to travel are increased by their energy and many times their desire to acquire knowledge – the knowledge production is also considered a tourist attraction (Travesi, 2017), especially cultural knowledge. Thus, there is a need to understand their behavior, in order to create satisfying travel offers.

Since tourism is already difficult to define (WTO), including students in the category of tourists poses even greater difficulties. However, in certain cases, students (or pupils) do become tourists, hence the concept of educational tourism (García-Rodríguez and Mendoza Jiménez, 2015; Pitman et al., 2011; Pawlowska and Roget, 2009), or international academic tourism (Bento, 2014). Certain interesting cases appear when educational activities (cultural/school exchange programs, field trips) are regarded as tourist activities, this happening because the trip is necessary for the study process. Summarizing, educational tourism means the travel activity of people with the main goal of accumulating knowledge (Pawlak, 2015).

The concentration of foreign students in cities (Michael et al., 2004) is justified by the offer provided by the urban environment: "Towns and cities provide the context (...) where tourism, leisure and entertainment form major service activities. These environments also function as meeting places, major tourist gateways, accommodation and transportation hubs, and as central places to service the needs of visitors" (Hall and Page, 2006, p. 222).

According to WTO, young people travel in order to increase their knowledge about the world, to experience and understand different cultures and, at least 70% of them, in order to study and travel in other countries. Thus, they participate in the tourism process. Other sources tell the same thing (Abdullateef and Biodun, 2014) adding that many times the statistical image is false or difficult to understand. Even so, studies on this have been done (Pawlak, 2015), with results that encourage the goals of this paper such as showing that foreign students travel more than local ones; three types of the most common of those travels being observed: spontaneous travel, organized travels and study abroad (such as Erasmus+).

MATERIALS AND METHODS

This paper aims at understanding the tourist behavior of foreign students in Warsaw, the Capital city of Poland. Accordingly, it will show how students behave when they consider themselves tourists, if they used their time in Warsaw for tourist activities and if they went out of the city for tourism. The data concerning tourism and the total number of students in Warsaw was obtained from the Statistical Yearbook of the city of Warsaw or from the web-page of the Statistics Poland. However, the raw data is not telling anything about the tourist experience of those students. Since this paper aims at offering a view of that experience, this was done by analyzing the questionnaire answers of 50 foreign students, present in Warsaw in the spring of 2016.

For data analysis we used Cluster analysis and ANOVA in SPSS. Cluster Analysis is "an exploratory analysis that tries to identify structures within the data. Cluster analysis is also called segmentation analysis or taxonomy analysis. More specifically, it tries to identify homogenous groups of cases if the grouping is not previously known" (Statistics Solutions, 2018). ANOVA, or Analysis of Variance, "is used for examining the differences in the mean values of the dependent variable associated with the effect of the controlled independent variables, after taking into account the influence of the uncontrolled independent variables" (Statistics Solutions, 2018).

Here, the sample numbered 50 foreign students which answered an online questionnaire (Note 1) disseminated through social media platforms (Facebook) and e-mail. A sample is a collection of measurable objects, individuals or data selected by the study conductor in a random or specific way (Asandului, 2002). The size of this sample is small because it is limited by the lack of access to data regarding the status of foreign students, the questionnaire being applied in the circle of known students. Since the language used for the questionnaire was English, it is visible that the respondents from Ukraine and Belarus are a minority, the great majority of respondents being from the European Union (EU) countries. Concerning the nationality, three of the respondents didn't specify theirs. As

of those who did, only one of them comes from a country at the Equator (Indonesia) hence the others are from the northern hemisphere. It should also be noted that the big proportion of respondents from East-European and Balkan countries is explained by the close trade and political relations between Poland and those countries. Half of the respondents were Erasmus+ students while the others were receiving a scholarship from the Polish government or where exchange students (other programs). More than half (56%) chose to study in Warsaw because they could travel to Poland while 42% because of academic opportunities. From a different point of view, 69% of the respondents studied in Warsaw at the time of the research while the other 40% already finished their studies in the city. As for the length of their study stay, 46% studied in the city for more than one semester, 26% where there for full degree length while just one respondent spent less than one month in the city.

Financially, 42.9% answered that they received parental funding during their stay in Warsaw, as their main income source, 32.7% declared their scholarship as their principal revenue. Regarding gender, 61% where females, the rest were males and one chose not to answer the question regarding sex. Finally, we have to separate the 49 respondents who gave details about their income sources into two groups, 42% which were supported by parents and 32% which benefited from scholarships while the other smaller group were either working or using their savings. Among the respondents, 34.8% had a monthly income varying between €90 and €499, 48.8% had access to incomes varying between €499 and €999 while the other 13.9% had access to sums larger than €1000. Bearing in mind that the living costs in Warsaw are smaller than in western European capitals (from authors own experience, more than €300 suffice for accommodation and food, especially if the students live in university subsidized hotels), we can safely assume that many foreign students are using their surplus income in tourist activities.

RESULTS AND DISCUSSIONS

In order to understand the influence of tourism in a certain area, one of best way to do so is by using the benchmarking technique (Heely, 2011; Hot spots, 2012), which means comparing two or more similar administrative entities from the point of view of important tourist statistical indicators; such as bed-nights, number of tourists and tourism profit. Maybe surprisingly for a city destroyed so many times during its history, the tourism sector of Warsaw is growing year on.

With more than eight million visitors in 2016, the city became the most visited from Poland, even if there is a big competition in the country. In Figure 1 is a comparison that shows how the only real competitor for Warsaw is Krakow, from the point of view of tourism. A useful tourism research was made for another big Polish city, Poznan (Kotus et al., 2015). For a more accurate image of the tourism evolution of Polish cities see a work complete with time series and a beautifully designed synthetic indicator for measuring tourism development of the country's cities, among which Warsaw (Majewska, 2011). As for the whole Europe, the city is trying to become important in a very competitive regional city tourism area, with cities like Wien and Prague that it has to look up to. However, statistically, the city was ranked 43rd on a global level and on the 14th place in the EU on a scale comparing the total number of tourists visiting the cities (Geerts, 2016).

Warsaw is the Capital city and among the most important economic regions of Poland, and one of its major functions is that of an academic center. According to European Commission (European Commission - Study in Europe - Country Profile - Poland, 2015), in 2014 there were 1.46 million students in Poland out of which more than 223000 in Warsaw.

In the same year, overall, there were about 55000 foreign students in the country, of which 16628 in the Capital. Looking at the last years (Figure 2), it can be seen a downfall of the total number of students in Warsaw, probably caused by the general demographic decline of the country and by increasing academic importance of other Polish cities, such as Krakow.

However, an opposite trend is presented by the foreign students in Warsaw, which grew from a share of just 2% in 2010/2011 to over 7% in 2015/2016. Unfortunately, there were no data available as to determine the nationalities of the foreign students from Warsaw but, looking at a national level, it can be seen that the Ukrainians and Belarusians are the dominating groups, partly

explained by the economic and historic ties of the two countries with Poland and by the similarity of their languages with Polish.



Figure 1. Comparison of tourism indicators between Warsaw and the next seven most important Polish cities (Data source: BDL, 2015)





The real identity of Warsaw differs from the one shown through the main tourist info site (Warsawtour.pl) (Lange, 2012). He insists on the modern and cultural side of the city as opposed to the unclear image promoted by the site. A different approach shows that all the information sources are contributing to the creation of the city's image while the tour-operators are the ones focusing on culture (Dudek-Mankowska, 2009). The foreign students in Warsaw associated the city with communism and winter before their stay while, during or after their stay, that image improved to one of a green city, full of culture, nightlife but still dominated by the communist Palace of Culture. In order to determine the above-mentioned aspects, the questionnaire begun with inquiries regarding which features they associated the city with prior to arrival (they were able to choose between the following options which were offered based on literature and the city image communicated by official marketing means: Winter, Summer, Second World War (II WW), Communism/Sad Urban Landscape, Old Town, Night Life/Bars, Sky Scrapers, Palace of Culture and Science, Jewish Warsaw/Ghetto, Green areas, Chopin, Museums). Most of them associated the city with Winter

(82%) and II WW, Communism, Old Town and Chopin (all having been selected by about 50 to 60% of the respondents). However, when asked at the end of the questionnaire if they associate the city with the same features as they did prior to their arrival, their feedback was different, a very big share of the respondents (80% or more) now associated the city with: The Palace of Science and Culture, Chopin, Green areas, Night Life, Sky Scrapers and II WW. Out of them, the most prominent symbol was the Palace of Science and Culture, due to its central position, dominating the city's CBD. The symbol that saw the most significant growth was represented by Sky Scrapers whiles the Communism and related fell drastically. Green Spaces, museums and Chopin are all symbols that grew in importance for students. All these show the developing efforts of Warsaw in order for the city to have a friendlier image and also the interests and activities of the foreign students.

Tackling the most important matters, 56% of the respondents chose Warsaw for studying because of travel possibilities while 72% considered themselves also tourists and not only students (Table 1) during their stay in the capital of Poland. Also, the longer the stay, the less those students identified themselves as tourists (after one semester). Since so many of the respondents regarded themselves as tourists, this is the most important feature that gives this research a positive tone, hence its aim to discover the student's tourists needs and behavior.

		Did you consider yourself a tourist?		
		2=No	1=Yes	
	Patwaan one month and a somester	Count	4	19
	Between one month and a semester	% within length of stay	17.4%	82.6%
Length of stay	For an antira dagraa	Count	3	10
	For all entire degree	% within length of stay	23.1%	76.9%
	Less than one month	Count	1	0
		% within length of stay	100.0%	0.0%
	More than one competer	Count	6	7
	whole than one semester	% within length of stay	46.2%	53.8%
Total		Count	14	36
		% within length of stay	28.0%	72.0%

 Table 1. Correlation table between the length of studies and perception as tourists (Data source: own data)

Regardless of the duration of their stay, 72% of the foreign students considered themselves tourists. However, looking at this perception from different time categories about 80% students spending between one month and one semester in Warsaw (and those enjoying full degree studies in the city) considered themselves tourists, while among the ones that spent more than one semester but less than a full degree time in the city only half of them had a self-perception as tourist. We can assume that the time spent in a foreign city, does not highly influence student's perception as being also a tourist or not; however this idea must be tested on a bigger statistical population.

Even if the language was a barrier for some of the respondents, the majority had a good interaction with the local people and a good opinion about the town, 90% would return as tourists, while half just for work. Thus, 77% of the students enjoyed traveling around the city and the nightlife, 65% were attracted by cultural tourism while most of the female respondents enjoyed shopping in the city. Taking all these into account it becomes no wonder that so many of the students considered themselves tourists while in Warsaw.

When analyzing the relationship between the total income of the students and their view on the affordability of Warsaw (Figure 3) we cannot identify any visible correlation and thus we can conclude that the perception on affordability is a purely subjective one. On the other hand, when asked, the foreign students had ideas as to how the city can serve them better, from a tourist point of view. Those were: organizing more concerts, English should be more widely spoken (many students would like the Polish people to be friendlier with using the English language), more cycling paths and a friendlier attitude of locals towards foreigners (this, however, has to do with the language barrier since very few of the poles born before the 1990s speak English).



Figure 3. Correlation between incomes and affordability of Warsaw city (Data source: own data)

Even if at the start of their stay in Warsaw, the foreign students didn't perceive the city as it wanted to be perceived which is: modern, friendly, smart and full of history (Lange, 2012; Dudek-Mankowska, 2009); during their stay and after, the foreign students saw the city as it is marketed or very close to that but, still marked by the communist scars which are to found especially in the architecture. Summing up, the image of the city is a positive one, with only one important thing to improve, which is the locals' attitude towards the English language

Students are a very mobile social group (Abdullateef and Biodun, 2014), and the foreign students from Warsaw do not differ. Over 90% of the respondents used Warsaw as a starting point for traveling to other parts of the country while 78% travelled from the city to other parts of Europe.

As the below representation shows (Figure 4), the most visited destinations where those closer to Warsaw, especially in the V4 group. However, it can be seen long distance travels also, the most probable reason for their occurrence being family visits. On the other hand, a connection between the length of stay in Warsaw and the distance students travelled was spotted, with the longer stays translating into journeys on longer distances.



Figure 4. Cities where the foreign students travelled to, starting from Warsaw (Data source: own data)

Regarding financial aspects of the their stay in Warsaw, 92% of the questioned ones declared that they spent money on tourist activities, which is somewhat not surprising since 72% of them considered themselves tourist. Out of the respondents, 70% appreciated how much they spent monthly on tourist's activities. These can be further divided into three categories: more than half of them spent less than 150 \in monthly on tourism, 25% spent between 140 and 300 \in on tourism while the rest spent more (with two very high sums appearing: 900 \in and 2000 \in , though this might be as a result of misunderstanding the question). All these numbers must be completed by the fact that 88% of the respondents regard Warsaw as an accessible city, from a financial point of view. We can thus safely assume that the foreign students visiting Warsaw have a lot of disposable income which they can use for tourist's activities, especially since living in the city is not a great financial burden for the most.



Figure 5. ANOVA test and correlation matrix (Data source: own data)

By utilizing the ANOVA test (Baloglu, 1997), we intended to show if the students' incomes are somehow influencing their tourist behavior (Figure 5). Four different tests were done but the budget for tourism didn't influence the tourist decisions of students (as to how much time they spend on tourism or the distance they travelled). The distribution of incomes compared with the affordability of the city for students could not be correlated so their incomes did not pose a great stress on their experience. The results are explained by the fact that the students as a group, are travelling proportionally more than other human groups, in spite of their incomes, while also not spending a lot at the destination (Pawlak, 2015).

A profile of the respondents was created through the Cluster Analysis, in which their relation to the tourist offers accessed in Warsaw was analyzed. The indicators used were the following (derived from questionnaire questions): tourist offers were easily accessible, tourist offers for students, longest trip in distance, and longest trip in days and income. The analysis was made with SPSS using the Two Step Cluster option.

Since the first two indicators were categorical, they were the most important while the last three which, though not being so important for the final resulting cluster, serve well for the purpose of understanding the final result.

Group description:

1. 45.5% is a middle way group which had access to tourist offers, had medium incomes and enjoyed a medium travel time.

2. 21.2% is the least numerous group, made out of students which had no problem finding tourists offers targeting them, with high incomes and long journeys.

3. 33.3% is a group made out of students which travel above the average while not having access to student targeted tourist offers.

We can thus appreciate that the foreign students from Warsaw travelled regardless of incomes or targeted tourism offer, travelled and enjoyed their time in Warsaw, as tourists. However, those who had access to offers designed for students generally travelled more and used those offers.

CONCLUSION

The foreign students that chose Warsaw in 2016 view themselves as tourists and their behavior is in accordance with that view. Both in the city and outside it, they did take the chance to discover the most they could during their study time, regardless of their incomes or time spent there. Though they do have access to some tourist offers designed for them it is clear that the city should do more to satisfy their demand for tourist activities. Given the existing Erasmus mobility program and other academic programs, local policies must profit from this opportunity and be oriented also to the satisfaction of this segment of tourists.

Despite the obvious limitations of this research (the lack of access to some data, the sample research is not statistically significant), we believe that other studies, improved, including larger ones, can be carried out on this model, the more so as the tourist behavior of the students it has not been analyzed in other research works.

Notes

(1) - Link to the on-line questionnaire:

https://drive.google.com/open?id=1vhPVyhBgD09So4ZVYvBiBIIEnPZCqYeL.

REFERENCES

- Abdel-Ghaffar, A., Handy, M., Jafari, J., Kreul, L., & Stivala, F. (1992). Conference reports: Youth tourism. Annals of Tourism Research, 19(4), 792-795. https://doi.org/10.1016/0160-7383(92)90069-2
- Abdullateef, A. O., Biodun, A. B. (2014). Are international students tourists?. *International Journal of Business and Globalisation* 1, 13(3), 298-306. https://doi.org/10.1504/IJBG.2014.064677
- Afshardoost, M., Eshaghi, M. S. (2020). Destination image and tourist behavioural intentions: A meta-analysis. *Tourism Management*, 81 (2020). https://doi.org/10.1016/j.tourman.2020.104154
- Asandului, L. (2002). Statistica turismului. Aplicații [Tourism statistics. Applications], Junimea, Iasi (in Romanian).
- Baloglu, S. (1997). The relationship between destination images and sociodemographic and trip characteristics of international travellers. *Journal of vacation marketing*, 3(3), 221-233. https://doi.org/10.1177/135676679700300304
- BDL (1995). Bank Danych Lokalnych. Retrieved Decembrie 12, 2015, from http://stat.gov.pl/bdlen/app/strona.html?p_name=indeks
- Bento, J. P. C. (2014). The determinants of international academic tourism demand in Europe. *Tourism Economics*, 20(3), 611-628. https://doi.org/10.5367/te.2013.0293
- Dudek-Mankowska S. (2009). Warsaw's destination image. In W. WIlk (Ed.), Global Changes: Their Regional and Local Aspects (pp. 187-195). Warsaw: University of Warsaw-Faculty of Geography and Regional Studies.
- European Commission (2015). *Study in Europe Country Profile Poland*. Retrieved from https://ec.europa.eu/education/study-in-europe/country-profiles/poland_en
- Ferreira Silva, F. J. et al. (2020). Is the spending behaviour of tourists affected by low-cost carriers' operation? Some empirical evidence. *Tourism Management Perspectives*, 33 (2020). https://doi.org/10.1016/j.tmp.2019.100630
- García-Rodríguez, F. J., Mendoza Jiménez, J. (2015). The role of tourist destination in international students' choice of academic center: the case of erasmus programme in the Canary Islands. PASOS. *Revista de Turismo y Patrimonio Cultural*, 175-189.
- Geerts, W. (2016). Euromonitor International, Top 100 City Destinations Ranking. Retrieved from http://observatorituristic.aralleida.com/ftp/documents/Estadistiques/M%C3%A9s%20estudis%20d%C2%B4altres%20organismes/ 0002.-%202017%20Top%20100%20Cities%20Destinations%20Final%20Report%20Euromonitor.pdf
- Hall, C. M., & Page, J. S. (2006). The Geography of Tourism and Recreation, 3rd edition, London and New York: Routlege.
- Heely, J. (2011). Iside City Tourim: An European Perspective (Part of the "Aspects of Tourism" Series ed.). Channel View Publications.
- Horak, S., Weber, S. (2000). Youth tourism in Europe: Problems and prospects. *Tourism Recreation Research*, 25(3), 37-44. https://doi.org/10.1080/02508281.2000.11014923
- Hot spots (2012). Benchmarking global city competitiveness. Retrieved from Economist Intelligence Unit: https://www.citigroup.com/citi/citiforcities/pdfs/eiu_hotspots_2012.pdf
- Huang, X., Li, M., Zhang, J., et al. (2020). Tourists' spatial-temporal behavior patterns in theme parks: A case study of Ocean Park Hong Kong. Journal of Destination Marketing & Management, 15 (2020) https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jdmm.2020.100411
- Jiménez-Barreto, J. et al. (2020). Linking the online destination brand experience and brand credibility with tourists' behavioral intentions toward a destination. *Tourism Management*, 79 (2020). https://doi.org/10.1016/j.tourman.2020.104101

- Kock, F., Josiassen, A., & Asssaf, A. G. (2018). On the origin of tourist behavior. Annals of Tourism Research, 73 (2018), 180-183. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.annals.2018.04.002
- Kock, F., Ringberg, T. (2019). Embodied cognition effects on tourist behavior. Annals of Tourism Research, 78 (2019). https://doi.org/10.1016/j.annals.2019.05.002
- Kotus, J., Rzeszewski, M., & Ewertowski, W. (2015). Tourists in the spatial structures of a big Polish city: Development of an uncontrolled patchwork or concentric spheres? *Tourism Management*, 50, 98-110. http://dx.doi.org/10.1016/j.tourman.2015.01.007.
- Kumar, V. (2016). Examining the role of destination personality and self-congruity in predicting tourist behavior. *Tourism Management Perspectives*, 20, 217-227. http://dx.doi.org/10.1016/j.tmp.2016.09.006.
- Lange, M. (2012). Warsaw City Brand developing a brand positioning for Warsaw to increase its appeal. Retrieved from http://studenttheses.cbs.dk/bitstream/handle/10417/3238/marcel_lange.pdf?sequence=1
- Lin, C., Kuo, B. (2016). The Behavioral Consequences of Tourist Experience. *Tourism Management Perspectives*, 18, 84-91. http://dx.doi.org/10.1016/j.tmp.2015.12.017.
- Majewska, J. (2011). The measurment and evaluation of tourism development in polish cities in the last decade comparison of Poznan with the biggest cities in Poland. In G. Gołembski, Determinants of Tourism Development in Urban Destinations and Methods of Tourism Measurment (pp. 33-59). Poznań: Wydawnictwo Uniwersytetu Ekonomicznego w Poznaniu.
- Manosuthi, N., Lee, J.-S., & Han, H. (2020). Impact of distance on the arrivals, behaviours and attitudes of international tourists in Hong Kong: A longitudinal approach. *Tourism Management*, 78 (2020). https://doi.org/10.1016/j.tourman.2019.103963
- Michael, I., Armstrong, A., & King, B. (2004). The travel behavior of international students: The relationship between studying abroad and their choice of tourist destinations. *The Journal of Vacation Marketing*, 10(1), 57-66. https://doi.org/10.1177/135676670301000106
- Pawlak, A. (2015). Demand side of international students tourism market. Case of Umeå Sweden. Umeå: Umeå Universitet.
- Pawlowska, E., Roget, F. M. (2009). Una aproximación al impacto económico directo del turismo académico: El caso de los intercambios Erasmus en la universidad de Santiago de Compostela [An approach to the direct economic impact of academic tourism: The case of Erasmus exchanges at the University of Santiago de Compostela]. *Revista Galega De Economía*, 1-20.
- Pearce, P. (2016). Australian contributions to tourist behaviour studies. *Journal of Hospitality and Tourism Management*, 26, 84-90, https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jhtm.2016.01.004
- Pereira López, X. (2016). The economic impact of international students in a regional economy from a tourism perspective. *Tourism Economics*, 22 (1), 125–140. https://doi.org/10.5367/te.2014.0414.
- Pitman, T., Broomhall, S., & Majocha, E. (2011). Teaching ethics beyond the academy: Educational tourism, lifelong learning and phronesis. *Studies in the Education of Adults*, 4-17.
- Statistics Solutions (2018). Retrieved from Anova in SPSS: https://www.statisticssolutions.com/anova-in-spss/
- Statistics Solutions (2018). Retrieved from Cluster Analysis: https://www.statisticssolutions.com/cluster-analysis-2/
- Study in Poland Over 57 119 international students in Poland. (2015). Retrieved from http://www.studyinpoland.pl/en/index.php/news/43-over-57-119-international-students-in-
- poland#:~:targetText=There%20are%2057%20119%20international,%2C%20in%202015%20%2D%203.1%25).
- Tkaczynski, A., Rundle-Thiele, S., & Truong, V. D. (2020). Influencing tourists' pro-environmental behaviours: A social marketing application. *Tourism Management Perspectives*, 36 (2020). https://doi.org/10.1016/j.tmp.2020.100740
- Tran, M., Moore, K., & Shonec, M. (2018). Interactive mobilities: Conceptualising VFR tourism of international students. Journal of Hospitality and Tourism Management, 35, 85-91.
- Travesi, C. (2017). The politics of knowledge as a tourist attraction. Annals of Tourism Research, 130-139. http://dx.doi.org/10.1016/j.annals.2017.07.014
- Wang, C. et al. (2020). Examining the dimensions and mechanisms of tourists' environmental behavior: A theory of planned behavior approach. *Journal of Cleaner Production*, 273 (2020). https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jclepro.2020.123007
- Xue, L., Zhang, Y. (2020). The effect of distance on tourist behavior: A study based on socialmedia data. Annals of Tourism Research, https://doi.org/10.1016/j.annals.2020.102916

Submitted: February 15, 2020 Revised: July 07, 2020 Accepted and published online Octomber 08, 2020

FLOOD RISK, TYPOLOGY, SEVERITY AND MANAGEMENT

Guellouh SAMI*

Laboratory LRNAT, University of Batna-2, Algeria, e-mail: <u>guellouhsami@gmail.com</u>

Filali ABDELWAHHAB

Laboratory LRNAT, University of Batna-2, Algeria, e-mail: <u>abdelwahhabfilali@gmail.com</u>

Habibi YAHYAOUI

Laboratory LRNAT, University of Batna-2, Algeria, e-mail: <u>y.habibi@univ-batna2.dz</u>

Kalla MOUHAMED ISSAM

Laboratory LRNAT, University of Batna-2, Algeria, e-mail: <u>kalla.issam@yahoo.fr</u>

Citation: Sami, G., Abdelwahhab, F., Yahyaoui, H. & Mouhamed Issam, K. (2020). Flood Risk, Typology, Severity and Management. *Analele Universității din Oradea, Seria Geografie*, 30(2), 176-181. <u>https://doi.org/10.30892/auog.302107-827</u>

Abstract: Flooding has now become a major and critical concern in most parts of the world. It is defined as frequent natural phenomena that cause significant and often irreversible human and material damages. The increase in the number of catastrophic floods is first and foremost the consequence of climate change as well as land use that is not in line with environmental reality (construction on floodplain areas, inconsistent development of river beds. This paper represents generalities and definitions which allow an explanation of some fundamental concepts related to flood risk and its management.

Key words: damage, flooding, management, risks,

* * * * * *

INTRODUCTION

Natural disasters have always posed serious problems because they affect a large number of people. Floods are among the most significant natural disasters affecting the world (Herman, 2009). Our societies have always been confronted with floods; rivers are both a wealth and a threat to the residents (Bravard and Petit, 1997, p. 213). This duality has long been seen as globally beneficial, but today it seems that this balance has been broken (Kreis, 2004, p. 2).

* Corresponding Author

Based on information (IDD: International Disaster Database) from the Centre for Research on the Epidemiology of Disasters (CRED, 2007), floods have been at the forefront of natural disaster in the world over the past two decades. Climate change introduces a new variable in the search for sustainable flood risk management (Gralepois and Guevara, 2015, p. 1-20). Taking into account a non-stationary of climatic conditions involves adaptation of flood risk reduction strategies.

Risk is defined as the mathematical expectation of damage to the environment during a reference period in a given region and for a particular hazard (ONU, 1992, p. 98). In a less simplistic way, risk depends on hazard and vulnerability.

Flood risk management is based on prevention, forecasting, protection and crisis management. The evolutions of knowledge and technologies have led to more accurate methods for flood management (Herman, 2010)

METODOLOGY

This work presents generalities and definitions which allow an explanation of some fundamental concepts related to flood risk and its management. We started with the definition of flood as a combination of hazard and vulnerability. We proceeded to its typology and severity. Finally, we explained its management and its modelling.

THE RISK OF FLOODING

Natural disasters are divided into six disaster groups: biological, geophysical, meteorological, hydrological, climatological, and extraterrestrial. Floods are in the hydrological group (Yang, 2020, 1-20). Floods encountered around the world are diverse and evolving both in their nature and impact on society (Binns, 2020, p.1-3).

The bibliography offers many definitions of flooding, but they all converge on the following summary: Flooding is a fast or slow, total or partial submersion of an area usually out of water. This submersion can be natural or artificial. Flooding in a broad sense includes river overflows, the rise of water tables, flooding due to failure of protective structures, runoff from heavy thunderstorms and floods resulting from the conjunction of high tides.

The surface water flow is manifesting by stream flooding or outside any organized hydrographic network by the phenomenon of runoff. At the extreme, these phenomena can lead to flooding, flooding by overflow of streams in the first case and flooding by runoff in the second one (Fouchier, 2010, p. 27).

A flood is defined by different criteria such as its genesis, duration, frequency, volume and peak flow (or maximum flow). There is interdependence between the frequency (probability of occurrence) and the magnitude (severity) of this risk, and the floods with rare frequencies are the most severe and catastrophic.

The flood concept is usually defined by different criteria, such as its genesis, duration, frequency, volume and the peak low (or maximum flow). It is also known that there is a clear interdependence between the frequency (probability of occurrence) and the magnitude (severity) of the risk. In another hand, the floods with rare frequencies are the most severe and catastrophic ones.

The centennial or millennium designation characterizes an average probability of occurrence of the flood each year, but does not provide information on the duration between two events. The project flood is a given recurrence flood (depending on the environment and technological requirements) used to calculate dimensions of the hydraulic works and the resistance of the civil works.

Risk: Hazard and vulnerability

Risk is defined as the combination between hazard and vulnerability. It is thus the combination of the probability of hazard occurrence and the consequences that can result on vulnerable elements in a given environment (Morin, 2008, p. 60). Losses can be estimated in terms of human lives, destruction of infrastructure in financial terms and environmental disorder.

Risk = *hazard X vulnerability*

Hazard is a phenomenon, physical manifestation or activity that could result in loss of life or injury, damage to property, social and economic disruption or environmental degradation (Morin, 2008, p. 60). It is an uncontrollable physical phenomenon of occurrence with random intensities (Lacina, 2012, p. 217). It is defined by a probability that takes into account the occurrence and intensity of the phenomenon with being a function of time and space. A hazard can only cause damage if there are socio-economic and environmental issues exposed to it.

Vulnerability is a propensity to damage or failure of different exposed elements (property, people, activities, functions, systems) of a given territory and society (Leone and Vinet, 2006, p. 9-25). It is the sensitivity of populations and activities located in an area exposed to a hazard.

The main direct damage caused by flood hazards is damage to people, buildings, socioeconomic activities and the environment. Therefore, risk is necessarily the result of the intersection of two intimately related factors: hazard and vulnerability.

The risk is related to a natural or anthropogenic hazard whose foreseeable effects involves a large number of people, cause significant damages and exceed the response capacities of the directly concerned authorities (Ifen, 2002, p. 4).

For example, flooding does not constitute a risk in an uninhabited area, as no vulnerable element is theoretically present in terms of civil security (Tanguy, 2012, p. 40). If, in another hand, it affects a densely populated area, where important infrastructure is established, the risk will be present and may be important (Cutter et al., 2003, p. 242-261).

Flood risk definition can be considered from hydrological perspectives and geographical points of view. In the first case, emphasis is placed on floodplain areas, identified by hydrological estimates and hydraulic models, where river floods are likely to occur. In the second case, the combination of geographic conditions, environmental and socio-economic factors is used to determine areas with a high probability of damage (Luong, 2012, p. 325).

Typology of the floods

Flooding encompasses several types of events. The classical typology consists in distinguishing them according to their origin (natural or anthropogenic) and their speed (slow or fast).

Flooding associated with slow plain flooding occurs when rivers leave their minor beds for a long period of time, from a few days to a few weeks, due to heavy rainfall, either due to a rise in their alluvial water table. The kinetics of these floods, which concern large watersheds (more than 1000 km²), often make it possible to anticipate them correctly (Fouchier, 2010, p. 27).

Furthermore, torrential floods are characterized by the suddenness of their appearance and their evolution (a few hours) with a rapid response to precipitation. They are caused by intense rainfall over watersheds ranging from tens to hundreds km².

The severity of the flooding

Humans live in the world with natural hazards that would seem more and more frequent and intense. In recent years, floods remain the first risk-taking phenomenon of natural origin in the world. They can be a major risk with extremely harmful human and material consequences. They can cause very heavy and irreversible material, human and environmental damage.

Water-related disasters lead the development process to regress for decades. Floods can be one of the factors limiting the development capacity of human society, especially in poor and developing countries where alert capacity and experience of risk management are still limited.

According to the CRED (the Centre for Research on the Epidemiology of Disasters) report, there is an average of 37 catastrophic floods per year worldwide between 1900 and 2013. They account for 34% of global disasters between 1990 and 2007. Each year, floods affect an average of nearly 31 million people and cause more than 60,000 deaths. The number of people affected by disasters has increased considerably, reaching nearly 200 million in 2007 from 135 million in 2006.

Of this total, the vast majority (164 million) were affected by flooding. Between 2000 and 2006, an average of 95 million people was affected each year by this hazard.

The consequences are constantly increasing and becoming more and more fatal and increasing with years

The development of rivers that have long been undertaken locally without considering their downstream impact. The removal of flood expansion fields by dams has led to increase flooding in the downstream rivers. To avoid the replication of these errors, development projects must be considered at all watershed area (Kreis, 2004, p. 5).

FLOOD RISK MANAGEMENT

Flood control is not a new concern, and rivers have long been the focus of work to limit overflows in order to conserve human activities. The hydrological risk represented by floods is the result of the coexistence of this hydrological hazard and societies, which are mostly located near to rivers. Flood risk management is based on crisis prevention, forecasting, protection and management.

Prevention is an aspect of flood management outside of a crisis context. Counter to prevention, forecasting and crisis management correspond to actions in a state of emergency.

The forecast is intended to anticipate the occurrence of a flood and its consequences. Crisis management brings together all the means used to protect, inform and rescue (Hostache, 2006, p. 14).

To manage floods, there is now a greater emphasis on prevention (institutional and legal measures) more than protection (technical measure), which was for a long time dominant and still present (Beucher and Rode, 2009).

The reduction of hydrological risk requires both control of the hazard and mitigation of vulnerability. To protect populations, strategies are often the predetermination of rare floods, referring to the statistical assessment of flows associated with different return periods whose purpose is to implement Flood Risk Protection Plans to regulate urbanization and development in flood-prone areas and anticipate these events and shelter people before and during the flood.

Prevention aims to manage and reduce the risk (hazard and vulnerability) of flooding. On one hand, it includes informing people about the vulnerability to flooding and the steps to follow in the event of a crisis, on the other hand the establishment of protection means and the succor organization (Hostache, 2006, p. 17). It allows choosing a level of protection corresponding to the maximum degree of hazard. This prevention involves structural improvements (dikes, retention basins and dams) and non-structural ones (land use regulations, urban planning constraints). Preventive knowledge of risk can therefore help to lead the political choices of the territory and the protection of socio-economic issues through development (Fouchier, 2010, p. 27).

The forecast aims to anticipate the flood occurrence and its consequences in order to alert the population and put in place more effective succor. Contrary to prevention, forecasting is strongly influenced by time and it is interested to actual or in-formation flooding (Hostache, 2006, p. 17).

Crisis management brings together all the actions that come together during a flood to rescue and protect people and properties.

Hazards that exceed the level of protection determined represent the residual risk (Borrows, 2006, p. 1). This may include, for example, the flood that exceeds the project flood that was used to design a protection structure. The control of this residual risk is then based on monitoring and forecasting systems, alert and crisis management (Fouchier, 2010, p. 27).

FLOOD RISK MODELLING

This modelling aims to quantitatively measure the risk at any appropriate division of the territory.

Hydrological modelling

Hydrology encompasses all the processes which lead to the determination of flows in a river, associated with their probability of occurrence. There are two approaches in the hydrology: the deterministic approach and the statistical approach.

The deterministic approach considers all factors that may influence the watershed response and introduces them into a model for flow estimation.

The statistical approach allows the estimation of flows, of a given probability, from statistical laws that have been adjusted from series of measured flow data (Blin, 2001, p. 8-9).

Hydraulic modelling

A flood is a very complex natural phenomenon, whose analysis requires efficient and elaborate tools, for example hydraulic models. The main purpose of hydraulic models is to simulate hypothetical or real floods numerically, which makes it possible to characterize the hazards in space and time (water levels, flow rates, times of submersion, etc.).

Hydraulics refers to applications, calculations and treatments which allow water levels to be obtained from flow rates calculated at the scale of watercourse section.

Therefore, hydrology is the discipline which allows getting the flows and their return periods. Hydraulics is the discipline that makes it possible to obtain the water levels and the speeds corresponding to these flows.

Geographic information systems (GIS)

GIS are spatial analysis tools based on the overlay of qualitative and quantitative data, all georeferenced in the same projection system (Grivel, 2008, p. 517). GIS manipulates geographic information that refers to geodesy, global positioning (GPS), remote sensing and spatial reference databases related to environmental characteristics. A geographic information system has become an essential tool in flood diagnosis. It offers unprecedented flood extension mapping and being a valuable source of information in the preparation of Flood Risk Prevention Plans.

CONCLUSION

Flooding is one of the main natural hazards in the world; this unpredictable and recurring phenomenon is aggravated by intense human activities and a poorly organized space. The damage occurs when land cover in a flood-prone area is not suitable for flooding. For this reason, flooding in sparsely populated areas or in areas where urbanization is particularly well adapted to flooding results in little damage.

In the end, effective flood risk management must be based on three essential concepts: prevention, forecasting, protection and crisis management.

REFERENCES

Beucher, S., & Rode, S. (2009). L'aménagement des territoires face au risque d'inondation: regards croisés sur la Loire moyenne et le Val-de-Marne. M@ ppemonde (En ligne), (94), 1-19.

Binns, A. D. (2020). Flood mitigation measures in an era of evolving flood risk. https://doi.org/10.1111/jfr3.12659

- Blin, P. (2001). Développement d'une nouvelle méthode de cartographie du Risque unitaire d'inondation (crue) pour des résidences. Mémoire de Maître ès sciences (M. Sc.) Université du Québec. INRS-EAU, pp 8-9.
- Borrows, P. (2006). Living with flooding-Noah's legacy. Irrigation and Drainage. *The journal of the International Commission on Irrigation and Drainage*, 55(S1), S133-S140.

Bravard, J.P., & Petit, F. (1997). Les cours d'eau. Dynamique du système fluvial, Armand Colin, Paris.

CRED (2007). Bilan des catastrophes naturelles dans le monde de 1975 à 2004, The OFDA/CRED International Disaster Database, Université Catholique de Louvain, Bruxelles, Belgique.

Cutter, S. L., Boruff, B. J., & Shirley, W. L. (2003). Social vulnerability to environmental hazards. Social science quarterly, 84(2), 242-261.

Fouchier, C. (2010). Développement d'une méthodologie pour la connaissance régionale des crues (Doctoral dissertation, Doctorat Université Montpellier II).

Gralepois, M., & Guevara, S. (2015). L'adaptation aux risques d'inondation façonnée par les métiers de la ville. Tensions à l'échelle du projet d'aménagement. Développement durable et territoires. Économie, géographie, politique, droit, sociologie, 6(3), 11014.

Grivel, S. (2008). La Loire des îles, du Bec d'Allier à Gien : rythmes d'évolution et enjeux de gestion [Ressource électronique] sous la direction de E. Costard-Gautier. Université Paris VIII Vincennes-Saint Denis, pp. 517.

- Herman, G. V. (2010). Using Geographical Information (GIS) System for Management of Flood Risks in the Somes Plain. In Cross-Border Partnership with Special Regard to the Hungarian - Romanian - Ukrainian Tripartite Border, Book Editors Ioan Horga, Istvan Suli Zakar, Publishing House University of Debrecen Press, p. 175 -179.
- Herman, G.V. (2009). Omul şi modificările antropice din Câmpia Someşului [The man and anthropogenic changes in Somes Plain]. Editura Universității din Oradea, p. 227 p., ISBN 978-973-759-981-0, Oradea.
- Hostache, R. (2006). Analyse d'images satellitaires d'inondations pour la caractérisation tridimensionnelle de l'aléa et l'aide à la modélisation hydraulique. Thèse de Doctorat, spécialité Sciences de l'eau, UMR Territoires, Environnement, Télédétection et Information Spatiale, Cemagref /ENGREF/CIRAD, Montpellier, France, pp. 14.

IFEN (2002). Catastrophes naturelles et plans de prévention des risques. Les données de l'environnement, n°73, pp 4.

- Kreis, N. (2004). Modélisation des crues des rivières de moyenne montagne pour la gestion intégrée du risque d'inondation application a la vallée de la Thur (Haut-Rhin). Thèse de doctorat à l'Ecole Nationale du Génie de l'Eau et de l'Environnement de Strasbourg, pp 5.
- Lacina, T. (2012). Analyse des refoulements dans les réseaux de drainage urbain [enligne]. Mémoire présenté à l'Ecole de Technologie Supérieure, l'Université du Québec, pp 217.
- Leone, F., & Vinet, F. (2006). La vulnérabilité, un concept fondamental au cœur des méthodes d'évaluation des risques naturels. la «Vulnérabilité des sociétés et territoires face aux menaces naturelles», Ouvrage collectif sous la direction de Leone F. et Vinet F., Géorisques, 4.
- Luong, A. T. (2012). Évaluation des risques d'inondations dans le bassin du fleuve Huong, province de Thua Thien Hue, centre du Vietnam (Doctoral dissertation, Université du Québec à Montréal).
- Morin, M. (2008). Concepts de base en sécurité civile, pp 60.
- O.N.U./DAH. (1992). Glossaire international multilingue agréé de termes relatifs à la gestion des catastrophes, http://www.unisdr.org/unisdr/glossaire.html, pp 98.
- Tanguy, M. (2012). Cartographie du risque d'inondation en milieu urbain adaptée à la gestion de crise analyse préliminaire. Dans le cadre de son examen doctoral pour l'obtention du doctorat en Sciences de l'eau. Institut national de la recherche scientifique Centre Eau Terre Environnement 490, rue de la Couronne Québec (Québec) G1K 9A9. pp 40.
- Yang, T. H., & Liu, W. C. (2020). A general overview of the risk-reduction strategies for floods and droughts. Sustainability, 12(7), 2687.

Submitted: Octomber 10, 2019 Revised: July 07, 2020 Accepted and published online December 02, 2020 Analele Universității din Oradea, Seria Geografie ISSN 1221-1273, E-ISSN 2065-3409

THE TOURIST AND TECHNICAL INFRASTRUCTURE SURVEY WITHIN THE ORADEA RURAL LEISURE METROPOLITAN BELT

Marcu STAŞAC*

University of Oradea, Department of Geography, Tourism and Territorial Planning, University St., 410087, Oradea, Romania, e-mail: <u>marcu_stasac@yahoo.com</u>

Marius I. STUPARIU

University of Oradea, Department of Geography, Tourism and Territorial Planning, University St., 410087, Oradea, Romania, e-mail: <u>marius_stupariu@yahoo.co.uk</u>

Corina Florina TĂTAR

University of Oradea, Department of Geography, Tourism and Territorial Planning, University St., 410087, Oradea, Romania, e-mail: <u>corina_criste_78@yahoo.com</u>

Ribana LINC

University of Oradea, Department of Geography, Tourism and Territorial Planning, University St., 410087, Oradea, Romania, e-mail: <u>ribanalinc@yahoo.com</u>

Liviu BUCUR

University of Oradea, Department of Geography, Tourism and Territorial Planning, University St., 410087, Oradea, Romania, e-mail: <u>liviubucur@yahoo.com</u>

Iulian DINCĂ

University of Oradea, Department of Geography, Tourism and Territorial Planning, University St., 410087, Oradea, Romania, e-mail: <u>iulian_dinca@yahoo.co.uk</u>

Stelian NISTOR

University of Oradea, Department of Geography, Tourism and Territorial Planning, University St., 410087, Oradea, Romania, e-mail: <u>snistor@uoradea.ro</u>

Citation: Staşac, M., Stupariu I.M., Tătar, Corina-Florina, Linc, Ribana, Bucur, L., Dincă, I., Nistor S. (2020). The Tourist and Technical Infrastructure Survey within the Oradea Rural Leisure Metropolitan Belt. *Analele Universității din Oradea, Seria Geografie*, 30(2), 182-193. https://doi.org/10.30892/auog.302108-857

Abstract: The current study is meant to be a contribution to the promotion and development of an important geographical area for the municipality of Oradea, namely the rural proximity area that is part of the Oradea Metropolitan Area (OMA). The magnitude of the tourism phenomenon, as a sustainable resource could contribute to a functional reconsideration of this space that can bring about an overall territorial development, based on economic competitiveness, sustainable development, social cohesion or the development of new technologies. In this sense, it is not possible to conceive the development of an area

from a tourist viewpoint without the existence of a suitable infrastructure (tourist, technical, transport), because it can influence, depending on the endowment degree and updated technology, the volume and structure of the tourist traffic. Thus, the main infrastructure components were identified, quantified and analyzed, each TAU being granted a certain score according to the evaluation methodology, based on which a certain hierarchy and highlighting of the main dysfunctions could be achieved. In conclusion, it was found that the existing tourist and technical infrastructure is satisfactory, but disproportionately distributed, a situation somewhat accountable due of the existence of the two spas, Băile Felix and Băile 1 Mai.

Key words: tourist infrastructure, technical infrastructure, Oradea Metropolitan Area (OMA), metropolitan rural area

* * * * * *

INTRODUCTION

The tourist infrastructure as a component part of the general infrastructure, which, moreover, the former supports and integrates, has an overwhelming importance for a certain territory, contributing to the creation of necessary conditions for the organization of tourist services.

Starting from the importance of the tourist and technical infrastructure for a certain territory, in our case the territorial administrative units (TAU) that make up the rural area of Oradea Metropolitan Area (OMA), in this research we identified and quantified the main components of the two categories of infrastructure in order to contribute to the development of the tourist phenomenon, thus increasing the attractiveness of the rural area from the metropolitan perimeter.

Another important aim that we followed was to analyze each infrastructure-related component, at a TAU level, in order to observe the degree of their endowment, so that later a hierarchy and a highlighting of the main dysfunctions could be acomplished.

Given the economic administrative and tourist importance, this metropolitan area has been and still represents an important basis of scientific research. The tourist valences were highlighted by many researches of authors such: Dincă, 2008; Ilieş and Josan, 2009; Baias et al., 2010; Staşac and Bucur, 2010; Ilieş et al., 2011; Dincă et al., 2012; Bucur, 2012; Ilieş et al., 2013; Herman and Tătar, 2015; Dincă et al., 2017; Tătar et al., 2018; Linc et al., 2019; Herman et al., 2020; etc.

The tourist infrastructure and technical facilities has an impact on tourist development in the environs of cities, factors which were analyzed for the current study of the rural OMA. The former relates to the accommodation, restoration, cure and entertainment facilities and the technical support to transportation and communication accessibility. Among them the accommodation industry stood out in terms of statistics. Nowadays accommodation industry features a wide range of diversity and specialization (Weaver and Lawton, 2014), most predominant tourist stayovers still being in hotels followed by motels, ecolodges, timesharing, resort hotels, extended apartment hotels, villas, guesthouses, campsites; a sector which draws attention for the tourism analysts as it most often drives the largest tourist expenditure during the trip. The contemporary accommodation infrastructure adds value to the experience by providing ancillary services and products, besides that of shelter (Page, 2019). In the case of the analyzed territory of the rural OMA, resort hotels, followed by motels and guesthouses hold the largest share due to the two spas located on the rural areas of the metropolitan area, amounting to 93,3%, showing that an old tourist consumption practically still dominates the entire rural metropolitan area, despite the huge natural (Tătar et al., 2018) and man-made tourist potential of the entire metropolitan area. As in the case of Fuschi and Evangelista's (2017) rural tourism case study, the tourist infrastructure-related results indicate that despite the great opportunity for tourism and local development, the rural area of the OMA suffers from low accommodation networking and an unbalanced accommodation facilities' distribution. It is estimated that the most of growth will take

place in cities and their environs (Halcrow Group Ldt., 2008), with a need for relaxation in the rural surrounding metropolitan areas which will function as recreational belts around cities. As this rural urbanization occurs fast-paced, it needs to be done sustainably and healthily, backed-up by pro-active policies so as to reduce inequalities among its composing communes and spread tourist flows equally throughout the entire rural area of the metropolitan belt. Rural development should bring about an expanding employment in the suburban areas (Sykora and Ourednicek, 2007), also in the tourism sector. The tourism rural metropolitan development is possible due to a clustering of technical infrastructure facilities that lie at of the basis of most economic and social activities. The technical infrastructure in the rural OMA was surveyed for road, air, water accessibility, water sewage and Internet connection. For instance, the internet technology has proved to be a particularly good tool for consumers to communicate about social topics such as holidays and travel (Page, 2019). The results for this analysis showed a rather reduced score, the average for the entire rural OMA being of 11 points out of 30 allocated points, the average score being much negatively influenced by a very low score of the two newly entered communes (3 points) in the metropolitan area versus the other communes which most range above 10 points, indicating gaps in technical coverage. With a good transport and communication accessibility travel and holidaymaking speeds up, thus "linking transport, spatial structures and social effects" (Geurs et al., 2012, p. 7).

METHODOLOGY

In order to achieve this scientific research, we relied on the Methodology for assessing the tourist potential in the basic administrative-territorial units. According to it, the diagnosis of the tourist and technical infrastructure was made taking into account the following components:

- specific tourist infrastructure (i.e. tourist accommodation units; treatment facilities; conference rooms, exhibition centers, etc.; ski slopes and skiing cable facilities; entertainment facilities).

- technical infrastructure (accessibility to major transportation; sewage facilities; telecommunication coverage).

For each component specific to the two infrastructure categories existing at the level of each TAU which makes up the rural space of the OMA scoring points were granted according to the evaluation methodology. Thus, each commune accumulated a certain score depending on the concentration degree of the components specific to the tourist and technical infrastructure. Based on this score, it was possible to make a ranking of the TAUs highlighing which one is better equipped versus the other.

Furtheron, in order to achieve our goal, we did desktop reference documetation, based on the national and international literature. Field trips were also made to locate and quantify the main units that make up the tourist and technical infrastructure. For the analysis and interpretation of data obtained both from various statistical sources and from the field, the method of analysis and synthesis was applied and by the help of ArcGis Online we elaborated maps with the tourism and technical infrastructure outspread in the territory within the 11 metropolitan TAUs.

The elements of the tourist infrastructure can be found in an ArcGIS Online document, developed by the authors of this article, an application that allows the sharing of content with other people, both Romanian and other languages. The access to the information from the ArcGIS Online document can be made via the following link: https://dgtatamd.maps.arcgis.com/apps/webappviewer/index.html?id=e05528e7d74a47ad999b4698fc8e64ed.

RESULTS AND DEBATES

Oradea Metropolitan Area - the characteristics of the tourist infrastructure

The prosperity, the high economic and enhanced socio-cultural standard of the metropolitan area is also the result of its underlying activities in the field of tourism which, in turn, could not develop satisfactorily unless an adequate and diverse tourist infrastructure exists.

In the OMA, two tourist spas from Sînmartin commune draw our attention, namely Băile Felix¹ and Băile 1 Mai² spas, their appearance and development being related to the presence of thermal waters and in their planning of the urbanization phenomenon trend is easily identified.

Regarding the *tourist accommodation units* (represented by hotels, motels, guesthouses, agritourism guesthouses, classified between 1-5 stars/flowers) from the OMA, there is an unequal spread, most of them being located in the two spas (Figure 1).

Sînmartin commune, through the presence of the two balneoclimatic spas, has a reputed tourist function. According to data from the Ministry of Tourism (updated in $06.11.2020)^3$, it holds 237 (93.3%) of the total 254 accommodation units of the rural OMA (Figure 2) and concentrates 8656 (94.7%) places for accommodation from a total of 9136 (Figure 3). Thus, the accommodation basis is very diversified, including 22 hotels, a 5 stars hotel with 262 beds accomodation acapacity, four 4 stars hotels (890 beds), twelve three stars' hotels (2102 beds) and five 2 stars hotels (1854 beds).

As can be seen, the 3 and 2 star hotels dominate, concentrating almost 80% of the accommodation hotel capacity. In fact, the entire accommodation basis in the rural metropolitan area is characterized by the dominance of 2 and 3 stars units (hotels, guesthouses, etc.) (Figure 4) in terms of comfort ranking categories (Figure 5). The other accommodation units in Sânmartin commune consist of motels, tourist and agrotourism guesthpuses, tourist villas, private villas with rooms for rent, etc. They amount to a total of 215 units, offering 3548 accommodation beds.



Figure 1. The OMA accommodation units typology

In the rest of the communes, the accommodation basis is much below the level of the two resorts, both in the number of accommodation units (17) and their category: one 3-star hotel with

¹ The greatest permanent spa of Romania

² Local-interest spa

³ http://turism.gov.ro/web/autorizare-turism/
146 beds (Borş commune), the others being motels or classified guesthpouses with 2-3 stars/flowers, but with few accommodation beds (1 unit with 16 beds in Borş locality, 5 units with 86 beds in Oşorhei commune, two units with 72 beds in Biharia commune, one unit with 52 beds in Sîntandrei commune, two units with 61 beds in Ineu commune, three units with 30 beds in Nojorid commune, one unit with 11 beds in Cetariu commune, one unit with 6 beds in Paleu commune, 0 units in Girişu de Criş and Toboliu communes).





□ Other communes of the O.M.A. □Commune Sânmartin















On the other hand, in the rural OMA we can find the category of tourist complexes/ensembles formed by accommodation units, restaurants, terraces, leisure lakes, located on the banks of man-made lake reservoirs (Fishermen's Inn from Paleu, Magnolia from Biharia, Camelot from Husasău de Criş, King's Land from Ineu, Dodo from Sîntandrei).



Figure 6. The tourist complex Hanul Pescarilor/Fishermen's Inn of Paleu



On the bank of the Şişterea lake The fishing pond nets of Santău Mic⁴ Figure 7. Reservoirs with complex functions

Spa treatment equipments and entertainment facilities are also concentrated in the 1 Mai and Băile Felix spas. Here you will find a wide range of facilities and means for health and treatment, especially in the two medical recovery hospitals (for adults in Băile Felix spa, for children in the 1 Mai spa), but hotels also have their own treatment wellness and spa basis. To these numerous outdoor / indoor pools add up (at the hotels International, Mureş, Crişana, Termal, Nufărul, Ceres), swimming pools (Apollo-Felix, Padis, Venus, the wave pool) and aquaparks (Aqua President, Felixarium, Perla).

In the other localities from the OMA, it is not possible to talk about this category of tourist infrastructure (in the village of Livada of the Nojorid commune there is a swimming pool that works with thermal water, but it is currently closed).

Nonetheless in some villages we can find small lake accumulations with complex functions (Tătar et al., 2018) and gravel ponds in the meadow of Crisul Repede river that have some

⁴ https://www.gavella.ro/index.php?idmenu=4

facilities for fishing (cash and release), as well as picnic areas. To these two small fish farms are added (in the communes of Sîntandrei and Borş).

Another interesting entertainment element that is very suitable for ecotourism is represented by 5 herds of horses (three in Sânmartin, one in Paleu and one in Ineu communes).

Furthermore within the King's Land tourist complex of Ineu there is an aerodrome for light aircraft, gliders, motor gliders and a golf course. Within this tourist complex leisure and fun activities can be complemented by a series of cycling demonstrations and events (http://kingslandineu.com/). The slopes with different difficulty levels are accessible for both beginners and the most experienced.



Hangar for light aircraft in Ineu

Golf course of Ineu



A few horses from the herd of Ineu Cycling race at Kingsland Country Club⁵ **Figure 8**. Entertainment opportunities in King's Land (Ineu commune)

The *restoration facilities* (restaurants, pizzerias, terraces) are well represented in the spas of Sînmartin commune, but we also find them in other locations of OMA, either in next to accommodation units or as independent units (in the villages of Biharia, Oşorhei, Cheresig).

By the help of European funds, the development of tourist information and promotion centers in the communes of Cetariu and Sînmartin (Băile Felix) was planned.

Accessibility to any tourist attraction in rural OMA is facilitated by a network of communication routes such as national / European roads (E-60 Borş-Oradea-Oşorhei-Cluj-Napoca; DN 76 Oradea-Sânmartin-Deva, DN 79 Oradea-Nojorid-Arad; DN 19 Oradea-Biharia -Satu

Mare), county and communal roads, with an average density of 1.27 km/km². With few exceptions (there are several unpaved roads), they have a good asphalt cover. The fastest way is by car, but there is also public transport with the help of regular bus or minibus lines of some private companies that connect Oradea with each commune in the metropolitan area. The bike paths, represented with green on the map (Figure 9) feature disparate sectors all converging toward Oradea city, a future planning should also connect all these bike lanes into a cicular belt to connect all the metropolitan communes.

In the commune of Nojord, 4 km from the city of Oradea, there is the Oradea International Airport (charter flights), and in the Oradea railway station there are train connections from all over the country and from abroad (Austria, Hungary).

Still in the category of transport services, we find rent-a-car services (in Oradea), internet access and banking systems (several banks have ATMs in the commune centers). For example, Banca Transilvania has ATMs in the localities: Sânmartin, Băile Felix, Cordău, Oşorhei (Fughiu), Biharia, Cauaceu, BRD in the localities: Băile Felix, Borş (Sântion), CEC Bank in Băile Felix.



Figure 9. The accessibility transportation network to the tourist attractions of the OMA

Survey of the specific tourist and technical infrastructure

According to the *Methodology for assessing the tourist potential in the basic administrative-territorial units* (TAUs) for the Specific tourist infrastructure, out of 100 points, 20 were allocated to it and distributed as follows: tourist reception structures with accommodation functions 7 points; treatment facilities, 5 points; conference rooms; exhibition centers 6 points; ski slopes; cable transport facilities 1 point; other leisure facilities 1 point.

On the OMA territory the the score distribution is the following (Table 1):

As can be seen in Table 1 and illustrated in Figure 10, the highest score related to the tourist infrastructure is achieved by the presence of accommodation units, the maximum score

going to Sânmartin commune, to which the two spas brought a special contribution. The other TAUs, due to reduced accommodation facilities, received minimum scores. Unfortunately, the rest of the components that make up the tourist infrastructure (treatment facilities, conference rooms, cable transport facilities, etc.), with the exception of Sânmartin TAU, are almost non-existent. Therefore, the specific tourism infrastructure in the OMA features an obvious disproportion, its greatest concentration and diversification being present in the Sânmartin TAU which concentrates 60% (18 points) of the score calculated at the level of this indicator for the entire rural OMA (30 points). The remaining 40% of the score is divided between the other 10 communes, returning an average of 1.2 points/commune, given that two communes (Girişu de Criş and Toboliu) do not have such facilities.

Name of commune	Accommodation units (max 7 points) (hotels - 5 points; (agri)guesthouses – 1point; 1point - other types of units)	Treatment facilities (max 5 points)	Conference rooms, exhibts centres (max 6 points)	Ski slopes, cable transportation (max 1 point)	Other entertainment facilities (pool, aquapark, equestrian centre, leisure water-based activities, fishing) (max 1point)	Total commune
Biharia	1	-	-	-	1	2
Borș	2	-	-	-	-	2
Cetariu	1	-	-	-	-	1
Girișu de Criș	-	-	-	-	-	-
Ineu	1	-	-	-	1	2
Nojorid	1	-	-	-	-	1
Oșorhei	1	-	-	-	-	1
Paleu	1	-	-	-	1	2
Sînmartin	7	5	5	-	1	18
Sîntandrei	1			-	-	1
Toboliu	-	-	-	-	-	-
Total rural OMA	16	5	5	-	4	30
Rural average of OMA	1.45	0.45	0.45	0	0.37	2.72

Table 1. The specific tourist infrastructure of the OMA

Table 2. Technical infrastructure in OMA

Name of commune	Access to port (max 1 point)	Access to national/ international airport (max 5 points)	Access to European road (max 5 points)	Access to national road/railway (max 5 points)	Water, Sewage and stormwater network (max 5 points)	Natural gas supply (max 4 points)	GSM coverage/lan dline (max 5 points)	Total commune
Biharia	-	-	5	2.5	5	2	3	17.5
Borș	-	-	5	2.5	5	4	3	19.5
Cetariu	-	-	-	-	2.5	-	3	5.5
Girișu de Criș	-	-	-	-	-	-	3	3
Ineu	-	-	-	-	2.5	-	3	5.5
Nojorid	-	5	5	2.5	3.5	-	3	19
Oșorhei	-	-	5	5	2.5	-	3	15.5
Paleu	-	-	-	-	5	-	3	8
Sînmartin	-	-	5	2.5	5	-	3	15.5
Sîntandrei	-	-	-	-	2.5	4	3	9.5
Toboliu	-	-	-	-	-	-	3	3
OMA total rural	-	5	25	15	33.5	10	33	121.5
OMA rural average	-	0.45	2.3	1.3	3.05	0.9	3	11

For the criterion *Technical infrastructure*, out of a total of 100 points, 30 were allocated, distributed as follows: direct access to major transport infrastructure (16 points), provision of public communal management services – *urban infrastructure* (9 points) and availability of

190

electronic communications services – telecommunications infrastructure (5 points). In the analysis of the major transport infrastructure, the TAU's access to the port was taken into account (max. 1 point), the access to the international / national airport - max. 5 points, access to European road (E) - max. 5 points, access to national road / railway - max 5 points. For the urban infrastructure out of the 9 granted points, a maximum of 5 points are offered to TAUs that have a water supply, sewage and stormwater networks and a maximum of 4 points for gas supply, as well as the telecommunications coverage has a maximum of 5 points (Table 2).



Figure 10. Specific tourism infrastructure score

Following the analysis of the technical infrastructure in the OMA, based on the mentioned indicators it can be seen that the telecommunications network and especially the mobile one with GSM coverage is present in all TAUs pertaining to the metropolitan area, thus increasing the degree of endowment and comfort.

What differentiates the localities of the metropolitan area is the different degree to which some of them have or do not have access to the various networks of roads or to the municipal infrastructure. From this point of view, the Borş TAU stands out, which, benefiting from an advantageous position, has both transport infrastructure (being crossed by the national/European road DN1/E 60), and the municipal one, respectively the water and natural gas supply. The Nojorid TAU.stands out through the transport infrastructure with access to the national/European road DN 79/E 671, but also through the proximity to the (inter) national airport in Oradea. The Biharia TAU has a technical infrastructure very similar to Borş commune, but the difference is

made by the partial natural gas supply (for now, only at the level of the commune center). Furthermore, with identical scores, the communes of Sâmnartin and Oşorhei stand out, which, unlike the previous TAUs, lack the methane gas supply network.

CONCLUSIONS

The existing tourist and technical infrastructure at the level of the rural space within the OMA shows obvious disproportions at the level of each TAU. These gaps are somewhat accountable, given that two of the famous spas of national and local interest in Romania have developed here (Băile Felix and Băile 1 Mai spas), which makes Sânmartin TAU to stand out from the rest of the metropolitan communes, at least in terms of tourist infrastructure concentration.

We did not find the same thing at the level of technical infrastructure, as it is more equitably concentrated at the level of the TAU. First of all, the water supply and sewerage infrastructure stand out, followed by the communications infrastructure that obtained the most points (33.5, respectively 33), these being present in almost every commune.

Other components that stand out depending on the accumulated score are represented by the access to a European road (25 points), to the national road (15 points) and to the gas supply (10 points). Access to the european/national road is easy only for 5 communes (Biharia, Borş, Nojorid, Oşorhei with railway access - and Sânmartin), and the endowments with methane gas, although long awaited in the metropolitan countryside, are still expected. Only three communes have this advantage: Borş, Sântandrei and in Biharia only the commune center is supplied with methane gas.

On the opposite end, there are two communes (Girişu de Criş and Toboliu) where the tourist and technical infrastructure is poorly represented, perhaps due to the fact that they joined the metropolitan area later (in 2007), Toboliu commune resulting from the detachment of Toboliu villages and Cheresig from Girişu de Criş commune. Perhaps the peripheral position was a disadvantage, but certainly the development strategies of these communes will focus on the two categories of infrastructure.

REFERENCES

- Baias, S., Blaga, L., Dehoorne, O., Grama, V., Gozner, M., Herman, G., Ilieş, D.C., Ilieş, A., Josan, I., Morar, C. (2010). Băile Felix-Băile 1 Mai-Betfia (județul Bihor), Harta geoturistică, Editura Universității din Oradea.
- Bucur, L. (2012). Studiu geografic al Zonei Metropolitane Oradea prin Sisteme Informaționale Geografice, Editura Muzeului Țării Crișurilor, Oradea.
- Dincă, I. (2008). The emergence of Oradea Paleu Cetariu Şişterea axis for villeggiatura tourism. Asertion possibilities based on local resources, sight - seeings and initiatives. Geographical Forum - Geographical studies and environement protection research, 7, 167-177.
- Dincă, I., Herman, G. V., & Sztankovics, G. (2012). Descoperire prin ecoturism și prin turism rural în Comuna Cetariu. Editura Universității din Oradea.
- Dincă, I., Linc R., Tătar C., Nistor S., Staşac M., Bucur L. (2017), Surveying the Rural Resilience within the Oradea Hills Household Independent Cellar Landscape, Romania. in Modern Technologies for the 3 rd Millennium, EDlearning, published by Thomson Reuters - Philadelphia formerly Institute for Scientific Information ISI, Editografica s.r.l., Bologna (Italy), p. 13-22, ISBN 978-88-87729-41-2, http://www.edlearning.it/.
- Fuschi, M., & Evangelista, V. (2017). The Rural Tourism Challenge in Pescara's Hilly Landscape, Italy: Awareness, Integration, Sustainability. *GeoJournal of Tourism and Geosites*, 20(2), 272-281.
- Geurs, K.T., Krizek, K.J., Reggiani, A. (2012). Accessibility analysis and transport planning: An Introduction. in Geurs K.T., Krizek K.J. and Reggiani A. (Eds), Edward Elgar Publishing Ldt.
- Herman, G. V., & Tătar, C. (2015). Trends and prospects in the evolution and dynamics of the Felix 1 Mai Spas Tourist System. Analele Universității din Oradea, Seria Geografie, 24(1), 116-126.
- Herman, G. V., Banto, N., Caciora, T., Ungureanu, M., Furdui, S., Grama, V., Buhaş, R., & Buhaş, S., (2020). Tourism in Bihor County, Romania. Trends and Prospects. *Folia Geographica*, 62(2), 87-105.
- Ilies, D.C., & Josan I. (2009). The tourist complex spa Băile Felix-Băile 1 mai-personality, distinctiveness by protection versus depersonalization and nonspecific by globalization. conceptual and practical aspects regarding the role of the natural and anthropic setting in tourist fitting. *GeoJournal of Tourism and Geosites*, 2(4), 179-185.
- Ilieş, D. C., Ilieş, A., Herman, G. V., Baias, Ş., & Morar, C. (2011). Geotourist map of the Băile Felix–Băile 1 Mai-Betfia area (Bihor County, Romania). *GeoJournal of Tourism and Geosites*, 2(8), 219-226.

192

Ilieş, D.C., Herman, G.V., Dehoorne, O., & Măduța, F. (2013). The role of the importance of cyclotourism in the development of the Oradea Metropolitan area (Romania). *GeoJournal of Tourism and Geosites*, 12(2), 101-110.

Linc, R., Dincă, I., Nistor, St., Tătar, C., Bucur, L., Stașac, M., Stupariu, M. (2019). *The Environmental Asset Of The Rural* From Oradea Metropolitan Area (Romania). Analele Universității din Oradea, seria Geografie, 29(2), 1-17.

Page, S.J. (2019). Tourism Management. Routlege.

Staşac, M., & Bucur, L. (2010). Geo-demographical changes in rural space of Oradea Metropolitan Area. Annals of the University of Craiova, Geography Series, 2, 223-332.

Sykora, L., Ourednicek, M. (2007). Sprawling post-communist metropolis: Commercial and residential suburbanization in Prague and Brno, the Czech Republic. Springer.

Tătar, C.F., Linc, R., Dincă, I., Bucur, L., Stupariu, M., Stasac, M., Nistor, S. (2018). Nature-based suburban leisure opportunities within the Oradea Metropolitan Area. Analele Universității din Oradea, Seria Geografie, 28(2), 269-281.

Weaver, D., & Lawton, L. (2014). Tourism Management. Fifth Edition, Wiley.

*** (2011). Strategia de dezvoltare Locală a Zonei Metropolitane Oradea, www.zmo.ro

*** (2008). Study on Sustainable Urbanization in Metropolitan Regions. Halcrow Group Limited. Vineyard House.

http://kingslandineu.com/

http://turism.gov.ro/web/autorizare-turism/

https://zmo.ro/strategie

https://lege5.ro/gratuit/gezdcmrugu3a/evaluarea-reevaluarea-unitatilor-administrativ-teritoriale-uat-din-punctul-de-vedereal-concentrarii-resurselor-turistice-si-diagnosticarea-disfunctionalitatilor-privind-infrastructura-tehnica-situri?dp=geydcmrygmydqni

https://www.gavella.ro/index.php?idmenu=4

Submitted: Octomber 10, 2020 Revised: November 20, 2020 Accepted and published online December 08, 2020 Analele Universității din Oradea, Seria Geografie ISSN 1221-1273, E-ISSN 2065-3409

CLUJ-NAPOCA – PREMISES OF A POTENTIALLY OVERCROWDED TOURIST DESTINATION

Alexandra BUZĂ*

Faculty of Geography, Babeş-Bolyai University, 5-7 Clinicilor Street, 400006, Cluj-Napoca, Romania, e-mail: <u>buzaalexandra97@gmail.com</u>

Olga POSTEUCĂ

Faculty of Geography, Babeș-Bolyai University, 5-7 Clinicilor Street, 400006, Cluj-Napoca, Romania, e-mail: posteucaolga@gmail.com

Citation: Buză, A., & Posteucă, O. (2020). Cluj-Napoca – Premises of a Potentially Overcrowded Tourist Destination. *Analele Universității din Oradea, Seria Geografie*, 30(2), 194-204. <u>https://doi.org/10.30892/auog.302109-851</u>

Abstract: Nowadays, several international tourist destinations are dealing with overtourism, which means a series of malfunctions concerning activity segregation (often, located in historical centres), discomfort for the local community and even for tourists, due to extended visiting hours, etc. In the same context, in a number of cities, local authorities came up with coping strategies regarding the management of tourist flow during travelling seasons and measures to avoid overcrowding on tourist attraction areas. We started our research with the purpose of validating the hypothesis according to which the city of Cluj-Napoca is confronting an intense travelling phenomenon and its consequences upon the citizens. In order to achieve this goal, a double social inquiry was considered, aiming at, on one hand, tourist perception of overtourism in the city of Cluj-Napoca (50 validated questionnaires), and citizen opinion in what regards tourist behaviour in Cluj-Napoca (166 validated questionnaires), on the other hand. The results of the research pointed out the following: a high interest in Cluj-Napoca tourist attractions, especially the ones located downtown; a tendency towards overtourism in the month of August, due to summer events, as well as overcrowded areas throughout the historical centre; the role of local administration in promoting the city of Cluj-Napoca as a travel destination; an everyday better image of the city as a destination for worldwide tourists etc.

Key words: tourist destination, social inquiry, cultural tourism, Romania, Cluj-Napoca

* * * * * *

INTRODUCTION

In several cases, tourist destinations have been models of economic revival (Erschbamer et al., 2018). Hence, they become the key-element in tourism development, which, due to its well promoted potential through different branding techniques, lead to the development of certain

identities and personalities in a pretty competitive environment, at national and international levels (Baloglu and Kozak, 2011). Tourist destinations distinguish from one another by their brand, image, value, quality, heritage etc. (Baloglu and Kozak, 2011; Herman et al., 2020a,b). Among the advantages that tourist destinations present in the context of local development, one can count: development of business environment, coming-up of medical services, development of educational environment, more expanded and modern urban areas, as well as communication and transport system. Moreover, according to Mutuku C. (2013), in time, around tourist destinations various products and tourist services have been created, whose consumption can be found under the same destination brand. Tourists perceive tourist destinations as unique entities that offer elements (accessibility, attractions, travel packages etc.) and basic experiences by means of which destinations differentiate themselves (Mutuku, 2013).

Many of the hotspot tourist destinations confront the phenomenon of overtourism (Erschbamer et al., 2018), as well as certain management aspects regarding tourist numbers. Some of these destinations have started to draw up plans in order to avoid overcrowding or limit the number of visitors (Pilato et al., 2018; Bourliataux-Lajoinie et al., 2019). The available literature on overtourism points out the consequences, and more specifically, the measures taken to limit tourist flow, decrease the phenomenon of tourismophobia (Bourliataux-Lajoinie et al., 2019; Paris, 2017; Petkar, 2017; Pilato et al., 2018; Khanali and Yazdi, 2017) or the creation of tourist educational policies (Bourliataux-Lajoinie et al., 2019). The notion of overtourism refers to certain overcrowded locations, which generates discomfort not only for tourists, but also for locals (Taiminen, 2018; Anuar et al., 2019; Egresi, 2018; Goodwin, 2017). Among the causes leading to this phenomenon we can name the freedom of mobility that leads to a constant flow of tourist masses (mass tourism) on a number of destinations (France, Spain, China etc.), the popularity of a tourist destination, the accessibility given by the freedom of travelling, the prices and the quality of tourist services (Erschbamer et al., 2018). The negative effects on tourist destinations may vary from one destination to another, but, considering Barcelona, as one of the hotspot destinations for mass tourism - "Spain counts with 77 million visitors in 2017" (Taiminen, 2018; Kottasova, 2017), we speak of aesthetic and functional changes of the city, through new accomodation structures being set up, new aesthetics of public squares, all due to the massive internationalisation of the city environment and atmosphere, lack of social cohesion, local attitude towards tourists (Ballester, 2016).

Overtourism is an effect produced by urban cultural tourism, a type of tourism dating back in ancient times, when it was known under other forms. Urban areas (urban jams/cities) represent travel locations in which 50% of the population is urbanized (Cave and Jolliffe, 2012). Some of the causes leading to this type of tourism were the cultural and economic development of urban centres and the presence of architectural styles in buildings. In an urban environment, tourism is dependent on the presence of cultural attractions, on spare time spent to relax, exchange of values, ideas and cultural experiences (Bogdan, 2019). The cities were proved to be polarizing nuclei of attraction (Puşcaş, 2015; Herman et al., 2020c). According to Bogdan E. (2019), urban tourism may be of help in saving and conserving cultural heritage, by means of the local-visitor interaction.

From the legislative point of view, there are no EU integrated directives meant to contribute better management of mass tourism or constant flow of tourists (European Parliament, 2015). Tourism is a sector of economic activity which contributes over 10% to the EU GDP, and it is also a job-generator (over 12%).

Some of the European countries have created their own systems of fighting mass tourism, which is the main factor leading to overtourism. In Spain, Barcelona has been confronting for years this overtourism phenomenon; under such circumstances, a management plan was drawn up, entailing better management and tax on new accomodation structures, declaring tourist-purchased properties illegal, cooperation with local authorities to fight illegal residence (Goodwin, 2017). In The Netherlands, Amsterdam may be considered as another example of a city touristically developed which is confronting overtourism, but a few years ago the Dutch authorities launched a programme called City in Balance which implies keeping a balance between visitors and residents,

on the idea that "visitors are welcome, but locals are the priority". Moreover, traffic restrictions were imposed in the city central areas, homogeneity of accomodation structures is aimed at, and a series of campaigns sustaining responsible tourism are being organised (Hospers, 2019). Other European destinations which started to fight this phenomenon: in Prague, the presence of vehicles in the central historical area is forbidden; in Denmark, the purchasing of residences by foreigners, all along the coast, is forbidden, and in Copenhagen the opening of new bars and restaurants is also forbidden (Goodwin, 2017). The Cultural Entreprise for Management of Equipment and Cultural Animation was founded in Lisbon (EGEAC), financed through collecting entrance tickets at Sao Jorge Castle (Marques and Richards, 2019).

The United Nations World Tourism Organization (UNWTO) comes up with generally valid solutions to fight overtourism, such as: strategies to diversify the existing tourist and travel supplies, extended areas of tourist attractions, a reduced travelling season and management strategies for tourist areas (Egresi, 2018; Coldwell, 2017).

The phenomenon of rejection and antipathy towards tourists, felt by locals, is called tourismophobia and is very common in overcrowded popular destinations (Egresi, 2018). It was mentioned for the first time in the media around Barcelona, and the notion was used to describe the rejection of tourist masses by residents (Krugzek, 2019; Milano, 2017; Martin et al., 2018). The phenomenon entails verbal and physical threats towards tourists, and also towards accomodation structures, as prices went up and local lifestyle has changed (Egresi, 2018). Even local authorities feel, sometimes, that they have no arms to fight this situation (Milano et al., 2018); consequently, there should always be a balance between locals and tourists, and the process of gentrification by restoring the suburbs and poor peripheral areas may be a solution to this (Egresi, 2018; Niţulescu, 2006).

Most tourists are attracted by those destinations with a balanced price-offer ratio. Low-cost companies promoted heavily certain destinations, new types of accomodation came up (Airbnb), located in the city centres, which soon turned out to be overcrowded (Paris, Londra, Barcelona) (Egresi, 2018). Another aspect caused by mass tourism in some destinations is the loss of local identity (Egresi, 2018). At the same time, a good example of tourismophobia is Palma de Mallorca, where, in the past, the Aborigine population would welcome tourists happily, but nowadays they feel fear towards them. They see tourists as being responsible for their overcrowded city, price increase and alteration of lifestyle (Ballester P., 2016).

The purpose of this research is to draw attention on the phenomenon of overtourism, its causes and effects on the most popular tourist destinations, as well as management strategies and measures of fight against it. Particularly, we started with the hypothesis of validating the premise according to which the city of Cluj-Napoca is an ever-developing tourist destination confronting certain premises of an individualized overtourism phenomenon.

METHODOLOGY

Research area

The city of Cluj-Napoca is one of the most important urban centres in Romania and one of the most popular tourist destinations in Transylvania. Apart from being an old city, Cluj-Napoca is also a prominent cultural nucleus, a great academic and business centre (Popescu and Grigoraș, 2018), with a series of anthropic and natural tourist attractions (Cosma, 2006), such as St. Michael Church, The "Babeş Bolyai" University main building, Matei Corvin House, The Botanical Gardens or The Ethnographic Museum (Figure 1).

Moreover, Cluj-Napoca is a hotspot destination due to its cultural events (Popescu and Grigoraş, 2018), as it holds a pretty rich and stable calendar of events (Cosma, 2006) and international festivals, which contributed to the increase of its popularity as a travel destination. Cultural events are the most dinamic elements that contribute a greater flow of tourists (Cosma, 2006). In 2015, the city was granted the title of European Youth Capital, and in 2017 that of European Sports Capital. In 2017, more than 1.100 events and over 3.500 activities were organised, which attracted over 21% of the tourists (Popescu and Grigoraş, 2018). Each year, the city hosts

popular festivals: Untold, Jazz in the Park, Transylvania International Film Festival (TIFF), Street Food Festival, Cluj-Napoca Music Autumn Festival etc.



Figure 1. Placement of research area

Methods used

Apart from the fact that the available literature on overtourism has been consulted, the method of social inquiry has also been used, by means of a double set of questionnaires meant to shed light on the perception of locals, and also on that of tourists towards Cluj-Napoca as a travel destination. The questionnaires were undertaken in December 2019 - March 2020. They consisted of two sets of items: one for locals (166 validated questionnaires), and the other one for tourists (50 validated questionnaires). The role of the questionnaires was that of collecting answers associated to the tourism phenomenon to be researched (Cosma, 2006; Anuar et al., 2019).

In the case of the first set, addressed to tourists, the conclusion was that all respondents were foreigners, mainly from Germany and Israel, without Romanian citizenship (Figure 2.1-2.6.).



Figure 2. Social-demographic characteristics of respondents (tourists)

As for the second set, addressed to locals, the respondents were mainly students, aged 18-25, mainly females (Figure 3.1-3.5).



Figure 3. Social-demographic characteristics of respondents (locals)

RESULTS

Cluj-Napoca - tourist destination

Cluj-Napoca belongs to the category of the most visited tourist destinations in Romania, and its contributing multicultural component is more than visible (Cosma and Negrusa, 2008). The city offers a variety of tourist attractions (Figure 4) (Ministry of Culture, 2015), consisting of: a series of anthropic tourist attractions, such as buildings and institutions, historical buildings belonging to different historical periods, churches, palaces, public squares; a whole variety of cultural, sports and artistic events: Transylvania International Film Festival (TIFF), Cluj Anniversary Days, Hungarian Cultural Anniversary, Untold, Jazz in the Park, Book Fest etc.; an attractive natural space consisting of green areas (the banks of Someş river, Hoia Baciu Forest, Făget Forest, "Alexandru Borza" Botanical Gardens, "Simion Bărnuțiu" Central Park).

Although the city of Cluj-Napoca does not boast tourist attractions and monuments classified by the UNESCO, it defines itself as an appealing destination at European level (Bolog et al., 2014-2020).



Figure 4. Main tourist attractions in Cluj-Napoca

1 - St. Michael Church, 2 – The Franciscan Church, 3 – The Hungarian Calvinist Church, 4 – St. Peter Roman-Catholic Church, 5 – The Romanian Greek-Catholic "Christ's Resurrection" Church, 6 – The Orthodox Metropolitan Cathedral, 7 - The Hungarian Calvinist Matia Church, 8 – The Roman-Catholic Calvaria Church, 9 – The Hungarian Calvinist Church, 10 – St. Trinity Roman-Catholic Church, 11 - St. Trinity Romanian Orthodox Church, 12 – The Franciscan Monastery, 13 – The Evangelical Church and parish house, 14 – The Jesuit Monastery, 15 – Central Cemetery, 16 – Tailors' Tower, 17 – The antique and medieval city, 18 - Fragment of the second medieval enclosure, 19 - Cluj-Napoca City Hall, 20 – The Babeş-Bolyai University main building, 21 - Matei Corvin House, 22 – The Casino in Central Park, 23 - Melody Hotel, 24 – The Local Councill, 25 – The Romanian National Theatre, 26 - The "Sapientia" University, 27 – The Ethnographic Museum of Transylvania, "Reduta" building, 28 – Museum of Pharmacy, 29 – The Hungarian Theatre, 30 – The Art Museum, 31 – Elian Palace, 32 – Berde Palace, 33 – Palaces of the Roman-Catholic Status, 34 - "Continental" Hotel, 35 - Banffy Palace, 36 – Szeki Palace, 37 – Babos Palace, 38 – Museum Square, 39 - Urban complex of Mihai Viteazul Square, 40 - Iulius Mall, 41 - Cluj Arena, 42 – Central Park, 43 – Botanical Gardens, 44 - Hoia-Baciu Forest, 45 – The Citadel

Tourist perception of Cluj-Napoca as a tourist destination

No less than 50 questionnaires were handed out directly to several foreign tourists, during four months (December 2019, January-March 2020), in order to find out their vision about Cluj-Napoca as a tourist destination. There were 18 items, which revealed the following aspects:

- most respondents, 90% of them, think that Cluj-Napoca is a tourist destination, eligible due to prices (including transport) and accessibility. 10% think that the city cannot be considered as a travel destination yet.

- over 90% of the respondents haven't visited the city before, and only 4 of them have already visited the city once;

- most tourists recommend Cluj-Napoca as a tourist destination to friends and colleagues, aspect also seen in the ever-growing image of the city;

- the sources of information mentioned by the respondents regarding the choice of a destination were social media (TripAdvisor), tourist guides, friends/colleagues; the city of Cluj-Napoca is a tourist destination quite visible online. According to TripAdvisor (2020), in Cluj-Napoca there are 295 accomodation units, 54 spaces for rent, 449 food service units (restaurants, bars, coffee shops). Among the activities one can undertake here, there are: tours (51), meeting points and landscapes (41), evening activities (40), activities outside the city (39), interactive activities (30), shopping (25), green areas and parks (14), SPA&wellness (14), museums (10), means of transport (10), lectures/courses&workshops (6), tours on boat, water sports (5), shows and concerts (4), casinos and gambling houses (4), travel resources (3) and day trips (1).

- 36 respondents consider the city of Cluj-Napoca is a top tourist destination, similar to other European urban centres, whereas 14 do not agree; moreover, 33 persons think there are premises for the city to become a top tourist destination, whereas the rest of the answers highlight certain impairments that still exist, such as destination visibility;

- tourist respondents (48 persons) chose air transport and only 2 of them considered railway option;

- respondents spent 2-4 days in Cluj-Napoca, the main arguments for chosing the destination were to relax, to discover new places, culture, business or visit friends;

- from the tourist point of view, on a scale from 1 to 5, ratings on the internet vary between 4 and 5, in terms of importance, which highlights the fact that tourist perception is influenced by the experience of other tourists, expressed by means of travel platforms (see the Airbnb experience). 37 respondents prefer meals in food service units other than accomodation structures, whereas 10 would eat within their accomodation units, and the rest of them at friends' places.

Local perception of tourists in the city of Cluj-Napoca

Among locals, a number of 166 questionnaires were undertaken online (by means of Google Forms) and also directly, with the purpose of catching a better insight on the overtourism phenomenon in Cluj-Napoca. The 20 items used helped us find out the strengths of the city from the perspective of its tourist potential and the use of it. The main elements revealed were the following:

- a significant percentage of respondents (41%) have been living in Cluj-Napoca for at least 2 years, most of them in Mănăștur neighbourhood, but also in the city central area (given the fact that student dorms are located in the central area of the city) (Figure 5.1.);

- 69% of the locals think that Cluj-Napoca holds a well exploited tourist potential, and 21% consider it is not enough (Figure 5.2.);

- 54% of the locals say that there are times when the city is overcrowded with tourists (Figure 5.3.), especially in the summer (28%), in the months of July and August (22%); the most overcrowded areas are, also in the opinion of local respondents, the historical centre of the city (25%) and the central park (19%);

- some locals consider that the city became a tourist destination at the end of an interval of 1-4 years (47%), whereas others (45%) think that it was no sooner than 4-10 years, and this is why they would recommend it as a tourist destination to family members and friends;

- according to local opinion, Cluj-Napoca is chosen as a tourist destination due to its cultural events (24%) sports events (14%), tourist attractions (17%), but also due to its being a renowned academic centre (15%);



Figure 5. Tourist characteristics of Cluj-Napoca according to local respondents

- the local actors responsible for the promotion of the city as a tourist destination are the City Hall (32%) and Cluj-Napoca Cultural Centre (20%) (Figure 6.1.);

- respondents made an ascending order of the benefits brought to the local community as a consequence of tourism development in Cluj-Napoca (Figure 6.2.), i.e., the appearance of new accomodation platforms (20%), the increase in the number of tourist services (17%), the increase of accomodation units (15%), development of the transport system (12%), image and advertising intake (11%), as well as associated events (10%); as for weaknesses/drawbacks, traffic (30%) and price increase were mentioned (24%) (Figure 6.3.);



Figure 6. Local actors responsible for the promotion of Cluj-Napoca as a tourist destination, benefits and drawbacks identified by local respondents

- 73% of the locals wish that the city of Cluj-Napoca became a tourist destination, but 53% do not know about strategies and measures meant to prevent the effects of overtourism (Figure 7.2.);

- 42% of the respondents agree upon the introduction of fares on certain tourist attractions, whereas 38% do not welcome such an initiative (Figure 7.1.);

- according to local opinions, the most significant measures to be taken in order to avoid overcrowding during intense visiting seasons in Cluj-Napoca (Figure 7.3.), should be the following: traffic restrictions (20%), prior reservation (18%), travel industry pricing policy (16%), tourist number database (15%), as well as new tourist products and alternative deals (13%).



Figure 7. Overtourism preventing measures in the city of Cluj-Napoca

Management strategies for Cluj-Napoca as a tourist destination

Based on the answers given by respondents, personal observations and the current policies of Cluj-Napoca municipality, we hereby suggest that the following management strategies should be considered for the benefit of the city as a tourist destination:

- the organising of Untold festival in some other location, in a less populated area, to avoid noise pollution that causes discomfort both to the community and the environment built nearby;

- a more efficient promotion at international level by means of the media channels, in order to lure tourists all year long;

- regulations set up for every tourist attraction regarding the number of tourists allowed to do the visit, related to programme and prior reservation;

- visiting fares set up for every tourist attraction, which would increase local income and contribute more efficiently to the restoration of historical and cultural heritage;

- promotion of tourist attractions located in peripheral neighbourhoods of the city and nearby, in order to extend tourist visiting areas;

- promotion of attractions located in areas with little tourist activity, in order to extend tourist visiting areas, diversify possibilities and avoid tourism overcrowding.

CONCLUSIONS

Cluj-Napoca is one of the most visited cities in Romania, boasting a remarkable tourist potential which is yet to be discovered and exploited. Although at present the overtourism phenomenon cannot be considered in its case, based on the inquiry undertaken, the city has been dealing, in recent years, with an early stage of tourism overcrowding in the summertime; one of the causes is given by the various cultural and artistic events (international and local festivals), which attract a great flow of tourists, a component that might just as well represent a benefit regarding the economic development of the city, of the tourism industry and city visibility. On the other hand, when it comes to infrastructure, the city is not sufficiently prepared yet to welcome and support a great number of tourists, which could lead to overcrowding.

Cluj-Napoca is seen as a European tourist destination both by most tourists and locals, as well. This is an economic benefit given by the tourism industry to the local economic environment, but, in time, it can also be seen as a problem by residents, should it lead to an overcrowded city.

Consequently, a certain percentage of the city's population thinks preventing measures should be considered, such as: visiting fares applied to the most popular tourist attractions, procedures and strategies meant to avoid traffic jams, as well as strategies designed to support price trend related to the development of sustainable tourism. The same answers reveal a certain reluctance generated by the potential increase of tariffs and fares, due to an eventual ever-growing competitiveness of the city with other European tourist cities.

In the last decade, the city of Cluj-Napoca has become very visible, both at national and international level, and the ones responsible for this developing process are, according to respondents, Cluj-Napoca City Hall and Cluj-Napoca Cultural Centre; the two institutions are deeply concerned with the promotion of local heritage and attraction of investments meant to contribute to the city development within the tourism industry.

Moreover, the present study may open new development directions, such as identifying new solutions to prevent the overtourism phenomenon or the feasibility analysis of the existing measures and strategies designed to optimise tourist areas.

REFERENCES

- Anuar A.A.N., Hashim I. N., Jaini N., Ridzuan H.F., Suleiman F.C. (2019). The Impact of Overtourism Towards Local Community in Heritage City. *Journal of Tourism & Hospitality*, 8(3), 1-5.
- Ballester P. (2016). Barcelona and Mass Tourism: Tourismophobia and Coexistence, Grand-Sud Tourism School, Toulouse, Franța.
- Baloglu S., Kozak M. (2011). Managing and Marketing Tourist Destinations. Strategies to Gain a Competitive Edge, Routledge, New York, SUA.
- Bogdan E. (2019). Turismul urban [Urban Tourism], Editura Universitară, București, Romania.
- Bolog C., Bradea A., Toader V. (2014-2020). Strategia de dezvoltare turistică a municipiului Cluj-Napoca [Tourist development strategy of Cluj-Napoca], Cluj-Napoca, Romania.
- Bourliataux-Lajoinie S., Dosquet F., Oliver S., Seraphin H., Zaman M. (2019). Destination branding and overtourism, Universitatea din Winchester, UK, Universitatea Perpignan, Franţa, Universitatea Sunderland, UK, Universitatea of Tours, Franţa, ESG Pau, Franţa.
- Cave J., Jolliffe L. (2012). Urban Tourism: Tourism: The Key Concepts, Routledge, London, UK.
- Coldwell W. (2017). First Venice and Barcelona: Now anti-tourism marches spread across Europe, The Guardian.
- Cosma S. (2006). Tourist destination Cluj-Napoca, Romania, Facultatea de Business, Universitatea "Babeș-Bolyai", Cluj-Napoca.
- Cosma S., Negrusa A. (2008). The place of cultural tourism for Cluj-Napoca, Romania as a tourist destination. Wseas Transactions on Business and Economics, 7(5), 407-408.
- Egresi I. (2018). "Tourists go home!" Tourism overcrowding and "tourismophobia" in European cities (Can tourists and residents still co-habitate in the city?, In [Co]Habitation Tactics. Imagining future spaces in architecture, city and landscape, TAW2018 International Scientific Conference from 20th to 23rd September 2018 / POLIS University (pp. 701-714).
- Erschbamer G., Innerhofer E., Pechlaner H. (2018). Overtourism: How much tourism is too much?, Eurac Research, Centrul pentru Studii Avansate.
- Goodwin H. (2017). The Challenge of Overtourism. Responsible Tourism Partnership, Working paper 4, 11-15.
- Herman G. V., Banto N., Caciora T., Ungureanu M., Furdui S., Grama V., Buhaş R., Buhaş S. (2020a). Tourism in Bihor County, Romania. Trends and Prospects. *Folia Geographica*, 62(2), 87-105.
- Herman, G.V., Grama, V., Sonko, S.M., Boc E., Băican, D., Garai, L.D., Blaga, L., Josan, I., Caciora, T., Gruia K.A., Grecu, A., & Peptenatu, D. (2020b). Online Information Premise in the Development of Bihor Tourist Destination, Romania. *Folia Geographica*, 62, 1, 21-34.
- Herman, G.V., Ilieş, D.C., Dehoorne, O., Ilieş, A., Sambou, A., Caciora, T., Diombera, M., Lăzuran, A. (2020c). Emitter and tourist destination in Romania. *Baltic Journal of Health and Physical Activity*, 12(1), 120-138.
- Hospers G.J. (2019). Overtourism in Europe cities: from challenges to coping strategies, *CESifo Forum*, 20(3): 20-24, Universitatea din Twente, Olanda.
- Khanalizadeh B., Yazdi S.K. (2017). Tourism demand: A panel data approach. Current Issues in Tourism, 20(8), 787-800. https://doi.org/10.1080/13683500.2016.1170772.
- Kottasová I. (2017). These European cities are fed up with tourists, CNN.
- Krugzek Z. (2019). "Overtourism"- Around the definition, Academia Wychowania Fizycznego, Republica Cehă.
- Marques L., Richards G. (2019). Overtourism in Lisbon: is culture the salvation?, Olanda.
- Martin J.M., Martinez Guaita J.M., Fernandez Salinas J.A. (2018). An Analysis of the Factors behind the Citizen's Attitude of Rejection towards Tourism in a Context of Overtourism and Economic Dependence on This Activity, *Sustainability*, 10(8), 2851.
- Milano C. (2017). Turismofobia: cuando el turismo entra en la agenda de los movimientos sociales, Marea Urbana, 1, 5-8.

Milano C., Novelli M., Cheer J. M. (2018), Overtourism a growing global problem, The Conversation.

Ministerul Culturii (2015). Lista Monumentelor Istorice [List of Historical Monuments].

Mutuku C. (2013). Tourism Destinations. Definitions, Changes and Trends, GRIN Verlag, Munich, Germany.

- Nițulescu D.C. (2006), Procesul de gentrificare a spațiilor de locuit urbane. Concept și explicații alternative [The gentrification of the urban built-up areas. Concept and alternative explanations], *Calitatea vieții*, XVII(3-4), 281-293 (in Romanian).
- Paris N. (2017), *Tourists have turned Oxford into 'hell' local claim*, Telegraph, http://www.telegraph.co.uk/travel/news/oxford-tourist-hell-overcrowding-residents-locals-complain, Accessed date: 20 June 2018.
- Parlamentul European (2014-2019), Rezoluția Parlamentului European din 29 octombrie 2015 referitoare la noile provocări și concepte pentru promovarea turismului în Europa [European Parliament Resolution on new challenges and concepts for the promotion of tourism in Europe].
- Petkar S. (2017), Spain is quite full' tourists urge to travel elsewhere as protests grip holiday hotspots, Express. http://www.express.co.uk/news/world/840042/barcelona-spain-holidaysanti-tourist-protests-go-home-graffitiviolence-tui-travel, Accessed date: 20 June 2018.
- Pilato M., Seraphin H., Sheeran P. (2018). Over-tourism and the fall of Venice as a destination, *Journal of Destination Marketing and Management*, 9, 374-376. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.jdmm.2018.01.011
- Popescu A., Grigoraș M. A. (2018). The City of Cluj-Napoca and The Cluj County, Important tourist attractions in Romania, Universitatea de Științe Agricole și Medicină Veterinară, București.
- Puşcaş A. (2015). Coloane şi Vitralii. Antichitate şi Evul Mediu. Incursiuni în istoria şi cultura turismului urban premodern [Pillars and stain glass. Antiquity and Middle Ages. Incursions in the history and culture of premodern urban tourism], Editura Presa Universitară Clujeană, Cluj-Napoca, Romania.
- Taiminen S. (2018). The negative impacts of overtourism on tourism destinations from environmental and socio-cultural perspectives, Teză de diplomă, Facultatea de Business, Arcada.

Submitted: August 25, 2020 Revised: November 26, 2020 Accepted and published online December 21, 2020

INSTRUCTIONS FOR THE AUTHORS

Article submission

In order to disseminate the research results in the field, researchers, scholars and professionals are welcome to submit an electronic version of the manuscript (in Microsoft Office Word format).

Submission requirements: To submit an article for publication in our journal it is required that the article was neither published before, or it was considered for publication in other journals. Authors are responsible for the content and the originality of their contributions. In order to be published, articles must be thoroughly researched and referenced.

IMPORTANT: All papers must be submitted in electronic format, only in English language and formatted according to the model provided on the Journal Website to the email address: auog.uoradea@yahoo.com.

Copyright statement

Each manuscript must be submitted along with a certification on the part of the author that the scientific contribution represents the author(s) original work and has not been copyrighted anywhere else, document which can be downloaded (click here for download).

By submitting a scientific work to Annals of the University of Oradea, Seria Geografie the submitters agree to the following:

- the submitted work belongs exclusively to the declared authors;
- the submitted work represents original scientific research;
- the submitted work has not been published or submitted for publishing to another journal;

- if the submitted work is published or selected for publishing in Annals of the University of Oradea, Seria Geografie, the authors waive any patrimonial claims derived from their authorship for the submitted work; the authors retain the moral rights for their submitted work, as granted under the Romanian applicable law; also, the authors agree to refrain from ulterior submitting of the work to other journals.

The submitters agree to be solely held accountable in case of breaching the above terms and to defend the representatives of Annals of the University of Oradea, Seria Geografie in the event of a lawsuit related to the submitted work.

When submitting a paper, the authors are required to fill and send a scanned copy of the declaration of conformity provided on the Journal Website.

Privacy statement

The submitted personal data, such as names or email addresses, are used only for the declared purpose of the Annals of the University of Oradea, Seria Geografie journal (publishing original scientific research). Manuscripts are received at all times. However, in order to have your article published in the current year's issue, the manuscripts must be submitted three months before publication date (June, December).

Article format

<u>All manuscripts must be edited entirely in English. Article must include:</u>

- Title;

- Author name(s). For each author you must mention the author's scientific title, his affiliation (institution) and e-mail address;

- Abstract (maximum 300 words);

- Keywords (not more than 5 - 6 words);

- Acknowledgments (if any);
- Main body text (structured according to template provided on the website);

- Illustrations (graphs, diagrams, maps, photos - should have indications of their position in the text and title written in English) must be introduced in text and must be also submitted in electronic format, preferably in JPG, PNG or BMP format and must be referred to as Figures, which should be numbered with Arabic Numbers.

- Tables must be numbered with Arabic numbers and should not repeat data available elsewhere in the text.

- References must be indicated in the text, between brackets and must include the author's name and the date of the publication (Ilieş, 2012). When three or more authors are refereed, they will appear in the text as follow: (Ilieş et al., 2012). References must be listed in alphabetical order at the end of the text.

The following style sheet is recommended:

- for journals:

- Herman, G. V., Ilieş, D.C., Baias, Ş., Măduţa, M.F., Ilieş, A., Wendt, J., & Josan, I. (2016). The tourist map, scientific tool that supports the exploration of protected areas, Bihor County, Romania. *GeoSport for Society*, 4(1), 24-32. - for books:
- Herman, G. V. (2011). Omul și modificările antropice din Câmpia Someșului [The man and anthropogenic changes in Somes Plain], Editura Universității din Oradea, Oradea, Romania.

- for newspaper articles

Name of the newspaper, date of publication, *Title of the newspaper article*, date, page Oradea Times (2010). *Travel architecture*, 11.03.2010, p. 13.

- for websites

Author (if available), article title, URL, accessed on ... (time, day, month, year)

The standard model for submitting your manuscript, in Microsoft Word format, can be downloaded from http://istgeorelint.uoradea.ro/Reviste/Anale/pr.html, it should be filled in and sent by e-mail to auog.uoradea@yahoo.com.

Review process

All the manuscripts received at the Editorial Office undergo an anonymous peer review process, necessary for assessing the quality of scientific information, the relevance to the field, the appropriateness of scientific writing style, the compliance with the style and technical requirements of our journal etc. The referees are selected from the national and international members of the editorial and scientific board, as well as from other scholars or professional experts in the field. The referees assess the drafts of the articles, commenting and making recommendations. This process leads either to acceptation, recommendation for revision, or rejection of the assessed article. Editors reserve the right to make minor editorial changes to the submitted articles, including changes to grammar, punctuation and spelling, as well as article format, but no major alterations will be carried out without the author's approval. Before being published, the author is sent the proof of the manuscript adjusted by editors. If major revisions are necessary, articles are returned to the author so that he/she should make the proper changes. Authors are notified by email about the status of the submitted articles in at most 3 months from the receiving date.

Analele Universității din Oradea, Seria Geografie

TOM XXX, Nr. 2 / 2020 (December)